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Managing Director’s Message
KEY HIGHLIGHTS
4,00,000
MSME Served

INR 1,700+ Cr
OSP
INR 1,300+ Cr
Disbursed

Our focus on delivery
of customer value and
on improving efciency
through rened data
insights has helped us
expand protably to all
four regions in India.

311
Branch Network
4,800+
Employees
2nd Best Place
to Work in India
by GPTW

SME Financier Of
The Year- Asia(Gold)
By SME Finance Forum

Dear Shareholders,
I share the annual report of Aye
Finance for 2021-22 with
tremendous pride in our team for
their extraordinary resilience
and efforts through the
tum ultuous year. Adversity
reveals the true genius- this
adage could be seen in action in
the year gone by. The disruptions
from COVID pandemic provided
our employees and our customers
the opportunity to test their grit
and overcome grave obstacles.

The pandemic resurfaced with
renewed strength in the rst
quarter of the nancial year and
pushed our focus to defending our
business. The disruptions caused
m ulti-billion-dollar nancial
setback to the economy. The 60
million micro-enterprises that
contribute 37% to the GDP, employ
over 110mn people and grow
faster than our rate of GDP growth,
were faced with an existential
challenge. We had witnessed the
resourcefulness and ability to
negotiate challenges of this sector
in the past when they came up on
top, post the double blow of
demonetization and GST
implementation. As this year came
to a close, we once again saw the
sector rebuild itself and strive to
perform at pre-COVID level of
economic activity.
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MESSAGE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

SUPPORTING OUR CUSTOMERS TIDE
THROUGH THE DISRUPTION

We provided restructuring complying with RBI directions to the needy businesses. Only 7% of the customers sought
restructuring. The government guaranteed ECLGS top up loans were extended to customers who needed to
revitalise their business. Our customers have been judicious in use of these supports and that strengthens our
condence in our markets.

Our experience of having worked with the botom of the pyramid business for the last seven years has shown
that this segment has high intent to pay, hence in these mes of diﬃculty, we used a balance of compassion
along with necessary recovery process.
CALLS MADE BY CUSTOMER SERVICE

66,16,807
50,24,141
1,00,000 2,00,000 3,00,000 4,00,000 5,00,000

The customers belonging to the less impacted industries were mentored
to keep up their repayments to save on unnecessary interest burden. This has enabled many of our customers to
stabilise their businesses and saved them from increased interest and charges. I feel proud of my team that
moderated its excellent ability to follow up on the instalments with the high level of emotional connect with our
customers.
CUSTOMER EXPANSION OVER YEARS
3,96,766

4,00,000
3,50,000
3,00,000

2,90,201

2,50,000

2,38,024

2,00,000
1,50,000

1,25,573
1,00,000

4,562

54,709
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our customer service team made lakhs of calls to customers
and also sent lakhs of reminder messages to keep them
advised on how to keep a ne balance between
FY 22
their EMI payments and their business needs.
We coached our eld staff to always choose
persuasion instead of coercion while interacting
FY 21
with customers.

50,000

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

We kept our underwriting policies abreast of the developments in the market and initiated fresh lending in select
geographies and industries. Since essential items and services had been resilient during the pandemic, we
focussed on credit lines to businesses that deal in non-discretionary products and services.

1
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The disruption tested our belief and mission to support and catalyse the nancially under-privileged microenterprises. I am happy that we stayed true to our mission and helped many of our customers tide over the difcult
period and sustain their businesses. The grassroots businesses have meagre net worth and the trickle of cash ow is
essential for their survival. The ensuing lockdowns and the fear in the markets had dealt a big blow to them. On the
one hand, our loan disbursements provided them the crucial ow of funds and on the the hand our non-nancial
advisory optimism and belief in their ability to overcome this challenge.

MESSAGE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

EMPLOYEES ARE THE PRIME MOVERS OF OUR BUSINESS

Various initiatives were implemented to help and assure our employees in these depressing times. A Covid Apex
Response Team (CART) met regularly to monitor employees' health and to provide doctors, medicine, and nancial
support to the affected employees and their families. Sponsored vaccination drives were arranged to facilitate the
speedy vaccination for our employees and their families and over 98 % of our employees were administered both
doses.

9,000

Monthly Awards

REWARDS
AND
RECOGNITION

350

Yearly Awards

GREAT PLACE TO WORK RANKING

2022
Ranked 2nd in India

2021

Ranked 4th in Asia

2021
Ranked 4th in India
Ranked 9th in Asia

2019
Ranked 53rd in India

2020
Ranked 14th in India
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our excellent trajectory of disbursement and repayments collection is an outcome of this employee connect and it is
heartening to be adjudged as one of the 'Great places to Work' based on the employee survey fourth year in a
row.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Employee engagement initiatives took varied forms ranging from setting up a digital radio station to digital team
engagement tasks to digital celebrations and events. The monthly employee town hall continued to be the medium
for creating a dialogue between the leadership and the teams. We decided not to lay off any employees and the
annual increments and bonuses were paid on time.

1
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Our employee will always be an important stakeholder for us because we believe it is our procient employees
who breathe life into our corporate vision. And our commitment toward the well-being of our employees became
paramount last year when the pandemic was causing unprecedented damage to their as well as their family's
health.

MESSAGE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

CREATING DIGITAL READY PROCESS
1
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

While COVID tested the technology architectures of our sector, it also presented an opportunity to create agile
business models with technology at its core. Leveraging technology to strengthen our collection capability became
critical as the movement on the eld was restricted due to the lockdown measures. We developed insightful AI/ ML
algorithms which forecasted the patterns of EMI bouncing and also identied which category of customers were
likely to delay the recovery of installments. We improved the efciency of our bounce and OD payment collection
process by building digital payment capabilities. During the year we made continuous progress to embed data
science and AI in our customer acquisition and risk selection processes, making them more robust and inclusive. We
have created completely AI-driven, automated borrowing solutions for sections of our target customer base and
successfully addressed their challenge of inadequate data and banking footprint.

MANAGING THE BOTTOM LINE
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OSP GROWTH ( INR CRORES )

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The lockdown and the fear in the markets had dealt a big blow to our target customer base and some of them had
to even wind up their operations. Like with most of the MSME lenders, the last two years of disruption caused by
covid pandemic has impacted our portfolio. This impact has been signicant but has in no way been devastating.
Our condence in our business proposition continues to be solid and with this background instead of carrying on a
PAR 90 DATA
damaged portfolio, we have decided to take an aggressive stance in
writing off customer loans where the customer's business has been impacted
2.93%
FY 22
irreparably. This bold step of making aggressive write-offs has made us
report an overall post tax loss of Rs 45.7 crs although our overall operations
3.31%
FY 21
continue to show good protability metrics besides this one time writeoff.
FY 20
2.07%
Even in the exceptionally disrupted markets, we ended the year with
a well-managed gross NPA of 3.4% and have adequately provisioned for a loss coverage ratio of 76%.

MESSAGE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

OUTCOMES AND IMPACT
Year 2021-2022 was our eighth year of operation and despite the disruption caused by the pandemic, we
performed well on all the business matrices:

1
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

We disbursed INR 1304 crores in business loans to micro businesses.
The principal outstanding of customer loans has grown from INR 1569 crores to INR 1728 crores.
We have made over 4,00,000 loan disbursements since inception.
Expanded our presence to 311 locations in 20 States/ UTs.
We raised INR 652 crores of debt during the year.

We have an engaged and trained team of 4800 employees as on
March 2022.
We won the SME Financier of the Year Award (Gold Category) at the SME Finance Forum (organized by
IFC & World Bank

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our Section 8 Company FAME (Foundation for Advancement of Micro Enterprises) made meaningful
interventions with over 25,000 micro enterprises and created opportunities for employment and revenue
generation.
BRANCH EXPANSION

20

311 Branches Over 100 Clusters 20 States

OTHER CLUSTERS

Jalandhar: Sports goods
Lucknow: Chikan Work

Grocery Shop

Printing

Tailoring

Pottery

Dry Cleaning

Hardware

Salon

Jewellery

Eatery

Rice Mill

Jaipur: Lac bangles
Kanpur: Leather goods
Shujalpur: Dairy
Akurdi: Metal based industry

Channapatna: Woodwork

Salem: Powerloom

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

We ended the year with less than 5.6% of loans under restructure.
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MESSAGE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

THE ROAD AHEAD

The next year should see us once again demonstrating our ability to grow our loan book, improve the credit quality
of the portfolio and return to prots. The focus on team engagement that we resolutely followed even through the
years of disruption, will continue to ensure a motivated and high achieving workforce.
In the last eight years we have institutionalised a mission to excel at serving the micro businesses through an
engaged and achievement oriented team. We drive for optimal prots while balancing the drive for lasting social
impact. The year ahead will help us build momentum in this journey.

MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Sanjay Sharma

1
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The valuable learnings from the difcult year have made us a stronger team. The frugal approach to managing
expenses, the focus on high employee productivity and pervasive use of data science models to prioritise and
optimise – these will be the themes for the coming year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Key Performance
Indicators
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
PORTFOLIO GROWTH

1,728

ACTIVE LOANS

3,96,766

1,781

FY 2021-22
FY 2020-21
FY 2019-20

3,96,766
2,90,201

EMPLOYEE STRENGTH

4,813

EXPANSION OF BRANCHES

311

FY 2021-22

4,813

FY 2021-22

311

FY 2020-21
FY 2019-20

3,895

211

3,235

FY 2020-21
FY 2019-20

PAR

2.93%

REPEAT BUSINESS

2,38,024

173

474
(INR CRORES)

FY 2021-22

2.93%

FY 2021-22

474

FY 2020-21
FY 2019-20

3.31%

FY 2020-21

371

2.07%

FY 2019-20

696.3

1304

DEBT RAISE

FY 2021-22

1304

FY 2021-22

652

FY 2020-21

668

FY 2020-21

385.39

FY 2019-20

1,624

FY 2019-20

729.20

DISBURSEMENT GROWTH

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

(INR CRORES)

652

(INR CRORES)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1,728
1,569

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

FY 2021-22
FY 2020-21
FY 2019-20

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

(INR CRORES)

1

HUMAN RESOURCES

OUR PEOPLE - OUR ENABLERS OF GROWTH

The pandemic completely transformed the workplace dynamics and in the new normal, we were faced with
contemporary challenges like changed work-life balance expectations and focus on efciencies. The pandemic
also brought focus on eliminating the infodemic, adjusting to crossover work environments, and de-stressing. We
were successful in ensuring the well-being of our people and keeping their morale high through an unprecedented
level of engagement initiatives and connect programs. We used a variety of communication tools - like monthly
newsletters, employee Radio, monthly town halls, daily email, HRMS and daily WhatsApp communication for
building connections with all our employees spread across 311 branches.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

AYE CARE

Financial Medical Employee
well-being well-being Engagement

FOR AYETIANS-DELHI NCR

While lockdown and news of layoffs were creating anxieties for nancial well-being, we provided stability to our
people by ensuring zero jobs or pay cuts, timely payouts of bonuses and increments, sponsoring the vaccinations of
our teams, and launching R&R programs that recognized the additional efforts that were required to deliver in the
unusual circumstances. During the second COVID wave, we extended medical and health support to our teams and
provided a doctor-on-call facility along with free medical consultation in partnership with Medibuddy for their
entire families. We stocked each zone with oxygen concentrators to address the shortage and rolled out an
insurance scheme in addition to the existing health insurance program to cover employees extra cover during times
of medical crises.
Our focus on ensuring the mental, physical and nancial welfare of our people resulted in our employees rating us
highly once again in the GPTW Survey and we were ranked 2nd Best Place to Work in India and 4th Best Place to
Work in Asia.
Being in the service business, the way we develop our employees makes the difference between a good and an
extraordinary business. And today when Aye is recognized as a leader in transforming micro enterprises lending
in India, we have no doubt that it is because of the hard work and exemplary service our employees have
delivered to our chosen customer segment of grassroots businesses.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COVID-19 VACCINATION DRIVE

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

1
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

We have made deliberate efforts to create an environment where employees feel an integral part of Aye by
ensuring equity, building a culture of belongingness, and valuing everyone’s uniqueness. And this year it was
critical to add well-being to this list to ensure we support our teams' tide through this once-in-a-century health
emergency.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Harnessing the capabilities of micro-enterprises through non-nancial guidance & support
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

FAME’s CSR interventions leverage the unique skills and knowledge that arise from our business of lending to
micro-enterprises based on cluster insights and has launched customized programs in the Dairy, Kirana, Sports
Manufacturing, and Shoes Manufacturing clusters. Through these cluster-specic interventions, FAME is bridging
the gap between the aspirations and opportunities available to the micro-entrepreneurs. FAMEs methodology has
been to go deep instead of spreading its resources across too many programs. This has helped build condence in
the Foundation’s ability to execute programs successfully and create a deeper and lasting impact on the lives of
the beneciaries touched by our programs.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Social Good has been Aye’s core value since its inception and upholding this value became critical this year when
micro-entrepreneurs were going through an unprecedented disruption to their businesses. Aye through its not-forprot arm FAME (Foundation For Advancement of Micro Enterprises) has been supporting grassroots businesses
since 2019 and this year the Foundation worked with over 25000 unorganized businesses and provided them
non-nancial support in the areas of product development, market development, skilling, and capacity building.

Kirana

While FAME is one among a large number of entities focused on creating social uplift and delivering a positive
impact in the world, its focus on the unique problem of micro businesses truly differentiates us in the way it intends
to create impact. The impact our young foundation is creating has already started to be recognized and this year
FAME was judged the “Best Livelihood Enhancement Mission” at the CSR Times Summit.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Kartik is a Co-Founder and the Managing Partner of Aspada
Investment Advisors and also acts as the fund advisor for
the SONG Fund through Aspada Capital Advisors. Prior,
he was with Lightspeed Venture Partners, a global venture
capital rm where he was a founding member of the India
ofce. He was a management consultant with Mckinsey
and Company. He is a graduate of the Indian Institute of
Technology (IIT), Madras. Kartik, currently serves on the
Boards of SV Agri, Classklap, Capital Float Em3, Waycool
Foods and Ummeed Housing nance.

KARTIK SRIVATSA
NOMINEE DIRECTOR
ASPADA INVESTMENT ADVISORS

Vivek joined ELEVATION CAPITAL in 2001.
Prior to this, he was the Head in the India Contact Centres
for Dell Inc. In the past, he has served as the CFO for
Standard Chartered and the Wholesale Bank at and
Grindlays India. Vivek holds a degree in Chemical Engineering
from BITS Pilani and a MBA from the University of Iowa.

VIVEK MATHUR
NOMINEE DIRECTOR
ELEVATION CAPITAL
Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

MANAGING DIRECTOR

2
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

SANJAY SHARMA

Sanjay Sharma heads the management of the
organization. He has worked in Consumer Banking for
over 34 years. He pioneered the start of direct banking
channels in HSBC and HDFC Bank in India. Led the
operations and service team that launched consumer
lending business at ICICI in 1999. Headed the Credit
Cards at ICICI. Led the Life Insurance Underwriting
Claims. Operations and service teams at Max New York
Life Insurance Co. Set up Tamweel plc in 2003 and grew
ut to become the largest housing nance company in
UAE with over USD 3bn in mortgage assets. Awards- the
Best Mortgage Bank from Banker Middle East and 4th
most admired Financial Institution in the Region by Gulf
Business. He is an Alumnus of IIT- Mumbai (1983) and
IIM- Bangalore (1987)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Sumiran joined CapitalG in 2015. Prior to CapitalG,
Sumiran worked with a Providence Equity Partners where
he focused on growth and private equity investments in the
technology and media sectors. Sumiran holds a B.A.
from Dartmouth College.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

SUMIRAN DAS
NOMINEE DIRECTOR
CAPITAL G

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Kaushik is a Partner at A91 Partners, a venture capital focused on
growth stage companies. Previously, he was Head of India
Investments at CapitalG (formerly Google Capital) where he
focused on technology and nancial services businesses. At
CapitalG, he led investments in Aye Finance, Cardekho, Freshworks
and Cuemath. He was previously at Sequoia Capital India and
McKinsey & Co.
He is an alumnus of Harvard Business School and IIT Madras.

KAUSHIK ANAND
NOMINEE DIRECTOR
A91

Navroz serves as the Chief Executive Ofcer,
Co-Founder, and Partnet at Alpha Wave Global, LP.
Mr. Udwadia was a Partner at Elon Park Capital
Management, L.P., specializing in emerging markets. He
serves as Director of Ver se’ Innovation Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Udawadia is a Rhodes Scholar.

NAVROZ UDWADIA
NOMINEE DIRECTOR
ALPHA WAVE GLOBAL
16
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VINAY BAIJAL
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mr. N. K Maini has 38 years’ experience in Commercial
and Development Banking in various facets of nancing
MSMEs and Large Corporate, Micro Credit and Core
Business functions. Mr. Navin Kumar Maini was a Deputy
Managing Director, In-charge of the Small Industries
Development Bank of India (SIDBI), the premier nancial
institution for micro, small and medium entreprises
(MSMEs) of India. He has retired as DMD in-charge of
SIDBI in Februray, 2015. He has also served on the Board
and also Chairman, of SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd. ,
SIDBI Trustee Company Ltd. , India SME Asset
Reconstruction Company Ltd. and India SME
Technology Services Ltd. , Credit Guarantee Trust for
Micro and Small Entreprises.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

2
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

PROF. KANIKA
TANDON BHAL

Professor Kanika Tandon Bhai is Modi Chair Professor
at the Department of Management Studies at IIT Delhi.
A Ph.D from IIT Kanpur and a visitng fellows at Solan
School of Management, she is an expert in behavioural
sciences in general and leadership, culture and ethics
and has done sponsered research for several nationally
and internationally funded (with Fordham University and
Wharton Business School projects. Besides being a
consultant ton various organizations like Fifth Central
Pay Commision of India. DRDO, UPSC, DRGS&D,
Ministry of Rural Development, NICD and Ministry of
Environment of Forests, she is invited as an expert on
Government Committiees and is a member of the
Academy of Management, USA, Society for Industrial
Organization and Psychology and Global Institue of
Flexible Systems Management.

N.K MAINI
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Vinay Baijaal is a distinguished professional having
served as CGM at RBI where he has led various
initiatives. As Chief General Manager, Foreign Exchange
Department, in RBI, dealt with policy framing and
implementation of EXCHANGE CONTROL IN INDIA.
Also worked on drafting of FEMA and Rules and Regulation
under FEMA. He set up Banking Codes and Standards Board
of India, as rst CEO, for banks in India. He was a member
of the World Bank Task Force on International Standards
on Credit Data Reporting and was a part of
the National Core Committee to deal with FATF
Assesment of India in 2009.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

DIRECTORS REPORT
To the Members of Aye Finance Private Limited

2
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 29 thAnnual Report together with the Audited
Accounts of the Company for the Year ended March 31, 2022.
BACKGROUND
Aye Finance Private Limited (“AFPL” or “the Company”) is a Non Deposit Accepting Non-Banking
Finance Company holding a Certicate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The
Company is engaged in the business to provide nance whether short or long term loan or working
capital nance to micro, small and medium scale enterprises, proprietorship or partnership rms.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, STATE OF AFFAIRS
The Company’s nancial performance for the year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized below:

Amount (in Rupees crores)
31st March 2022
31st March 2021
431.92
495.27
11.57
4.15
443.49
499.42
175.76
158.55
121.10
9.97
45.52
510.90
(67.41)
(21.69)
(45.72)

141.44
235.15
55.06
9.29
35.20
476.14
23.28
6.39
16.89

(14.74)
(14.74)

5.58
5.51

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue
Expenses
Employee benet expenses
Finance costs
Impairment on Financial Assets
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses
Prot before tax
Tax Expenses
Prot after tax
Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

OPERATIONS, FUND RAISE, PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS
Operational Highlights
The Net loan portfolio of the Company stood at Rs.1,687.71 crores as on March 31, 2022.
Loan amount of Rs.1,303 crores was disbursed in FY 2021-22 representing an increase
of 95% as compared to FY 2020-21.
The Company has operations spread across 311 branches set up in 18 States/ Union Territories.
During the Financial Year under review, the Company saw net loss after tax of Rs.45.72 crores as
compared to prot of Rs.16.89 crores for the year ended March 31, 2021. Total income has decreased
from Rs.499.42 crores for the year ended March 31, 2021 to Rs.443.49 crores for the year ended
March 31, 2022.
The Company has Long term Credit Rating maintained at India Ratings A- Stable and ICRA BBB+ Stable.

18

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Fund raised during FY 2021-22Resource mobilisation-

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

During the year under review, your company has continued to diversify the sources of funds and raised a sum of
Rs.652 crores by way of short-term loans, long-term loans, issue of Non-Convertible Debentures, External
Commercial Borrowings which has helped the Company to achieve its business target for FY 21-22. Out of overall
borrowings, Company has raised funds through issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures, has successfully
completed Non-Convertible Debentures issuance during FY 2021-22 raising Rs. 237.22 crores. The aggregate
debt outstanding as on 31st March, 2022 was Rs.1,520.74 crores. The Company has been regular in servicing all
its debt obligations.

2

Bank Finance -

Impact off Covid-19
Consequent to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian government announced a lockdown in March
2020. Subsequently, the national lockdown was lifted by the government for certain activities in a phased manner
outside specied containment zones, but regional lockdowns/restrictions continued to be implemented in areas
with a signicant number of COVID-19 cases.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic, including the current “second wave” that had signicantly increased
the number of cases in India, continueed to impact the Company's operations and estimates related to Impairment
of assets including loans to customers, will depend on future developments, including, among other things, any new
information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its
impact whether government-mandated or elected by the Company.
Company's Prospects, Future Plans and Business Overview
Given the pandemic the current macro-economic outlook might be colored with pessimism, however, we believe in
the inherent potential in the Indian economy and its nancial ecosystem to grow and thrive in a post pandemic
world.
For the Covid-19, Aye Finance has a thought-out plan to continue to operate successfully through the
challenges posed by the pandemic.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The impact of COVID-19, including changes in customer behavior and pandemic fears, as well as restrictions on
business and individual activities, has led to signicant volatility in global and Indian nancial markets and a
signicant decrease in global and local economic activities. The slowdown during the year led to a decrease in
loan originations, and collection efciency.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Bank Finance remains an important source of funding for your Company. Banks continued their support to your
Company. As of March 31, 2022, borrowings from banks were Rs.207 crores as against Rs.166.75 crores in the
previous nancial year.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Customer – During this time of crisis, it is important to stay in touch with customers and help them in whatever
way we can to navigate through these tough times. Given our strong IT infrastructure back end, we have enabled
our people to be actively in touch with the customers.

The Company has taken essential steps to ensure efcient work- place and moved meetings, training, etc. to virtual
formats. The Company had proactively initiated the work from home as per the directions issued by the
Government of India/ State Governments, at all its ofce locations in India.

Liquidity –The Company has maintained sufcient liquidity Rs. 377.06 Crores as on March 31, 2022. The
liquidity position of the Company is adequate for meeting its future debt obligations and business requirement for
around 6 months.

Future plan and outlook – we remain cautiously optimistic.
In the immediate term, whereas there would be an impact on the overall nancial sector and MSMEs lenders in
particular; we at Aye Finance are reasonably condent to overcome the challenges given our experienced
management team, focused eld staff, robust processes and supportive nanciers.
In the long term, we would like to be in a state of preparedness for the post Covid-19 world and would be ready
to support and partner with our customers to help them face new business realities. We remain rmly bullish and
committed to India's potential and growth story.
RESERVE
The Company is required to create a statutory reserve under Section of 45IC of RBI Act, 1934 and transfer therein
a sum not less than 20% of its net prot every year as disclosed in the prot and loss account and before any
dividend is declared. During FY 21-22, the Company had no prots and hence no amount was transferred to
statutory reserve. An amount of Rs. 4.05 Crores has been transferred to Share option outstanding account during
FY 21-22.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credit Quality – We conducted an internal assessment of the potential impact of Covid-19 on our clusters.
Based on this assessment, we devised granular interdepartmental strategies to coordinate the Distribution, Credit
and Collections and Customer Service teams to achieve optimal roll-down rates of repayment dues. Further, we
reached out to our customers and informed them about the benets of continuous payment and costs of
moratorium, so that they could take an informed decision.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

All staff and employees have been briefed regarding safety measures to be followed. There are regular
communications and awareness programs from the Culture & Talent Management Team to all the employees
encouraging them to adopt safe practices and follow the prescribed circulars/ guidelines/ advisories of the
government to contain the spread of COVID -19 via emails and other means of communications.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Employees – The Company has devised a holistic approach to navigate the proposed issues brought on by the
coronavirus pandemic and subsequent lockdowns. This included reworking targets and shifting focus from
disbursement to collection - temporarily. This was done as part of an intent to adapt to new changes. The essence
of this action plan was two pronged - developing a Business Continuity Plan, and referencing a Wellness Wheel,
aimed at securing certain signicant indications of fullment and safety that would in turn benet business.
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DIVIDEND
During the year under review, the company has experienced a Loss after Tax of Rs. 45.72 crores. Therefore, the
Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for FY 2021-22.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Our Company is a Non-Deposit accepting Non-Banking Finance Company and has not accepted any public
deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any public deposits during the year under review.

The risk management framework covers integrated risk management mainly comprising Credit Risk, Market Risk,
Operational Risk, Regulatory Risk and Information Technology Risk. The Credit Risk management structure includes
documented credit policies and procedures for each nancial product. The risk policies dene prudential limits,
portfolio criteria, exceptional approval metrics, etc. and cover risk assessment for new product offerings.
Concentration Risk is managed by diversifying into different geographies and sectors.

The Company has a Risk Committee which meets once every quarter to assess the risk appetite of the Company
and to review the risk prole of the organization to ensure that risk is not higher than the risk appetite determined
by the board.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
The Company's internal control system is designed to ensure operational efciency, protection and conservation of
resources, accuracy and promptness in nancial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The internal
control system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the adequacy and efcacy of the
Company's internal controls, including its systems and processes and compliance with regulations and procedures.
The Company's internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature and operations of the Company.
Your Company has in place strong internal audit processes and systems which design an audit plan to ensure
optimum portfolio quality and keep risks at bay. Internal Audit department takes care of internal control
processes. There is a risk based audit methodology covering all key functions of the company, planned based on
various risk based parameters. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, comprising of Independent
Directors, periodically reviews the internal audit reports, covering ndings, adequacy of internal controls, and
ensure compliances. The Audit Committee also meets the Company's Statutory Auditors to ascertain their views on
the nancial statements, including the nancial reporting system, compliance to accounting policies and
procedures, adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls and systems followed by the Company.
Information System Security controls enable the Company to keep a check on technology-related risks and also
improve business efciency and distribution capabilities. Your Company is committed to invest in IT systems,
including back-up systems, to improve the operational efciency, customer service and decision-making process.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Risks associated with frauds are mitigated through fraud risk monitoring procedures. The company has a strong
eld vigilance function that ensures checks and balances at the eld level with respect to end use of loans,
adherence to policies and sourcing practices. Fraud risk is monitored through oversight by senior management,
who review matters relating to fraud risk, including corrective and remedial actions as regards people and
processes.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is an integral part of the Company's business strategy. The risk management process is governed
by the enterprise-wide risk management framework which is overseen by the senior management. They review
compliance with risk policies, monitor risk tolerance limits, review and analyze risk exposure related to specic
issues and provides oversight of risk across the organization.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As on 31st March, 2022, authorized Capital of the Company was Rs. 34.60 Crores, Issued, Subscribed and fully
Paid-up capital was Rs. 30.45 crores.
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MATERIAL EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the nancial position of the Company, which has
occurred between the end of the nancial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2022 and the date of this report.

In FY 2021-22, FAME focused on two important areas: a) Building marketing management skills to enhance
livelihood of unorganized micro businesses in small towns b) Improving the effectiveness of dairy farming in rural
and semi urban locations.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Based on the framework of internal nancial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the
Company, work performed by the internal and statutory and the external consultants and the reviews performed
by Management and the relevant Committees, including the Board is of the opinion that the Company's internal
nancial controls were adequate and effective during nancial year 2021-22.
Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge and
ability, conrm that:
(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures.
(ii)the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the nancial year and of the prot and loss of the company for that period.
(iii)the directors had taken proper and sufcient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities.
(iv)the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis
(v)the Directors had laid down internal nancial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
nancial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

22

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As per the requirement of Rule 8 of the Companies Corporate Social Responsibilities Rules, 2014 the Annual
Report on CSR is annexed as Annexure - B to this report.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy Rules 2014, the Company has established the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The
Board adopted the CSR Policy, formulated and recommended by the CSR Committee, and the same is available at
(http://ayen.com/policies).
During the period under review, the Company has contributed Rs.1.04 Crores to Foundation for Micro Enterprises
(FAME) which is a not-for-prot company, within the meaning of Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile
Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956), was incorporated in India on April 4, 2019. FAME carries out CSR
activities under the direction and policy on CSR adopted by Aye Finance Private Limited in line with the schedule VII
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company primarily focuses on projects or programs that include promoting and
development of (a) Livelihoods, (b) Rural development
(c) Skill development (d) and benet of the socially weaker section

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
Statement related to Subsidiary Company has been given in Form AOC-1 in Annexure – A forming part of this
Report. Further the Company has neither any Associates nor any Joint Ventures as on March 31, 2022.
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AUDITORS & AUDITORS' REPORT

The Auditors' Report for the nancial year 2021-22 does not contain any qualication, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer. Further, there were no instances of any fraud reported by the Statutory Auditor to the Board
pursuant to Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS u/s 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
No such case has been reported by the Auditors u/s 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 in their report. However
during the year under review, 4(Four) instances of fraud has been reported by the Company to Reserve Bank of
India in compliances with the RBI norms on monitoring and reporting of Frauds.
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors met 6 times during the year under review. The meetings were held on following dates-

Sr. No.
1.
2.
3.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Meeting date
Jun 25, 2021
Sep 24, 2021
Nov 13, 2021

Sr. No.
4.
5.
6.

Meeting date
Dec 14, 2021
Feb 12, 2022
Mar 18, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board has placed on record its sincere appreciation for the services rendered by M/s. Brajesh Kumar &
Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Secretarial Auditors & their Report:
In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. Brajesh
Kumar & Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the nancial year 2021-22
in its meeting dated August 12, 2022.The Company has provided all the assistance and the facilities to the
Secretarial Auditors for conducting the Secretarial Audit. Secretarial Audit Report as provided by the Secretarial
Auditors is also annexed to this Report, in the prescribed Form MR-3, as Annexure C. The Secretarial Audit Report
does not contain any qualication, reservation, adverse remarks, or disclaimer.

2
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Statutory Auditors & their reports
M/s S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004
have been appointed on the recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of Director's (in conformity with
the provisions of Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies Audit and Auditors
Rules, 2014 including any amendments thereto), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years
from the conclusion of 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of 30th Annual General
Meeting.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Vikram Jetley (DIN- 06530212) resigned as Director from the Board of the
Company with effect from 1st January 2022. Mr. Ashish Sharma, Chief Financial Ofcer of the Company also
resigned from his ofce with effect from April 16, 2021 and Mr. Mayank Shyam Thatte was appointed in his place
with effect from 25th June 2021.
Disclosure under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached herewith as Annexure D.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION “CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENCE U/S 149(6) FROM INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS
The Board has Independent Directors and there is an appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge in
the Board to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. The Independent Directors have
submitted disclosure that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of Companies
Act, 2013

2
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The Board of Directors, along with the Committees of the Board, provides leadership and guidance to the
Company's Management and directs, supervises and controls the activities of the Company. As on March 31,
2022, The Board of Directors of your Company consists of total nine Directors.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
24
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
As at year end, the Board of Directors of the Company has following committees:
2

Audit Committee

Risk Committee

Members
Mr. Vinay Baijal, Committee Chairman
Mr. Navin Kumar Maini, Member
Mr. Sanjay Sharma, Member
Mr. Navin Kuma Maini, Committee Chairman
Mr. Vinay Baijal, Member
Mr. Sanjay Sharma, Member

Asset and Liabilities Committee Mr. Sanjay Sharma, Committee Chairman
(ALCO)
Mr. Vivek Mathur, Director

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Type of Committee

Mr. Mayank Shyam Thatte, Chief Financial ofcer
Mr. Navroz Darius Udwadia, Director

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO
Ms. Kanika Tandon Bhal, Committee Chairperson
Mr. Navin Kumar Maini, Member
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa, Member
Mr. Kaushik Anand, Member

Corporate Social Responsibility

Mr. Kanika Tandon Bhal, Committee Chairperson

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Ujual George, Chief Risk Ofcer

Mr. Sanjay Sharma, Member
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa, Member
Mr. SanjaySharma, Committee Chairman
Mr. Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO
Mr. Mayank Shyam Thatte, Chief Financial ofcer
Mr. Aman Chauhan, DVP Finance

Information Technology
Steering Committee

Information Technology
Strategy Committee

Mr. Pradeep Soni, AVP Finance
Mr. Sanjay Sharma, Committee Chairman
Mr. Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO
Mr. Ujual George, Chief Risk Ofcer
Mr. Mayank Shyam Thatte, Chief Financial ofcer
Mr. Piyush Maheshwari, Vice President 2 Credit
Mr. Vinod Kumar, Information security Manager
Mr. Niraj Kaushik, Chief Credit Ofcer
Mr. Gaurav Khurana -Chief Technology Ofcer
Mr. Ravinder Oberoi-Head of Audit & Vigilance
Mr. Ankur Sharma, Head HR
Mr. Tarun Nagpal,ZBH- North1
Mr. Mayank Mathur - Head Operations and Service
Quality
Mr. Akash Purswani, Head- Collection
Mr. Tejamoy Ghosh – Head DSAI
Mr. Sovan Satyaprakash – Head Strategy
Deepak Prajapati, AVP - IT Infrastructure
Mr. Neeraj Sachdev – Head Administration
Mr. Navin Kumar Maini, Independent Director
Chairman
Mr. Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO
Mr. Ujual George, Chief Risk Ofcer
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Mayank Shyam Thatte, Chief Financial ofcer
Niraj Kaushik, Chief Credit Ofcer
GauravKhurana -Chief Technology Ofcer
Sanjay Sharma, Managing Director and CEO
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Working Committee of ALCO

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

COMPLIANCE
The Company has complied and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations and guidelines issued
by RBI such as Capital Adequacy, Net Owned Funds, provisioning for Non-Performing Assets and for
Standard Assets, Concentration of Credit and Investment, lings, etc. The Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”) of
the Company was 36.03% as on March 31, 2022.
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
The Company has seen successful implemented Lead Management, Loan Origination, Collection Management,
Navision ERP and Data Warehouse systems. The company has also adopted the policies as per the RBI mater
directions applicable on Systemically Important NBFCs. With new systems in place, the Company has achieved
seamless ow of data across various systems, making information ow faster, more robust and reliable. The
company has also set up the Data Science department.
The initiatives by Data Science and Articial Intelligence (DSAI) department are focusing on use cases to help
data-driven decision-making using data-insights, AI/ML models, and intelligent automation of processes. In
addition to a couple of initial projects including a machine learning model for behavioural scoring of customers.
The Company has also initiated working on streamlining and collating data from multiple systems and sources into
a coherent repository – a data lake which would be a key enabler infrastructure for many of the future DSAI
projects allowing seamless access to most of the data generated across the organization in a timely manner.
Your Company, being engaged in nancing business within the Country, does not have any activity relating to
technology absorption and export of materials, goods or services. The Directors, therefore, have nothing to report
on Technology absorption.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ENERGY CONSERVATION & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
The operations of the Company, being Financial Services related, require normal consumption of electricity. The
Company is taking every necessary step to reduce the consumption of energy. In view of the nature of activities
carried on by the Company, there is no capital investment on energy conservation equipment.
Your Company, being engaged in nancing business within the Country, does not have any activity relating to
conservation of energy. The Directors, therefore, have nothing to report on conservation of energy.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

POLICIES
VIGIL MECHANISM
Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. Accordingly, the
Board of Directors have formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with the provisions of Section
177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Specically, employees can raise concerns regarding any discrimination,
harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any instances of fraud by or
against your Company. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on website of the Company
(https://ayen.com/policies/).
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Company has adopted Nomination and Remuneration policy which looks after the company's policy on
directors' appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualications, positive attributes,
independence of a director etc. Nomination and remuneration policy of the Company is published on website of
the Company (https://ayen.com/policies/).
REGULATORY ACTION/APPROVAL
There are no signicant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and its operations of the Company in future.
COST RECORDS
Maintenance of cost records as specied by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable on the Company.
HUMAN RESOURCES
As on March 31, 2022 the company had 4837 permanent employees at its branches, Regional ofce and Head
ofce. The company recognizes the importance of human value and ensures that proper encouragement both
moral and nancial is extended to employees to motivate them. The company enjoyed excellent relationship with
workers and staff during the year under review.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The Company has NIL foreign exchange earnings during the year under review. The Company has incurred
following expenditure in foreign currency during the year under review.

88,38,948.40

Euro

AAV S.A.R.L.

11,11,080

Dollar

14,798.61

MASALA INVESTMENT S.A. R. L.

11,11,080

Dollar

14,798.61

IIV MICROFINANZFONDS
KAPSTADTRING HAMBURG
GERMANY

1,63,61,070.00

Euro

1,92,506

Consulting
Services
Consulting
Services
Interest on ECB

R E S P ON SA B I L I T Y F I
N A N C I A L I N C L U S I ON
INVESTMENTS2019D
ACC

1,12,37,795

Dollar

1,49,897

Interest on ECB

IIV MICROFINANZFONDS
KAPSTADTRING HAMBURG
GERMANY

80,15,063

Euro

95,100.42

Interest on ECB

Freshworks Inc
LINKEDIN SINGAPOREPTE LTD
Microvest Short Duration Fund LP
Freshworks Inc
Netherlands Development
Finance Company
IIV MICROFINANZFONDS
KAPSTADTRING HAMBURG
GERMANY

89,147
7,94,000
18,75,000
7,38,554
5,58,900.00

Dollar
Dollar
Dollar
Dollar
Dollar

1,170.21
10,454.88
25,000.00
9,952.21
7,500.00

IT Expenditure
Staff Recruitment
Upfront Fees
IT Expense
Monitoring Fees

4,67,73,227

Euro

1,91,150.56

Interest on ECB

R E S P ON SA B I L I T Y F I
N A N C I A L I N C L U S I ON
INVESTMENTS2019D
ACC

1,16,30,367

Dollar

1,56,554

Interest on ECB

There was no unhedged foreign currency exposure in the Company as on March 31st, 2022.
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IIV MICROFINANZFONDS
KAPSTADTRING HAMBURG
GERMANY

Foreign
Purpose of
Currency
payment
amount (FCY)
1,02,173
Interest on ECB
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Amount paid in Currency
INR
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Name of the Foreign Party
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In view of the Board approved Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the Independent Directors in their separate
meeting held on 30th March 2022 under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 had:
i. reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
ii. reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive and
non-executive Directors; and
iii. Assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of ow of information between the Company management and the
Board that was necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013
The particulars of Investments u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been furnished in Note 5 to the Financial
Statement forming part of this report. There was no loan given or Guarantee provided as covered under the
provision of Section 186 of the Act.
PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has put in place a policy for Related Party Transactions (RPT Policy), which has been approved by
the Board of Directors. The Policy provides for identication, necessary approvals by the Audit Committee/ Board,
reporting and disclosure requirements in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. All
transactions entered by the Company during the nancial year with related parties were on arms' length basis and
in the ordinary course of business. All such RPTs were placed before the Audit Committee/ Board for approval
wherever applicable.
Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related Parties on an arm's length basis with
respect to transactions as required under Section 188 (1) of the Act, in the prescribed Form No. AOC-2, is attached
as Annexure E.
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ANNUAL RETURN
Annual Return under Section 92(3) of the Act and the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, will
be published at website of the Company (https://ayen.com/nancial-statements/) post the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company.
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Further, in terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the performance evaluation process
of all the Independent and Non-Independent Directors of the Company were carried out by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on September 13, 2022 and made recommendation to the Board. The
Board took into consideration the recommendation received from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and completed the performance evaluation process. The entire performance evaluation process was completed to
the satisfaction of Board.
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors have formulated a policy for performance evaluation (same is covered
under the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company of its own performance, of various mandatory
Committees of the Board and of the individual Directors).

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
2

The Company has in place a robust policy on the prevention of sexual harassment in the workplace. The policy aims
at the prevention of harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines for identication, reporting, and
prevention of sexual harassment.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment-free workplace for every individual
working on the company's premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors
to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

There is an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual
harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the policy. During the year ended 31st March 2022, there was
no case reported to the committee and the same has been disposed of by the Committee.”
DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
Your Board of Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued support and
cooperation of the shareholders, bankers, various regulatory and government authorities and employees of the
Company. Your support as shareholders and members of the company is greatly valued for us. Board
acknowledges your continued association and support in the growth of the organization.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aye Finance Private Limited

Date: Sep 19, 2022

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Sd/Navin Kumar Maini
(Director)
Din: 00419921
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Sd/Sanjay Sharma
(Managing Director)
Din: 03337545
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ANNEXURE-A
Form AOC-1
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(Pursuant to rst proviso to sub -section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the nancial statement of
subsidiaries/associatecompanies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs.)

2.

Particulars
Name of the subsidiary

5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

Reserves & surplus
Total assets
Total Liabilities
Investments
Turnover
Surplus before taxation
Provision for taxation
Surplus after taxation
Proposed Dividend
% of shareholding

3.

N.A.
Authorised Share Capital-INR
1,00,00,000
Issued Paid up and subscribed 25,00,000
INR 31.34
INR 61.56
INR 61.56
NA
NA
INR 24.50
INR 0.18
INR 24.32
NA
100%

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different
from the holding company’s reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
Share capital

Details
Foundation for Advancement of
Micro Enterprises
N.A.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Sl. No.
1.

30

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/JointVentures
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end
No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
Extend of Holding%

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

3. Description of how there is signicant inuence

Not Applicable

2
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Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies andJoint Ventures

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

For Aye Finance Private Limited

Sd/Sanjay Sharma
(Managing Director)
Din: 03337545

Date: Sep 19, 2022

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Sd/Navin Kumar Maini
(Director)
Din: 00419921
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6. Prot/Loss for the year
i.
Considered in Consolidation
ii.
Not Considered in Consolidation

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ANNEXURE-B
2

1.A brief outline of the CSR policy of the company:
Aye plans to empower and enable the micro enterprises through non-nancial guidance and support, so that they
may build a modern and vibrant commercial community that can compete in the world and thereby create value
for their customers, employees and owners. Aye's CSR activities will primarily focus on professionalizing micro
enterprises and improving quality of lives through social development projects.
Aye has incorporated FAME, a wholly owned Section 8 subsidiary. FAME has been set up for planning and
implementing the CSR activities and providing non-nancial support to the target beneciaries.

a. Fame's Dairy Development Program

b. Improving business operational skills of Manufacturing Sector:
Footwear Manufacturing- FAME in collaboration with CFTI - Ministry of MSME, conducts technical and nontechnical training sessions for the shoe artisans of Agra to support them in overcoming the beyond nancing
challenges and become their partner in growth. Along with training the shoe artisans on product development,
using new technology to advance their product quality, etc. FAME also conducts sessions on effective product
marketing to provide a holistic growth opportunity.
Sports goods manufacturing - FAME has launched a specialised program for the Sports Goods Manufacturing
cluster of Meerut. Started in collaboration with MSME-Technology Development Centre (PPDC) of the Ministry of
MSME, this program provides capacity building and skill enhancement training to the micro entrepreneurs
manufacturing cricket balls, footballs, and other sports equipment. The program delivers knowledge around three
key areas - Improving quality of products, enhancing marketing capabilities and improving compliance levels and
business documentation.
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Dairying has become an important secondary source of income for millions of rural families and has assumed the
most important role in providing employment and income generating opportunities, particularly for marginal and
women farmers. But the Indian Dairy Farmer continues to struggle with various challenges – disease and feed
management of their farm and sub optimal prots due to sub optimal scale being the gravest of their concerns.
FAME's Dairy Development Program that was launched in 2019, has been supporting the dairy farmers in
addressing these obstacles to their growth. During the year FAME expanded the reach of its programs from 3
districts to 7 bringing on board over 16000 dairy farmers who beneted from its agship program. Mentioned
below are the various interventions that FAME runs under its Dairy Development Program i. Reduce Expenditure on Farm Healthcare
ii. Reduce Expenses on Cattle Feed
iii. Create Additional Revenue Lines
iv. Making Dairy Famers Part of the Digital Revolution

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

During the Financial Year 21-22 FAME ran the following programs for building the capabilities of the micro
entrepreneur segment –
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The Annual Report on CSR Activities for F.Y.21-22
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While access to affordable nance tops the list of obstacles, factors like gender discrimination, inaccessibility to
information, training opportunities, risk aversion by women, lack of condence, lack of vision, etc. also makes the
entrepreneurial journey more arduous for the women.

Women entrepreneurs are a strong agent of change and FAME will continue to build their skills as well as
condence to power their growth.
e. Community Development Programs:
FAME has a strong community development program under which it launches projects for the benet of
underserved communities:
Navrang - Carnival for School Children
FAME organised a carnival for the disabled and underprivileged children of Vishwas Vidyalaya. The carnival,
aptly named 'NAVRANG', was planned for these children who were returning to school after being conned to
their homes for two years because of the pandemic.
A full day of activities was set up for the kids, with Fun Game Stalls, Clown shows, Magic shows, Art and craft
center, Game (sports) center and much more.
Eye and health camps
Under its community development program, FAME organized health camps to provide free medical advice,
medicine to the members of the community and also organized specialized treatment surgery whenever it was
required. Our eld staff collaborated with medical establishments to provide free of cost health services to our
members and their families. Free eye check up camps and cataract surgeries have also been conducted in Agra
and Meerut and over 400 people benetted from them.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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FAME, cognizant of the hidden entrepreneurial potential of women and the challenges they face in realizing them,
has designed its interventions that work toward breaking down these hurdles becoming their partners in growth.
During the year FAME laid a strong foundation for the women-focused intervention and launched specialized
training programs and workshops that build their business skills as well as soft skills. Women-only capacitybuilding programs were organized for the dairy entrepreneurs, sports manufacturers, and Kirana owners who
were not comfortable attending the sessions with the men. FAME has also encouraged the women dairy farmers to
form groups and take the benet of collective purchasing and selling which improves their top and bottom lines.
On the occasion of International Women's Day, FAME organized skill development and cultural programs at each
of its locations which saw participation from over 1000 women entrepreneurs.
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d. Women Entrepreneurship:
Empowering women entrepreneurs is essential for achieving the goals of sustainable development, but they
continue to face challenges that are of different dimensions and magnitudes to that faced by their male
counterparts. This prevents them from realizing their potential as entrepreneurs and creating a transformative
change in the economy despite there being over 20% of grassroots businesses that are women-led in India.
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c. Empowering the growth and modernization of Small Kirana Stores:
FAME launched its Kirana Empowerment Program this year with the goal of empowering the Kirana owners and to
support them in improving their business management skills. FAME has on boarded subject matter experts (from the
FMCG Industry) that provide knowledge to our Kirana members on driving operational efciencies in their
business. During these capacity building sessions, FAME members (small Kirana store owners) are educated on the
benets of making small changes like attractive shelving of the products, customized product mix, etc. that can
boost sales and build customer loyalty. FAME has been facilitating access to economical sources of nance for
those Kirana owners who need additional capital for bringing about these changes in their stores. The training
covers various aspects of running a successful grocery store - inventory management, shelf management,
accounting, building customer loyalty, digitizing payments etc.
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2. The Composition of the CSR Committee Designation/Nature
Sr.
Name of Director
No.
of Directorship

Ms. Kanika Tandon Bhal
Mr. Sanjay Sharma
Mr. Kartik Srivatsa

Independent Director
Managing Director
Director

02
02
02

Number of
meetings of CSR
Committee
attended during
the year
02
02
02
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i.
ii.
iii.

Number of CSR
committee held
during the year
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3. Web-link of the Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company.
CSR Policy
CSR Project.
4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014- Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the nancial yearNot Applicable

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Average net prot of the company for last three nancial years- INR 32.41 Crores
7. (a) Two percent of average net prot of the company as per section 135(5)- INR 0.65 Crores (b)Surplus
arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous nancial years- N.A.
(c)Amount required to be set off for the nancial year, if any- N.A.
(d)Total CSR obligation for the nancial year: INR 0.65 Crores
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the nancial year: INR 0.75 Crores

Total Amount Spent
for the Financial
Year. (in Crores.)

INR 0.75 Crores

Amount Unspent (in Crores.)
Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund
specied under Schedule VII as per
second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount

Date of
Transfer

Name of
the Fund

Amount

Date of
transfer

-

-

-

-

-
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the nancial year:
(1)

(2)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Item
from
the list of
activities
in
Schedule
VII to
the Act.

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

Duration
Location
of the
project(State
and District)

(8)

(9)

Amount
allocated
for the
project
(in Rs.)

Amount
spent in
the
current
nancial
Year (in
Rs.).

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR
Account
for the
project
as per
Section
135(6) (in
Rs.)

Improving
effectiveness of
Dairy Farming in
Rural and Semi –
urban locations

Covered

Yes

Ongoing 75,00,000 57,58,000
Meerut,
Mathura,
Bulandshahr,
Modinagar,
Hapur in
Uttar
Pradesh)
and
Bharatpur Rajasthan

ii.

Building marketing
management and
technical skills to
enhance livelihood
of unorganized
micro businesses in
small towns Footwear program

Covered

Yes

Agra
(Uttar
Pradesh)

Ongoing

7,90,000

6,80,000

iii.

Building marketing
management and
technical skills to
enhance livelihood
of unorganized
micro businesses in
small towns Sportsgoods
program

Covered

Yes

Meerut
(Uttar
Pradesh)

Ongoing

7,00,000

3,59,000

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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i.

2
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(7)
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Sl.No Name of the
Project

(3)
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the nancial year:
(Continued)
(1)

(2)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Item
from
the list of
activities
in
Schedule
VII to
the Act.

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

Duration
Location
of the
project(State
and District)

(8)

(9)

Amount
allocated
for the
project
(in Rs.)

Amount
spent in
the
current
nancial
Year (in
Rs.).

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR
Account
for the
project
as per
Section
135(6) (in
Rs.)

Building marketing
management and
technical skills to
enhance livelihood
of unorganized
micro businesses in
small towns - Kirana
development
program

Covered

Yes

Agra,
Ongoing 5,00,000
Bulandshar,
Meerut,
Hapur
(Uttar
Pradesh)

2,49,000

v.

Community
development and
Volunteer
engagement
program

Covered

Yes

Meerut,
Mathura,
Bulandshahr,
Modinagar,
Hapur in
Uttar
Pradesh)
and
Bharatpur Rajasthan

117,000

vi.

Additional Social
Projects undertaken
during the year

1,20,000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iv.

2
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(7)
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Sl.No Name of the
Project

(3)

Total

36
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(10)

(11)

Mode of
Implementation
(Direct -Yes/No)

Mode of Implementation Through Implementing
Agency

2

Name

Yes

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Sr.
No.

CSR
Registration
No.

Self

(1) (2)
Sl. Name of
No. the
Project

(4)
Local area
(Yes/No).

(5)
Location
of the
project(State
and District)

(6)
(7)
Amount spent Mode of
for the project implementation
on- Direct
(in Rs.).
(Yes/No)

(d) Amount spent in administrative overheads: Rs.3,86, 000/(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year: INR 75,10,000/(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

(8)
Mode of
implementation
Through
implementing
agency
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(3)
Item
from the
list of
activities
in
schedule
VII to
the Act.
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(c)Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the nancial year: NA
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9.(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three nancial years: N.A.
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the nancial year for ongoing projects of the preceding nancial
year: N.A.
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the nancial year (asset-wise details): Not Applicable.
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net prot as
per section 135(5)- Not Applicable
By Order of the Board
For Aye Finance Private Limited
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Sd/Vinay Baijal
(Chairperson of CSR Committee)
DIN: 07516339

Sd/Sanjay Sharma
(Director)
DIN: 03337545

Date: Sep 19, 2022
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
38
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ANNEXURE-C

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
AYE Finance Private Limited M-5, Magnum House-I, Community Centre, Karampura,
New Delhi-110015

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Based on our verication of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms, website and returns led and
other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the Company , its ofcer
(Company Secretary), agents, authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the
explanations and clarications given to us. We hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the nancial year ended on 31st March 2022 generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other records maintained by
the Company for the nancial year ended on 31st March 2022 according to the provisions of:
(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to extent of
Indirect Foreign Direct Investment.
(v)The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act'):(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011; (Not Applicable)
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015; (Not
Applicable)
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; (Not Applicable, the company not issue)
(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares Based Employee Benet Regulation), 2014;
(e)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(f)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable as the company not registered
as Registrars or Shares Transfer Agents).
(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and (Not
Applicable as no reporting events during period under review)
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We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and corporate
practices adhered by Aye Finance Private Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022
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(vi) the other laws and regulations applicable on the company are mentioned below:
(a.) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(b.) Specic requirement for NBFC under RBI Acts, Regulations, Directions,
Notications and amendments from time to time by RBI.
(c.) Specic provision of Labour Law
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.
We further report that:

Adequate notice was given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance other than those held on short notice and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decisions are carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes. (There were no dissenting views and all the resolutions were passed unanimously.)
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines. (At Present, the Company Secretary monitors compliance under Compliance Department)
We further report that during the audit period the company has issue of debentures through private placement,
etc.
Place: Delhi
Date: 09/09/2022
UDIN:

Brajesh Kumar & Associates
Company Secretary
Sd/Brajesh Kumar
FCS No.: 6965, CP No.:7497
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The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, NonExecutive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and
General Meetings.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited or Stock Exchange(s),if applicable;
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable as no
reporting events in the Company during period under review)
(i) Other regulation as applicable and (Circular and Guideline issue therein)
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ANNEXURE-D

Remarks
FY 2021-22:
· Managing Director -61
· Whole-time Director -NA

2.

Percentage increase in remuneration* of each director,
Chief Financial Ofcer, Chief Executive Ofcer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the nancial
year;

3.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration* of
employees in the nancial year;

FY 2020-21 to FY 2021-22:
· Managing Director -43%
· Whole-time Director -NA
· Chief Financial ofcer-18%
· Company Secretary-0%
7.45%

4.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of
company
Average percentage increase in the salaries of
employees other than the managerial personnel in the
last nancial year and its comparison with the
percentage increase in the managerial remuneration
and justication thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances
for increase in the
m anagerial remuneration;

5.

4833 as on 31st March 2022
Average percentage increase
in the salaries of:
· employees other than the
managerial personnel –
7.45%
· managerial personnel –
21% (Market
aligned
correction for managerial
personnel)
The Board has adopted a
Nomination and Remuneration
policy of the Company. The
remuneration
given
to
Managing Director, Wholetime Director, Chief Financial
Ofcer and Company Secretary
are in conrmation with their
contract of employment.

6.

Afrmation that the remuneration* is as per the
remuneration policy of the company

7.

Names of the top ten employees in terms of
remuneration drawn and the name of every
employee, who · if employed throughout the nancial year, was
Nil
in receipt of remuneration for that year which,
in the aggregate, was not less than one crore
and two lakh rupees;
· if employed for a partof the nancial year, was Nil
in receipt of remuneration for any part of that
year, at a rate which, in the aggregate,was not
less than eight lakh and fty thousand
rupees per month;
· if employed throughout the nancial year or Nil

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Particulars
The ratio of the remuneration* of each director to the
median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the nancial year
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Sr. No.
1.

2
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Disclosures in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
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Sr. No.

Remarks

2
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Particulars
part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in
that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case
may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in
excess of that drawn by the managing director
or whole -time director or manager and holds
by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, not less than two
percent of the equity shares of the company.
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* Remuneration for this calculation includes Annualised Fixed Annual Cash Salary and Annual
bonus

For Aye Finance Private Limited

Sd/Navin Kumar Maini
(Director)
Din: 00419921

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sd/Sanjay Sharma
(Managing Director)
Din: 03337545
Date: Sep 19, 2022
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ANNEXURE-E
FORM NO. AOC -2

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction
under third proviso thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.
There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company has entered into
transactions with related parties at arm's length basis, the details of which are given in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.
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There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended March 31, 2022, which
were not at arm's length basis
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

2

For Aye Finance Private Limited

Date: Sep 19, 2022

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Sd/- Navin Kumar Maini
(Director)
Din: 00419921

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sd/-Sanjay Sharma
Managing Director
Din:03337545

Audited Financial
Report
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
3

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Aye Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matter – Assessment of COVID 19 Impact
We draw attention to Note 54 to the nancial statements, which describes the uncertainty continuing to be caused
by COVID 19 pandemic and related events impacting the Company’s operations and estimates related to
impairment of assets, which are dependent on future developments regarding the severity and duration of the
pandemic. Our opinion is not modied in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in our audit of the
nancial statements for the nancial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the nancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fullled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the nancial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
nancial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying nancial statements.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the nancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the nancial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the nancial statements.
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Opinion
We have audited the accompanying nancial statements of Aye Finance Private Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Prot and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the nancial statements, including a summary of signicant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
nancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss including other comprehensive
income, its cash ows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
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S.R BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
3
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S.R BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
(a) Impairment of loans as at the balance sheet date (expected credit losses)
(as described in note 2.18 of the Ind AS nancial statements)

Additional consideration
COVID-19

·

Considered the Company's accounting
policies for impairment of loans and
assessed compliance with the policies in
terms of Ind AS 109: Financial
Instruments and the governance
framework approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of
India guidelines issued on March 13,
2020, (“the RBI Guidelines ”).

·

Read and assessed the Company ’s
policy with respect to one-time
restructuring offered to customers
pursuant to the “Resolution Framework
– 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 related
stress of Individuals and Small
Businesses ” issued by RBI on May 5,
2021 and tested the implementation of
such policy on a sample basis.

·

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by
understanding the process of ECL
estimation and related assumptions and
tested the controls around extraction,
validation and computation of the input
data used.

·

Assessed the criteria for staging of
loans based on their past-due status to
check compliance with requirement of
Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess
whether any SICR or loss indicators
were present requiring them to be
classied under stage 2 (i.e. default in
repayment is within the range of 31 to
90 days) or stage or 3 (i.e. the default in
repayment is more than 90 days).

·

Involved internal experts for testing of
the ECL model and computation,
including factors that affect the PD, LGD
and EAD considering various forward
looking.

·

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed by
the Company.

·

Tested assumptions used by the management
in determining the overlay
(including COVID-19 pandemic)pursuant to
RBI Guidelines.

·

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included
in the nancial statements in respect of
expected credit losses with the requirements
of Ind AS107 and109 including specic
disclosures made in the nancial statements
with regards to the impact of CoVID-19
on ECL estimation.

on account of

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India
circular dated May 5, 2021 for “Resolution
Framework – 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19
related stress of Individuals and Small
Businesses ” allowing lending institutions to
implement a resolution plan in respect of its
eligible exposures, subject to specied
conditions, the Company has restructured
the loans given to its borrowers in
accordance with its Board approved policy.
The Company has recorded a management
overlay as part of its ECL, to reect among
other things an increased risk of
deterioration in macro-economic factors
caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Given the
unique nature of the pandemic and the
extent of its economic impact which
depends on future developments including
governmental and regulatory measures and
the Company's responses thereto, the actual
credit loss can be different than that being
estimated.
In view of the high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic,
impairment of loans as at the balance sheet
date(including provision for expected credit losses)
is a key audit matter.
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In the process, a signicant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management for:
Dening qualitative/ quantitative thresholds
for ‘signicant increase in credit risk ’
(“SICR ”) and ‘default’.
Grouping of borrowers (retail loan portfolio)
based on homogeneity for estimating
probability of default (‘PD ’), loss given
default (‘LGD ’) and exposure at default
(‘EAD ’) on a collective basis;
Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default.

Our audit procedures included the following:
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Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments (“Ind AS 109”)
requires the Company to provide for impairment
of its Loans using the Expected Credit Losses(“ECL”)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of probability
weighted loss on nancial instruments over
their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions and other factors
which could impact the credit quality of the
Corporation ’s loans.
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
3

Chartered Accountants
Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the nancial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The above report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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S.R BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Our opinion on the nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the nancial position, nancial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash ows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specied under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the nancial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s nancial reporting process.
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In connection with our audit of the nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identied
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the nancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
3

Chartered Accountants
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the nancial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
inuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these nancial statements.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
signicant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the nancial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal nancial controls with reference to nancial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
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Chartered Accountants
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the
matters specied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Prot and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualied as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;
(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2022;

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specied under Section
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
3

Chartered Accountants
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the
matters specied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Prot and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualied as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;
(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2022;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specied under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
3

Chartered Accountants
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the
matters specied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Prot and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualied as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;
(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2022;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specied under Section
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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3
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(iii) (c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, granted by the Company as part of its business of
providing loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the
Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to furnish entity-wise
details of amount, due date for repayment or receipt and the extent of delay (as suggested in the Guidance Note
on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting under this clause), in respect
of loans and advances which were not repaid / paid when they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay, in
the normal course of lending business.

(iii) (e) Since, the Company’s principal business is to give loans and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(iii) (f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, rms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed
to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the
extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
(vi) The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

52

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iii) (d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety days
as at March 31, 2022 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in note 48 to the nancial
statements. In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the
overdue amount of principal and interest.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Further, except for loans where there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal and / or interest as at the
balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset classication in note 48 to the nancial
statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest,
as applicable.
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(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The provisions
relating to sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not applicable to
the Company.

(vii) (b) The dues of goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues as applicable to the
Company, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Nature
of the
disputed
dues

Amount
under
dispute (Rs
in Crores)

Income
Income
2.44
Tax Act,
Tax
1961
*paid under protest

Amount
paid* (Rs.
In Crores)

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Forum where
the dispute is
pending

0.48

AY 201718

CIT(A)

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender during the year.
(ix) (b) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or nancial institution or other
lender during the year.
(ix) (c) Money raised during the year by the Company by way of term loans has been applied for the purpose for
which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds.
(ix) (d) On an overall examination of the nancial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes during the year by the Company.
(ix) (e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(ix) (f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Name of
the
statute

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) (a) No material fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.
(xi) (b) During the year and up to the date of this report, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been led by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the nancial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.
(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(xiv) (b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.
(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xvi) (a)The Company has registered as required, under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934).
(xvi) (b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtained a valid Certicate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.
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(xi) (c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year
while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(x) (b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
private placement of fully convertible debentures respectively during the year. The funds raised, have been used
for the purposes for which the funds were raised. Further, according to the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
partly/optionally convertible debentures during the year.
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(xvi) (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as dened in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xvi) (d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred
to a fund specied in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), in compliance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 30 to the nancial statements.
(xx) (b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 30 to the nancial statements.
(xxi) The Company doesn’t have any subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
______________________________
per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number: 121411
UDIN: 22094533AJRDNG6369
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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(xix) On the basis of the nancial ratios disclosed in note 37 to the nancial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of nancial assets and payment of nancial liabilities, other information accompanying the
nancial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current nancial year or the immediately preceding nancial
year.
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal nancial controls with reference to these
nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specied under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal nancial controls, both
issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal nancial controls
with reference to these nancial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal nancial
controls with reference to these nancial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
nancial controls with reference to nancial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal nancial
controls with reference to these nancial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements.
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Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls based on
the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable nancial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

We have audited the internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements of Aye Finance Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the nancial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
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Chartered Accountants

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal nancial controls with reference to
these nancial statements and such internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI.
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

______________________________
per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number: 094533
UDIN: 22094533AJRDNG6369
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal nancial controls
with reference to these nancial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal nancial
control with reference to nancial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements
A company's internal nancial controls with reference to nancial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal nancial
controls with reference to nancial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
nancial statements.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

S.R BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

152.84
224.22
1,687.71
155.11
7.09
2,226.97

179.45
168.00
1,500.77
198.17
16.51
2,062.90

8
9
10

8.83
47.33
4.78
20.58
0.06
1.37
6.34
89.29
2,316.26

0.38
31.60
5.31
20.37
0.01
1.56
4.86
64.09
2,126.99

12
13
14
15
16

3.89
922.23
598.51
23.35
32.78
1,580.76

1.79
945.44
368.88
22.70
6.04
1,344.85

Non-financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities
Total non-financial liabilities

17
18

23.14
6.35
29.49

22.94
12.50
35.44

EQUITY
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

19
20

30.45
675.56
706.01
2,316.26

30.45
716.25
746.70
2,126.99

Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Other non-financial assets
Total non-financial assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative nancial instruments
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Lease liabilities
Other nancial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Notes
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3
4
5
6
7

Particulars
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Investments
Other nancial assets
Total financial assets

3

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

As at
March 31, 2021
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As at
March 31, 2022

Summary of signicant accounting policies
2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the nancial statements. 3 to 56
In terms of our report attached
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership No.: 094533
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aye Finance Private Limited
Corporate Identication No.: U65921DL1993PTC283660
Sanjay Sharma
Managing Director
DIN: 03337545
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Navin Kumar Maini
Director
DIN: 00419921
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 26, 2022

Mayank Shyam Thatte
Chief Financial Ofcer
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Tripti Pandey
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 32760
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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482.51
8.15
4.61
495.27
4.15
499.42

158.55
2.10
121.10
175.76
9.97
43.42
510.90
(67.41)

235.15
5.08
55.06
141.44
9.29
30.12
476.14
23.28

Tax expense:
Current tax
Tax for earlier years
Deferred tax
Income tax expense

(5.63)
(16.06)
(21.69)

10.15
(1.50)
(2.26)
6.39

(Loss) / Prot for the year (A)

(45.72)

16.89

1.31
(0.33)
0.98

(0.13)
0.03
(0.10)

21
22
23
24

Expenses
Finance cost
Net loss on fair value changes
Impairment on nancial instruments
Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
(Loss) / Prot before tax

25
26
27
28
10
29

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassied subsequently to prot or loss
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on dened benefit plans
Income tax effect
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (B)
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (A+B)
(Comprising loss and other comprehensive income for the year)
Earnings per share (equity share, par value of Rs.10 each)
Basic (Rs.)
Diluted (Rs.)
Nominal value

31
31

(44.74)

(14.74)
(14.74)
10.00

Summary of signicant accounting policies
2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the nancial statements. 3 to 56
In terms of our report attached
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership No.: 094533
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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Sanjay Sharma
Managing Director
DIN: 03337545
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Navin Kumar Maini
Director
DIN: 00419921
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 26, 2022

Mayank Shyam Thatte
Chief Financial Ofcer
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Tripti Pandey
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 32760
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

16.79

5.58
5.51
10.00
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415.39
8.04
8.49
431.92
11.57
443.49

Notes

Particulars
Revenue from operations
Interest income
Fees and commission income
Net gain on fair value changes
Total revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

3
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As at
March 31, 2021

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

As at
March 31, 2022
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

(5.49)
(1,564.77)
1,615.86
45.60

3.68
5.61
(0.01)
(1.61)
(2.99)
(0.10)
18.20
36.86
3.23
3.02
1.81
90.98
(111.17)
160.99
(14.87)
0.32
(0.19)
5.07
5.78
(5.67)
2.02
133.26
(8.03)
125.23
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Cash ow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (excluding right of use assets)
(Net of sale proceeds)
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B)

23.28

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Notes
Particulars
Cash ow from operating activities
(67.41)
(Loss) / Prot before tax
Adjustments for:
4.52
Depreciation and impairment of PPE and right of use assets
Depreciation on right of use assets
5.45
(0.52)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Unrealised loss / (gain) on investments in mutual fund
0.03
(8.00)
Prot on sale of mutual fund units
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
0.98
Impairment of nancial instruments
6.22
113.21
Loans and advances written off
Loss on settlement
1.67
0.02
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
4.05
Expense on employee stock option scheme
Expenses for gratuity and leave encashment
3.54
2.77
Interest on leased assets
66.53
Operating prot before working capital changes
Movements in working capital:
(Increase) in bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents
(56.07)
(308.04)
(Increase) / Decrease in loan portfolio
Decrease / (Increase) in other nancial assets
9.42
(Increase) / Decrease in other non nancial assets
(1.48)
Increase / (Decrease) in other nancial liabilities (excluding lease liabilities) 26.74
Increase in derivative nancial instruments
2.10
(6.15)
(Decrease) / Increase in other non nancial liabilities
(7.78)
(Decrease) in lease liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions
(2.03)
Cash (used in) / generated from operations
(276.76)
Income taxes paid
(2.49)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (A)
(279.25)

3

As at
March 31, 2021

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

As at
March 31, 2022

(3.09)
(514.97)
328.28
(189.78)
(Continued)
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
Notes

As at
March 31, 2021

(Continued)
Cash ow from nancing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium)
Proceeds from issue of debt securities
Redemption of debt securities
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities)
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)
Net cash generated from nancing activities (C)

209.99
162.18
(396.17)
320.42
(224.60)
71.82

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 3)

(26.61)
179.45
152.84

7.27
172.18
179.45

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of period
Cash in hand
Balance with banks - on current account
Deposits with original maturity of less than or equal to 3 months
Total cash and cash equivalents

3.27
71.33
78.24
152.84

3.01
56.62
119.82
179.45

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(0.00)
237.22
(260.43)
415.01
(184.76)
207.04

3
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note:
1. Cash ow statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in the IND AS 7 "Cash Flow Statement".
2. Previous year gures have been regrouped / reclassied wherever applicable.
3. See accompanying notes forming part of these nancial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants
Aye Finance Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 Corporate Identication No.: U65921DL1993PTC283660
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For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004
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Partner
Membership No.: 094533
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares

Amount

No. of shares

Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the year

3,04,52,654
3,04,52,654

30.45
30.45

2,70,42,854
34,09,800
3,04,52,654

27.04
3.41
30.45

Equity share capital
Particulars
Equity shares of RS.10 each issued, subscribed and

No. of shares

As at March 31, 2022

3

As at March 31, 2021

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

A. Equity share capital
Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

Amount

No. of shares

Amount

48,30,500
48,30,500

4.83
4.83

48,30,500
48,30,500

4.83
4.83

48,30,500

4.83

48,30,500

4.83

fully paid

As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares

Amount

2,27,72,648
2,27,72,648

22.77
22.77

34,09,800
2,61,82,448

3.41
26.18

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference
Shares (CCPS)
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
No.
of shares
Amount
Preference shares of RS.10 each issued,
subscribed and fully paid
26.18
2,61,82,448
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year
Changes in share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the
2,61,82,448
26.18
current / previous reporting period
Changes in share capital during the year
2,61,82,448
26.18
Balance at the end of the reporting year

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year
Changes in share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the
current / previous reporting period
Changes in share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the reporting year
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
B. Other equity
Securities
premium

11.75

452.78

4.22

21.28

(0.36)

489.67

-

-

-

-

-

-

11.75

452.78

4.22

21.28

(0.36)

489.67

-

-

-

16.89

-

16.89

3.38

-

(3.38)

-

-

-

(0.10)

(0.10)

-

-

3.53

-

-

3.53

-

-

(0.30)

-

-

(0.30)

-

206.56

-

-

-

206.56

15.13

659.34

7.45

34.79

-

-

-

-

15.13

659.34

7.45

34.79
(45.72)
-

In terms of our report attached
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership No.: 094533
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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(0.46)

716.25
(45.72)

-

0.98

0.98

4.67

-

-

4.67

(0.62)

-

-

(0.62)

11.50

(10.93)

0.52

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

659.34

-

716.25

-

-

15.13

(0.46)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aye Finance Private Limited
Corporate Identication No.: U65921DL1993PTC283660
Sanjay Sharma
Managing Director
DIN: 03337545
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Navin Kumar Maini
Director
DIN: 00419921
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 26, 2022

Mayank Shyam Thatte
Chief Financial Ofcer
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Tripti Pandey
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 32760
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

-

675.56
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Balance at the end of the reporting
year 2020
Change in accounting policy or prior
period errors
Restated balance at the end of the
reporting year 2020
Prot for the year
Transfer to / (from) statutory reserve
under section 45IC of RBI Act 1934
Other comprehensive income for the
year
Transfer to / (from) share option
outstanding account
Utilisation / lapses of share option
outstanding
Premium on issue of share capital
Balance at the end of the reporting
year 2021
Change in accoun ng policy or prior
period errors
Restated balance at the end of the
reporting year 2020
Prot for the year
Transfer to / (from) statutory reserve
under section 45IC of RBI Act 1934
Other comprehensive income for the
year
Transfer to / (from) share option
outstanding account
Utilisation / lapses of share option
outstanding
Premium on issue of share capital
Balance at the end of the reporting
year 2022

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Statutory reserve under
section 45IC of RBI Act

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Particulars

3
Reserves and Surplus
ESOP reserve Retained Other comprehensive Total
account
income
earnings
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

2.2 Basis Of Preparation
The nancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis the historical cost basis except for certain nancial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

2.3 Presentation Of Financial Statements:
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun ng Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accoun ng Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from me to me and no ﬁed under sec on 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direc on – Non-Banking Financial Company –
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direc ons, 2020 (‘the NBFC
Master Direc ons’) issued by RBI. The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The Company uses accrual basis of accoun ng except in case of signiﬁcant uncertain es. The ﬁnancial statements are presented
in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the crores, except when otherwise indicated. The regulatory disclosures as
required by RBI Master Direc ons to be included as a part of the Notes to Accounts are also prepared as per the Ind AS ﬁnancial
statements.
The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabili es are generally reported gross
in the balance sheet. They are only oﬀset and reported net when, in addi on to having an uncondi onal legally enforceable right
to oﬀset the recognised amounts without being con ngent on a future event, the par es also intend to se le on a net basis in all
of the following circumstances:
i. The normal course of business
ii. The event of default
iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and / or its counter par es.
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2.1 Statement of compliance
The nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notied under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by
section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act'), other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance
notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except
where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. Any directions issued by the
R B I o r o t h e r r e g u l a t o r s a r e i m p l e m e n t e d a s a n d w h e n t h ey b e c o m e a p p l i c a b l e.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

2. Signicant accounting policies

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

1. General Information
Aye Finance Private Limited ( AFPL’’ or the company)
was incorporated to carry on the business of a nance company and to provide nance (whether short or long term
“ development nance, factoring, leasing, guarantees or any other debt related
loan or working capital nance,
funding) to micro, small and medium scale enterprises and to individuals. On July 18, 2014 the company received
a certicate of registration from the Reserve Bank Of India vide registration no. B-14.03323 under section 45-IA
of the Reserve Bank Of India Act, 1934 to carry on the business of a Non- Banking Financial Company (NBFC)
without acceptance of public deposit. The Company is currently a systemically important non deposit taking Non
Banking Finance Company (ND-NBFC) as dened under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank Of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, all provisions of the Reserve Bank Of India Act, 1934 and al directions, guidelines or instructions of
the Reserve Bank Of India that have been issued from time to time are in force and as applicable to a Non deposit
taking Non-Banking Financial company are applicable to the company. The registered ofce of the company is
situated in Delhi.
The company has issued debentures on a private placement basis and the said securities are listed with Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE) on Debt market segment.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

2.4 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to that extent that is probable that the economic benets will ow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of consideration received or receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and the other
similar allowances.

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method for all nancial instruments
measured at amortised cost and nancial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
( FVOCI’) and fair value through prot and loss (FVTL). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the nancial instruments or when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the nancial asset. For nancial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in prot and
loss at initial recognition.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired nancial
asset(i.e at the amortised cost of the nancial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For
credit-impared nancial assets the interest income is recorded as and when realised.
If expectations regarding the cash ows on the nancial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the
adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet
with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through interest income
in the statement of prot and loss.
(ii) Net gain or fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of the nancial assets classied as fair value through the prot or loss,
held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealized gain/loss in the statement of prot
and loss.
(iii) Other operational revenue
Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract. This includes cheque
bouncing charges, late payment charges and prepayment charges etc. which are recorded as when realised.
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a ve-step model as set out in Ind AS
115:
Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is dened as an agreement between two or more parties
that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a
customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of EIR. The company recognises interest income using a rate
‘ best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the nancial
if return that represents the
instruments.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(i)Interest income
EIR method
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2. Signicant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company as a lessee
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for its various ofce spaces. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identied asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identied asset, the Company assesses whether
(I)the contract involves the use of an identied asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benets
from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the company has the right to direct the use of the
asset.
At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset
( ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee. The Company has not
exercised the exemption to exclude short term leases or low value leases.
Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencements date of the lease plus any initial direct
cost less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
Right -of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use asset are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indiacte that their carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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2.5 Leases
The Company evaluates each contracts or arrangement, whether it qualies as lease as dened under Ind AS 116.
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Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more
than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in
an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange of
satisfying each performance obligation.
“
Step 5: Recognise revenue when(or as) the Company satises a performance obligation.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
Income from other nancial charges including, cheque bouncing charges, foreclosure charges are collected from
loan customers for early payment/closure of loan and are recognised on realisation.
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2. Signicant accounting policies
(Continued)
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount(i.e the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash ows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the balance sheet and lease payments have
been classied as nancing cash ows.
2.6 Foreign currency transactions:

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
incremental burrowing rates pertaining to its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination
option.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

2. Signicant accounting policies
(Continued)

3

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupee.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the balance sheet date
Monetary item denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of the Balance Sheet. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies which are carried at
historical cost are reported using exchange rate on the date of transaction.
Treatment of exchange difference
Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are
recognized as income or
expense in the statement of prot and loss in the period in which they arise.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Initial recognition
Transaction denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of transaction.
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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2.7 Employee benets:
Employee benets include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated
absences.

(ii) Post employment benets:

(b) Dened benet plan
Benets payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a dened benet plan is
accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. In accordance with the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972, the plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in
service or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year
of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of ve years of service. The present value of such obligation is
determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as
at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on
change in present value of the dened benet obligation is reected immediately in the balance sheet with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
(iii)Long-term employee benets
Compensated absences with respect to leave encashment benets payable to employees of the Company
while in service, on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment with respect to
accumulated leaves outstanding at the year end are accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as
at the balance sheet date. The dened benet obligation is calculated annually by an actuary
using the projected unit credit method.
(iv)Termination benets
Termination benets such as compensation under employee separation schemes are recognised as expense
when the Company’s offer of the termination benet is accepted or when the Company recognises the related
restructuring costs whichever is earlier.
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(a) Dened contribution plan
The Company's contribution to Employee Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme and Labour Welfare
Fund under the relevant
Acts are considered as dened contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.
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(i) Short term employee benets:
Employee benets falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classied as short term
employee benets and are
expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of
short-term employee benets are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benets expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service.
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2.Signicant accounting policies:
(Continued)
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

2.8 Taxation:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufcient taxable prots will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
(iii)Current tax and deferred tax for the year
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in statement of prot or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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(ii)Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prot. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
prots will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
prot nor the accounting prot.
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(i) Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable prot for the year. Taxable prot differs from ‘prot before
tax’ as reported in the statement of prot and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and is measured in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure
Standards and other applicable tax laws.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.
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2.Signicant accounting policies:
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Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benets / functioning capability from / of such assets.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital work in progress includes the cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their
intended use and the cost of assets not put to use before the Balance Sheet date.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(i) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if any, and,
for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, nance costs.
Cost includes import duties and any non-refundable taxes on such purchase, after deducting rebates and
trade discounts and is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. All cost are capitalized
which are directly attributable to bringing assets to the condition and location essential for it to operate in a
manner as intended by the management. In respect of assets due for capitalization, where nal bills/claims
are to be received/passed, the capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final adjustments, for
costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of ascertainment of actual cost and nalisation
of claim.
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2.9 Property, plant and equipment:

(ii) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the written down value method, and is generally recognised in
the statement of prot and loss. The Company follows estimated useful lives which are given under Part C of
the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold improvements are amortised
over the period of lease.
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets is acquired/installed. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is provided
for up to the date of sale deduction and discernment as the case may be.
The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. In respect of assets whose
useful lives has been revised, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining
useful lives of the assets.
(iii) Derecognition of property, plant and equipment
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benets
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in prot or loss.
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(ii) Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benets are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in prot or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

2.11 Impairment of non nancial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identied, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identied.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash ows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specic to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash ows have not been adjusted.
If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such
decit is recognised immediately in the statement of prot and loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An assessment is made annually as to see if there are any indications that impairment losses recognized earlier
may no longer exist or may have come down. The impairment loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss was recognized. If
it is so, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying
amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. After a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. Reversals of
impairment loss are recognized in the statement of Prot & Loss.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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(iii) Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated useful lives of the intangible asset for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Computer software: 3 years

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(i) Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets with nite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indenite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benets / functioning capability from / of such assets.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

2.10 Intangible assets:
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2.12 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
(i) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provision is measured using the cash ows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of
time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash ows.
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is
virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(ii) Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be conrmed only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.
(iii) Contingent assets
Contingent assets are not recognized in the nancial statements, however they are disclosed when an inow of
economic benets is probable.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignicant risk of changes in value.
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2.13 Segment reporting:
Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision making body in the Company to make decisions for performance assessment and
resource allocation. The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the
purpose of the performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments. Segment accounting policies are
in line with the accounting policies of the Company.
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Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

The company has constituted an Employee Stock Option Plan 2020. The company has transferred all the
ungranted options under Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 to Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 while options
granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 continue to be governed by the conditions of Employee
Stock Option Plan 2016. Both plans provide for grant of options to employees of the Company to acquire equity
shares of the Company that vest in a graded manner and that are to be exercised within a specied period.

2.17 Financial instruments:
Financial assets and nancial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provision of the instrument.
Financial assets and nancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of nancial assets and nancial liabilities (other than nancial assets and
nancial liabilities at fair value through prot or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the nancial
assets or nancial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of nancial assets or nancial liabilities at fair value through prot or loss are recognized immediately
in prot or loss.
(i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurementAll nancial assets are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the nancial asset
are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.
Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of Subsequent measurement, the Company classies nancial assets in following categories:(a)
Financial assets at amortized cost(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)(c)
Financial assets at fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash ows,
and
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal g.
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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2.16 Input tax credit:
Goods and Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service
received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing / utilizing the credits.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The company has constituted an Employee Stock Option Plan 2016. The Plan provides for grant of options to
employees of the Company to acquire equity shares of the Company that vest in a graded manner and that are to
be exercised within a specied period.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

2.15 Share-based payment arrangements:
The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the
fair value of the options at the grant date in accordance with IND AS 102, Share-based payments. The fair value
of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a
straight-line basis. The amount recognised as expense in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants
expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative discount recognised as expense in
respect of such grant is transferred to the general reserve within equity.
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2.17Financial instruments:
(Continued)

All nancial assets not classied as measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL

Financial investment at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of prot and loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassied to statement of prot and loss.
Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in statement of prot and loss.
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Prot and loss, except
for those equity investments for which the company has elected to present the changes in fair value through OCI.
De-recognition of nancial assets
The Company derecognises a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the nancial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash ows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the nancial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the nancial asset.
The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent
of the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reects the rights and obligations
that the company has retained.
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Subsequent measurement of nancial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in Statement of prot and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition is recognised in
statement of prot and loss.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A nancial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash ows
and selling nancial assets; and
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
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2.17 Financial instruments:
(Continued)
(ii)Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All nancial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the nancial liabilities are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Offsetting of nancial instruments
A nancial asset and a nancial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there
is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Reclassication of nancial assets and liabilities
The Company doesn’t reclassify its nancial assets and liabilities subsequent to their initial recognition.
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De-recognition of nancial liabilities
A nancial liabilities is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modied, such an exchange or
modication is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of prot and loss.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method except for derivatives, nancial liabilities designated for measurement at FVTPL which are measured
at fair value.
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2.Signicant accounting policies:
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(i) Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the nancial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or
Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life
of the nancial Both LTECLs (Lifetime expected Credit losses) and 12 months ECLs are calculated on collective
basis.
(ii)Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described
below:
Stage 1
When loans are rst recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months ECL. Stage 1 loans
includes those loans where there is no signicant increase in credit risk observed and also includes facilities where
the credit risk has been improved and the loan has been reclassied from stage 2 or stage 3.
Stage 2
When a loan has shown a signicant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for
the life time ECL. Stage
2 loans also includes facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassied from stage 3
and facilities where the credit risk has been increased due to restructuring and loan has been reclassied from
stage 1.
Stage 3
Loans considered credit impaired are the loans which are past due for more than 90 days. The Company .
records an allowance for life time ECL.
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2.18 Impairment of nancial instruments:
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for nancial assets other than those measured through prot and loss (FVTPL).

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a nancial liability when its terms are modied and the cash ows of the modied
liability are substantially different. In this case, a new nancial liability based on the modied terms is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the nancial liability extinguished and the new
nancial liability with modied terms is recognised in statement of prot and loss.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Modication of nancial assets and nancial liabilities
Financial assets
The Company evaluates whether the cash ows from a nancial asset are modied and the modied asset is
substantially different. If the cash ows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash ows from the
original nancial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original nancial asset is derecognised and a
new nancial asset is recognised at fair value.
In case the cash ows of the modied asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the
modication does not result in derecognition of the nancial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the nancial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or modied contractual cash ows
that are discounted at the nancial asset's original effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as modication gain or loss in statement of prot and loss. Any costs or fees
incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modied nancial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of
the modied nancial asset. If such a modication is carried out because of nancial difculties of the borrower,
then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.
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Denition of Default
The Company considers a nancial instrument as defaulted and considered it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL
calculations in all cases, when the borrower becomes more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

(iii)
Calculation
of calculations
ECLs.
The
mechanics
of ECL
are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD)
Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only
happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still
in the portfolio.

Loss Given Default (LGD)
Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash ows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.
The Company has calculated PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans. At every
reporting date, the above calculated PDs, EAD and LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed.
Forward looking information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in
the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the company analyses if there is any relationship
between key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of
India, ination etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data.
While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reective of such
relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reect such macro-economic trends
reasonably.
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Exposure at Default (EAD)
Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Signicant increase in credit risk
The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a
portfolio of instruments is subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a signicant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have signicantly increased
in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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2.18 Impairment of nancial instruments:
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(v)Write offs
Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the nancial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that
the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufcient cash ows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply
enforcement activities to nancial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement
activities will result in impairment gains.
2.19 Statement of cash ows:
Statement of cash ows is prepared segregating the cash ows into operating, investing and nancing
activities. Cash ow from operatingactivities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net prot for the
effects of:
(a) Changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
(b) Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and
(c) All other items for which the cash effects are investing or nancing cash ows
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items
which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet. For the purpose of the statement of
cash ows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as dened above.
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(iv)Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of nancial position as follows:
(a) for nancial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;
(b) for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in Balance Sheet as the carrying
amount is at fair value.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:
Stage 1
The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default
events on a nancial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company
calculates the 12 months ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months
following the reporting date. These expected 12-months default probabilities are
applied to the EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.
Stage 2When a loan has shown a signicant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are
estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.
Stage 3
For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans. The method is similar to
that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.
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2.20 Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share (EPS)Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net prot or loss
(excluding OCI) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year.

2.21 Borrowing cost:
Borrowing cost includes interest expense calculated using the EIR method.

2.23 Derivative nancial instruments
The Company enters into derivative nancial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward contracts, currency
swaps and interest rate swaps, to manage its borrowing exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks.
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at
FVTPL. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/loss is
recognised in statement of prot and loss.
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2.22 Insurance Claims:
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted and to the extent that
the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.
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Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net prot or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net prot per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential
dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued
at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.
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Hedge accounting
The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate and foreign currency. In
order to manage particular risks, the Company applies hedge accounting for transactions that meet specied
criteria. Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the nancial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy described as follows:
(i) Level 1 nancial instruments
Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active
only if there are sufcient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.
(ii) Level 2 nancial instruments
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are signicant, are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.
(iii) Level 3 nancial instruments
Include one or more unobservable input where there is little market activity for the asset/liability at the
measurement date that is signicant to the measurement as a whole.
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2.24 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company’s accounting policies
require, measurement of certain nancial / non-nancial assets and liabilities at fair values (either on a recurring
or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair values of nancial instruments measured at amortized cost are required to be
disclosed in the said nancial statements. The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the
nancial / non-nancial assets and liabilities, either measured or disclosed at fair value in the nancial statements,
using a three level fair-value-hierarchy which reects the signicance of inputs used in the measurement).
Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufcient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.
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Fair value hedges the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an identied
portion of such an asset, liability, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect prot or loss. For
designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is
recognised in the statement of prot and loss in net gain/(loss) on fair value changes. Meanwhile, the cumulative
change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying
value of the hedged item in the balance sheet and is also recognised in the statement of prot and loss in net
gain/(loss) on fair value changes.
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2.25 Signicant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The following are signicant management estimation/uncertainty and judgement in applying the accounting
policies of the Company that have the most signicant effect on the nancial statements:
Dened benet obligationManagement estimates of these obligation is based on a number of critical underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of ination, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may signicantly impact the dened benet obligation amount and the annual
dened benet expenses.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Business model assessmentClassication and measurement of nancial assets depends on the results of business
model and the solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reects how groups of nancial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of
the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and
how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors nancial
assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
nancial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to the classication of those assets.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The preparation of nancial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by denition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting
policy. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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2.25 Signicant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method : The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.
Recognition of deferred tax assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the
Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.
Property, plant and equipment
Measurement of useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment and useful life of intangible
assets.
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Fair value of nancial instruments : The fair value of nancial instruments is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of nancial assets and
nancial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing
fair values.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Business model assessmentClassication and measurement of nancial assets depends on the results of business
model and the solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reects how groups of nancial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of
the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and
how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors nancial
assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
nancial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to the classication of those assets.
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

2.25 Signicant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and
internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Impairment of nancial assets
At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the management
assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. The Company’s expected credit loss
("ECL") calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice
of variable inputs and their interdependencies.

Determination of lease term
Ind AS 116 Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes assessment on the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is
reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease
term, the Company considers factors such as any signicant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease
term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the underlying to the Company’s operations
taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease
term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reects the current economic circumstances.
Discount rate for lease liability
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specic to the lease being evaluated or for
a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. And discount rate of security deposits is generally
based on the SBI deposit rate at the time of deposit.
Fair value of share-based payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share
option or appreciation right, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the Company
uses a Black-Scholes model.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a nancial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the standalone nancial statements
are prudent and reasonable.
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Contingent liabilities
At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company
assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However the actual future
outcome may be different from this judgement.
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Deposit with original maturity of less than three month

March 31,2021
31, 2021
March 31,
2022 March
31,2022
3.27
3.01
71.33

78.24
152.84

56.62
119.82
179.45

4

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31,
114.53

3.70
9.65
224.22

11.13
42.34
168.00

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fixed deposit with original maturity for more than three months
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or
security against borrowing, guarantees and other
Balance held as security against borrowings
Balance
held as security against securitisation
0

As at
March 31,
210.87

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(a) Cash in hand includes balance in prepaid cards obtained by Company for its routine expenses from the
banks.
(b) Balances with banks in current accounts do not earn any interest. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months depending upon the immediate cash requirements of
the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit
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3

3

(a)Fixed deposits and margin money deposits with banks earns interest at xed rates or oating
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Aye Finance Private Limited ( CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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1,590.30
1,590.30
89.53

1,687.71

1,500.77

(B)Based on security
(i) Secured
(ii)Unsecured
Total (B)Gross
Less:Impairmentloss allowance
Total(B)Net

143.94
1,598.27
1,742.21
54.50
1,687.71

233.72
1,356.58
1,590.30
89.53
1,500.77

(C)Based onregion
(I) LoansinIndia
(i) Public sector
(ii)Others
Total(C)(I)Gross
Less:Impairment loss allowance
Total(C)(I)Net
(II)Loans outside India
Less:Impairmentlossallowance
Total(C)(II)Net
Total(C)(I)and(C)(II)

1,742.21
1,742.21
54.50
1,687.71
1,687.71

1,590.30
1,590.30
89.53
1,500.77
1,500.77

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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1,742.21
1,742.21
54.50

Bills purchased and bills discounted
Revolving working capital
Term loans
Staff loan
Total - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - Net
(A) As per NBFC Directions
(I) Others
(ii) To Related parties
Total (A) Gross
Less: Impairment loss
allowance
Total (A) Net

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

As at
March 31, 2022
0.16
1.35
1,586.08
2.71
1,590.30
89.53
1,500.77

Loan portfolio
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As at
March 31, 2022
0.01
1,739.64
2.56
1,742.21
54.50
1,687.71

5
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
As at
March 31,2022

As at
March31,2021

119.29
6.46

190.85
6.29

32.05
2.94
154.86

197.14

7 Other nancial assets (atamortised cost)
Receivable from insurance company
Security deposits
Recoverable from Government on account of Ex-Gratia*
Other receivables

158.05
158.05
158.05
2.94
155.11

0.78

0.25
1.03

0.25
0.25
198.17
198.17
198.17
198.17

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
3.77
0.22
2.43
1.82
13.35
0.89
1.12
7.09
16.51

*Represents sum recoverable under the scheme of Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services (DFS) vide letter Ref: F No. 2/12/2020 BOA.I dated October 23, 2020 relating to the Scheme of grant of ex-gratia pa yment of difference between compound interest and simple
interest for six months (March 01, 2020 to August 31, 2020)

Advance income tax (net of provision)

As at
March31,2022
8.83
8.83

As at
March 31,2021
0.38
0.38

9 Deferred tax assets (Net)

As at
March31,2022

As at
March31,2021

8 Current tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (net)

47.33
47.33

31.60
31.60
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Total- Gross(A)
Investments outside India
Investments in India
Total(B)
Total(A)totally with(B)
Less:Allowance for impairment loss (C)
Total- NetD=(A)-(C)

-

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Corporate Bonds held as security in respect of borrowings
Investment in subsidiary at amortised cost (unquoted)
249,999 equity sharesof INR 10 in Foundation for Advancement ofMicro Enterprises(FAME)
Investments measured at amortised cost
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6 Investments
Investments measured at fair valuethrough prot or loss
Mutual funds
Mutual Funds held as securityinrespect of borrowings
Security receipts
ARCIL- trust
Less: Impairment lossallowance
Investments carried at Fair value through Prot or loss

3

Computer software
Total

Particulars

Computer software
Total

Particulars

Ofce equipments
Electrical installations and equipments
Computers
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Total

Furnituer and xtures

Particulars

Furnituer and xtures
Ofce equipments
Electrical installations and equipments
Computers
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Total

As at
April 01, 2020
1.92
1.92

As at
April 01, 2021
3.66
3.66

1.27
0.28
5.09
0.04
0.97
9.86

As at
April 01, 2020
2.21

2.22
1.60
0.77
6.79
0.04
0.97
12.39

1.74
1.74

Additions

Accumulated depreciation
As at
As at Depreciation for
As at
Disposals
Disposals
March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
the year
March 31, 2021
1.43
0.67
3.66
2.10
3.66
1.43
0.67
2.10

Gross carrying amount

1.04
1.04

Additions

Accumulated depreciation
As at
As at Depreciation for
As at
Disposals
Disposals
March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
the year
March 31, 2022
4.70
2.10
1.23
3.33
4.70
2.10
1.23
3.33

Gross carrying amount

0.33
0.49
1.70
2.53

0.01

Additions

Accumulated depreciation
As at
As at Depreciation for
As at
Disposals
Disposals
March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
the year
March 31, 2021
0.69
0.39
2.22
1.08
1.60
0.98
0.67
0.31
0.77
0.18
0.06
0.12
6.79
4.25
2.38
1.87
0.04
0.03
0.02
0.01
0.26
0.30
0.97
0.56
12.39
4.08
3.00
7.08

Gross carrying amount

0.02
0.78
0.14
1.82
0.01
2.77

Additions

Accumulated depreciation
As at
As at Depreciation for
As at
Disposals
Disposals
March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
the year
March 31, 2022
(0.05)
0.29
(0.04)
2.19
1.08
1.33
2.31
0.98
1.35
(0.07)
0.44
(0.07)
0.91
0.18
0.35
0.18
(0.01)
8.60
4.25
6.45
(0.01)
2.21
(0.01)
0.03
(0.04)
(0.03)
0.17
0.98
0.56
0.73
(0.17)
14.99
7.08
3.29
(0.16)
10.21

Gross carrying amount
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As at
April 01, 2021
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10. Property, plants and equipments
Particulars

Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

1.56
1.56

Net carrying amount
As at
March 31, 2021

Net carrying amount
As at
March 31, 2022
1.37
1.37

Net carrying amount
As at
March 31, 2021
1.14
0.62
0.59
2.54
0.01
0.41
5.31

0.86
0.96
0.56
2.15
0.25
4.78

Net carrying amount
As at
March 31, 2022

3
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

11 Other non-nancial assets

3

12 Derivative nancial instruments
Carried at fair value
Cross currency swap rate contract not designated in hedge accounting relationship

1.79
1.79

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March31,2021

791.51
130.72
922.23

889.95
55.49
945.44

922.23
922.23
Note 1: Refer Note 13(i) below for the repayment details along with rate of interest and security details.

945.44
945.44

13 Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Redeemable non- convertible debentures
Secured
Unsecured

Debt securities in India
Debt securities in outsideIndia

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.89
3.89

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

March 31, 2022 March31,2021
0.25
0.31
1.02
1.84
0.06
0.02
4.16
1.85
0.66
0.69
0.19
0.15
6.34
4.86
As at
As at
March 31,2022 March31,2021

TDS recoverable
Goods and service tax receivable
Capital advance
Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppliers
Employees advances

13(i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other long-term
borrowings
Particular

Secured Rated
Unlisted
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
10,00,000

Nature of
Rate of
ISIN
security
interest
Exclusive rst
charge by
INE501X0701 13.70%
way
8
of
hypothecation
of Company's
specic
INE501X0702 13.54%
receivables to
6

Date of As at March 31, 2022
repayment Secured Unsecured

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured

18-May-22

27.00

-

27.00

-

17-Jun-22

27.00

-

27.00

-

INE501X0703 13.54%
4

29-Jul-22

26.00

-

26.00

-

specic
INE501X0706 11.64%
receivables to
7
the extent of
100% of
outstanding
principal loan
amount.

28-Mar-23

30.00

30.00

-

the extent of
110% of
outstanding
principal loan
amount.
Exclusive rst
charge by
way of
hypothecation
of Company's
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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Senior, Secured,
Rated,
UnListed,
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued
on
private
placement basis
of
Rs.10,00,000/
each fully
paid
up.
Secured, Rated,
Listed
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
10,000 /- each.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Exclusive rst
charge by
way of
hypothecation
of Company's
INE501X0708 12.07%
specic
3
receivables to
the extent of
100% of the
principal loan
amount.

The
Charge over
the charged
receivables

shall be at
all times 1x of
the value
outstanding.

INE501X0704
2

13.47
%
and
13.55
%

Exclusive rst
charge by way
of
hypothecation
of Company's
INE501X0711 13.50%
specic
7
receivables to
the extent of
110% of the
principal loan
amount.

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured

29-Nov-22

107.00

107.00

-

31-Oct-24

72.00

72.00

-

24-Jul-21

-

-

68.00

-

29-Aug-23

44.00

-

44.00

-

24-Dec-21

-

-

70.00

-
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Senior, Secured,
Rated, Unlisted
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
1,00,000/-

Date of As at March 31, 2022
repayment Secured Unsecured

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Nature of
Rate of
ISIN
security
interest
Exclusive rst
Secured, Rated, charge by
way of
Listed,
hypothecation INE501X0717 12.90%
Redeemable
4
of Company's
Transferable
specic
Non-Convertible
receivables to
Debentures
the extent of
having a Face
110% of
Value of Rs.
outstanding
INE501X0722 12.51%
10,00,000
principal loan
4
amount.
Particular
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13(i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other
long-term borrowings
(Continued)
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
Nature of
security

Senior,
Unsecured,
Rated, Listed
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs. 10
/- each

No Security

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March 31,2022

ISIN

Rate of
interest

Date of
repayment

Secured

Unsecured

Secured

INE501X0803
2

12.14%

06-Mar-24

-

20.00

-

20.00

26-Jun-21

-

-

8.75

-

26-Jun-25

26.25

-

26.25

-

05-Aug-21

-

-

5.33

-

07-Feb-22

-

-

5.33

-

12.50%

08-Nov-22

41.40

-

41.40

-

10.78%

25-Oct-21

-

-

31.25

-

93.75

-

93.75

-

Senior Rated
Un-Listed
Redeemable
De-Materialized
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued on private
placement basis

The Charge
over the
charged
INE501X0713
receivables
3
shall be at
all times 1x of
the value
outstanding.

12.96%
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Exclusive rst
charge by
way of
hypothecation
of Company's
specic
INE501X0712
receivables to 5
the extent of
1.10x of the
principal
amount
outstanding.

Unsecured

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Secured Rated
listed
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
10,000/- each.
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Particular

3

12.32%

of Rs. 1,00,000/-

Senior, Secured,
Rated, Unlisted
Redeemable
Transferable
De-Materialized
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued on private
placement basis
of
Rs.10,00,000/

The Charge
over the
charged
receivables
INE501X0716
shall be at
6
all times 1x of
the value
outstanding.

Senior, Secured, The Charge
Un-Rated,
over the
Un- Listed,
charged
Redeemable receivables
INE501X0714
Transferable shall be at
1
Non-Convertible all times 1x of
Debentures
the value
issued on private outstanding.
placement basis
of
Rs.10,00,000/each fully paid
up.

25-Oct-23
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Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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Particular

The Charge
over the
charged
receivables
shall be at
all times 1x of
the value
outstanding.

ISIN

INE501X0718
2

Rate of
interest

12.64
%
and
12.87
%

debts/receivables

Senior, Secured, maintained
Rated, Listed,
all times at at
Redeemable
110% of
transferable
aggregate
Non-Convertible principal
Debentures
outstanding.
INE501X0719
issued on
Security
0
private
creation and
placement basis Perfection
of Rs.10,00,000/- required as
each fully
per laws and
paid up.
regulations.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

13.50%

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured

31-Mar-23

58.00

-

58.00

-

30-Apr-21
31-May-21
30-Jun-21
31-Jul-21
31-Aug-21
30-Sep-21
31-Oct-21
30-Nov-21
31-Dec-21
31-Jan-22
28-Feb-22
31-Mar-22
30-Apr-22
31-May-22
30-Jun-22
31-Jul-22
31-Aug-22
30-Sep-22
31-Oct-22
30-Nov-22
31-Dec-22
31-Jan-23
28-Feb-23
31-Mar-23
30-Apr-23
22-May-23

0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69

-

0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69

-
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Hypothecation
of book

Date of As at March 31, 2022
repayment Secured Unsecured
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Senior, Secured,
Rated, Un-Listed,
Redeemable
transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued on private
placement basis
of Rs.10,00,000/
each fully paid
up.

Nature of
security
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13(i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other
long-term borrowings
(Continued)
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Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
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Particular

Rate of
interest

Date of As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
repayment Secured Unsecured Secured
Unsecured

debts/receivables

maintained at
all times at
125% of
aggregate
principal
outstanding.
Security
creation and
perfection
required as
per laws and
regulations.

INE501X0720 10.10%
8

-

-

50.00

-

19-Feb-22

-

-

10.00

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11-Feb-22
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Senior, Secured,
Rated,
Listed,
Redeemable
transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued on
private
placement basis
of
Rs.10,00,000/
each fully paid
up.

Nature of
ISIN
security
Hypothecation
of book

Hypothecation
of book
Senior, Secured,
Rated, Listed,
Redeemable
transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued on private
placement basis
of
Rs.10,00,000/
each fully paid
up.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

13(i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other
long-term borrowings
(Continued)

debts/receivables

maintained at
all times
at 1.10 times
of aggregate
principal
INE501X0721 10.00%
outstanding.
6
Security
and
creation
perfection
required as
per laws and
regulations.
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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Particular

Unsecured
Rated Unlisted
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible No Security
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
10,000/- each

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

INE501X0805
7

Date of As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
repayment Secured Unsecured Secured
Unsecured

16-May22

77.17

13-May24

0.01

15-Mar-25

-

-

77.17

-

0.01

-

-

-

10.70%

11.35%

37.50

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

created out of
the proceeds
of the issue of
the NCD by
way of oating
charge and
hypothecation
of loans
(and/or other
assets) in the
form of a
xed charge,
INE501X0723
whereas the
2
cumulative
amount of all
assets subject
to the Floating
Charge and
the Initial
Fixed Charge
shall be, at
any time, not
less than
100% of the
outstanding
amounts under
the NCD

Rate of
interest

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Senior, Secured,
Rated, Unlisted,
Redeemable
transferable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued on
private
placement basis
of Rs.1,000/each fully paid
up.

Nature of
ISIN
security
Hypothecation
of xeddeposits

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

13(i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other
long-term borrowings
(Continued)
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Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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13(i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other
long-term borrowings
(Continued)

Particular

Nature of
security

Date of As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
repayment Secured Unsecured Secured
Unsecured

INE501X0805
7

11.35% 15-Mar-25

-

37.50

-

-

INE501X0804
0

11.50% 31-Dec-22

-

25.00

-

-

21-Jun-25

22.22

-

-

-

9.68% 07-Sep-23

50.00

-

-

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Senior,
Unsecured,
Rated, Unlisted
Redeemable
Transferable
No Security
Non-Convertible
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
1,00,000/- each.

Rate of
interest

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Unsecured
Rated Unlisted
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible No Security
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
10,000 /- each.

ISIN

Hypothecation
of book
Secured, Rated, debts/receivables
Unlisted
maintained at
Redeemable,
all times
Transferable De - at
Materialized
1.00 times of
Non-Convertible aggregate
INE501X0725
Debentures
principal
7
issued on private outstanding.
placement basis Security
of Rs.1,000/creation and
perfection
each.
required as
per laws and
regulations.

Senior, Secured,
Rated, Listed,
Market Linked
Redeemable
Non-Convertible
Debentures
issued on private
placement basis
of
Rs.10,00,000/each.

Hypothecation
of book
debts/receiva
bles backed
by small
business loans
INE501X0724
extended by
0
company to a
minimum cover
of 1.3x on the
MLD amount
outstanding.

10.20%

94
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
Nature of
security

ISIN

Rate of
interest

Hypothecation
of book
debts/receivables

maintained at
all times at
110% of
aggregate
principal
outstanding.
INE501X07265 10.70%
Security
creation and
Perfection
required as
per laws and
regulations.

Hypothecation
Senior, Secured, of book
debts/receivables
Rated, Listed,
maintained at
Redeemable,
all times at
Principal
Taxable,
105% of
Protected,
Market Linked, aggregate
Non -Convertible principal
INE501X07281
outstanding.
Debentures
Security
issued on private
placement basis creation and
of Rs.10,00,000/- Perfection
required as
each
per laws and
regulations.
Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

9.50% 24-Sep-23

15.00

-

-

-

9.90% 24-Mar-24

15.00

-

-

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hypothecation
Senior, Secured, of book
debts/receivables
Rated, Listed,
maintained at
Redeemable,
all times at
Taxable,
105% of
Principal
aggregate
Protected,
Market Linked, principal
INE501X07273
Non -Convertible outstanding.
Security
Debentures
issued on private creation and
placement basis Perfection
of Rs.10,00,000/- required as
each
per laws and
regulations.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Senior, Secured,
Rated, Unlisted,
Redeemable
Non -Convertible
Debentures
issued on private
placement basis
of Rs 1,00,000/each.

Date of As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Unsecured
repayment Secured Unsecured Secured
24-Apr-22
1.04
24-May-22
1.04
24-Jun -22
1.04
24-Jul-22
1.04
24-Aug-22
1.04
24-Sep-22
1.04
24-Oct-22
1.04
24-Nov-22
1.04
24-Dec-22
1.04
24-Jan-23
1.04
24-Feb-23
1.04
24-Mar-23
1.04
24-Apr-23
1.04
24-May-23
1.04
24-Jun -23
1.04
24-Jul-23
1.04
24-Aug-23
1.04
24-Sep-23
1.04
24-Oct-23
1.04
24-Nov-23
1.04
24-Dec-23
1.04
24-Jan-24
1.04
24-Feb-24
1.04
24-Mar-24
1.04
-

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Particular
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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13(i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other
long-term borrowings
(Continued)

Particular

Natureof
security

Rate of
Dateof As at March31, 2022 As at March31, 2021
interest repayment Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured

INE501X0806 11.25%
5

30-Apr-23

-

771.85

10.00

-

-

130.00 901.62

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Unsecured
Rated Unlisted
Redeemable
Transferable
Non-Convertible No security
Debentures
having a Face
Value of Rs.
1,00,000/each
Total ^

ISIN

20.00

^ Excluding of EIR and accrued interest.

As at
March 31,2021

Borrowings measured at amortised cost
Secured
Term loans
From banks
From other nancial institutions
External commercial borrowings

108.14
160.14
206.35

98.30
20.17
167.45

Liabilities in respect of securitised transactions
From banks
From non-banking nancial companies

108.89
-

60.92
22.04

Loans repayable on demand*
From banks
Total borrowings (other than debt securities)

14.99
598.51

368.88

392.16
206.35
598.51

201.43
167.45
368.88

Borrowings in India
Borrowings outside India

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at
March 31,2022

14 Borrowings (other than debt securities at amortised cost)

* Secured by hypothecation of Loan Receivables (current and future) / cash and cash equivalents of the Company.
Refer Note 14(i) below for the repayment details along with rate of interest and security details.
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Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
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14(i)Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other long-term
borrowing
Rate of
Interest

Nature of security

Dewan Housing
Finance Limited

Exclusive rst charge by way
of
hypothecation
of
Company's
specic
receivables to the extent of
110% of the principal loan
amount.

11.80%

State Bank of
India Loan 2

Hypothecation Assignment of
future loan receivables created
out of Bank's nance value at
133.33% of the loan
amount or loan outstanding.

9.95%

Nabkisan
Finance limited

First and exclusive charges
over the portfolio of the
Company up to the extent of
110% of the outstanding
amount at any point of time.

12.25%

HDFC bank
Limited

First and exclusive charges over
the
receivables
of
the
Company up to the extent of
125% of the outstanding
amount at any point of time.

15-May-21

-

-

1.25

-

15-Aug-21

-

-

1.25

-

15-Nov-21

-

-

1.25

-

15-Feb-22

-

-

1.24

-

1-Apr-21

-

-

1.15

-

1-Apr-21

-

-

1.25

-

1-Jul-21

-

-

1.25

-

1-Oct-21

-

-

1.25

-

11.80%

14-Apr-21
14-May-21
14-Jun-21
14-Jul-21
14-Aug-21
14-Sep-21
14-Oct-21
14-Nov-21
14-Dec-21
14-Jan-22
14-Feb-22

-

-

0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45
0.45

-

10.35%

21-Sep-21

-

-

5.00

-

15-Apr-21
15-May-21
15-Jun-21
15-Jul-21
15-Aug-21
15-Sep-21
15-Oct-21
15-Nov-21
3-Apr-21
3-May-21
3-Jun-21
3-Jul-21
3-Aug-21

-

-

0.53
0.54
0.54
0.55
0.55
0.56
0.56
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63

-

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
TATA CAPITAL
up to the extent of 1.1x of the
FINANCE LOANoutstanding amount at any
1
point of time.

11.20%

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.1x of the
outstanding amount at any
point of time.

11.34%

AU Small
Finance Bank
Loan-3

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RBL Bank Ltd

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 110% of the
outstanding amount at any
point of time.

Date of As at March 31, 2022
repayment Secured Unsecured

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particular
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

Rate of
Interest

Nature of security

HDFC TERM
LOAN

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.33x of the
outstanding amount at any
point of time.

9.85%

ResponsAbility
ECB

First and exclusive charges
over the portfolio of the

11.35%

10.95%

AU Small
Finance Bank
Loan-4

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.10x of the
outstanding amount at any
point of time.

12.50%

Hiranandani
Financial
Services

First rank exclusive and
continuing charge by way of
Hypothecation
borrowers
present and future book debt
created out of Hiranandani
Financial Services Limited Term
loan from time to time so as to
maintain minimum asset cover
of 1.1x times on
principal outstanding.

13.00%

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured
1.04
1.04
1.04
1.04
1.04
1.04
-

5-Aug-22

37.90

-

34.50

-

30-Apr-21
31-May-21
30-Jun-21
31-Jul-21
31-Aug-21
30-Sep-21
31-Oct-21
30-Nov-21
31-Dec-21
31-Jan-22
28-Feb-22
31-Mar-22
30-Apr-22
31-May-22
30-Jun-22
31-Jul-22
31-Aug-22
30-Sep-22
31-Oct-22
30-Nov-22
31-Dec-22
18-Apr-21
18-May-21
18-Jun-21
18-Jul-21
18-Aug-21
18-Sep-21
18-Oct-21
18-Nov-21
18-Dec-21
18-Jan-22
18-Feb-22
18-Mar-22

0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.40
-

-

0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.40
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73
0.73

-

4-Apr-21

-

-

0.40

-

4-May-21

-

-

0.40

-

4-Jun-21

-

-

0.41

-

4-Jul-21

-

-

2.81

-

4-Aug-21

-

-

2.92

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEDERAL BANK
LOAN 1

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.10x of the
outstanding amount at any
point of time.

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured
30-Apr-21
31-May-21
30-Jun-21
31-Jul-21
31-Aug-21
30-Sep-21
-

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particular
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14(i)Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other long-term
borrowing
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Nature of security

SIDBI

Exclusive First Charge by way
of Hypothecation and Book
Debts and receivables of the
loans provided by the Borrower
to MSMEs which are standard
assets in the Books of the
Borrower as per extant RBI
Guidelines with
minimum asset cover of 1.10

Invest in Vision
ECB-Tranche 1

Exclusive Charge 1.2x cover on
book debts of minimum regular
HDFC Term Loan repayment of 4 months.
Overdue
interest accrued,
-2
interest not to be considered

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured

6.85%

10-Apr-21

-

-

2.90

-

11.05%

29-Sep-23

43.33

-

43.33

-

11.10%

29-Jun-23

84.89

-

84.89

-

30-Apr-21
31-May-21
30-Jun-21
31-Jul-21
31-Aug-21
30-Sep-21
31-Oct-21
30-Nov-21
31-Dec-21
31-Jan-22
28-Feb-22
31-Mar-22
30-Apr-22
31-May-22
30-Jun-22
31-Jul-22
31-Aug-22
30-Sep-22
31-Oct-22
30-Nov-22
31-Dec-22
31-Jan-23
28-Feb-23
31-Mar-23
30-Apr-23
31-May-23
30-Jun-23
31-Jul-23
31-Aug-23
30-Sep-23

0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69

-

0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.69

-

9.50%

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Invest in Vision
ECB-Tranche 2

Hypothecation
of
book
debts/receivables maintained
at all times at 60% of
aggregate
principal
outstanding. Security creation
and perfection required as
per laws and regulations.
Hypothecation
of
book
debts/receivables maintained
at all times at 60% of
aggregate
principal
outstanding. Security creation
and perfection required as
per laws and regulations.

Rate of
Interest

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particular
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14(i)Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other long-term
borrowing
Particular

Nature of security

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credit Saison

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.00x of the
outstanding amount.

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.55
0.75
-

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Exclusive Charge on specic
Federal Bank TL- receivables created out of term
2
loan with a cover of 1.10 times.

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured
11-Apr-21
11-May-21
11-Jun-21
11-Jul-21
11-Aug-21
11-Sep-21
11-Oct-21
11-Nov-21
11-Dec-21
11-Jan-22
11-Feb-22
11-Mar-22
11-Apr-22
0.55
11-May-22
0.55
11-Jun-22
0.55
11-Jul-22
0.55
9.10%
11-Aug-22
0.55
11-Sep-22
0.55
11-Oct-22
0.55
11-Nov-22
0.55
11-Dec-22
0.55
11-Jan-23
0.55
11-Feb-23
0.55
11-Mar-23
0.55
11-Apr-23
0.55
11-May-23
0.55
11-Jun-23
0.55
11-Jul-23
0.55
11-Aug-23
0.55
11-Sep-23
0.55
11-Oct-23
0.55
11-Nov-23
0.55
11-Dec-23
0.55
11-Jan-24
0.55
11-Feb-24
0.75
30-Jun-22
2.08
30-Sep-22
2.08
31-Dec-22
2.08
31-Mar-23
2.08
11.35%
30-Jun-23
2.08
30-Sep-23
2.08
31-Dec-23
2.08
31-Mar-24
2.08
30-Jun-24
2.08
-

Rate of
Interest

100
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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CSB Bank Term
Loan

Exclusive charge by way
of
hypothecation
of
standard
loan receivables
of the
Company (both present and
future) created out of loan
available from bank with an
asset cover of 1.10x
on
receivables.

AU Small
Finance Bank
Loan-5

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

First and
over the
Company
1.1x of
amount.

exclusive charges
portfolio of the
up to the extent of
the outstanding

Rate of
Interest

9.10%

9.50%

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured
30-Apr-21
31-May-21
30-Jun-21
31-Jul-21
31-Aug-21
30-Sep-21
31-Oct-21
30-Nov-21
31-Dec-21
31-Jan-22
28-Feb-22
31-Mar-22
30-Apr-22
0.56
31-May-22
0.56
30-Jun0.56
22
31-Jul-22
31-Aug-22
30-Sep-22
31-Oct-22
30-Nov-22
31-Dec22
31-Jan23
28-Feb-23
31-Mar-23
30-Apr-23
31-May-23
30-Jun-23
31-Jul-23
31-Aug-23
30-Sep-23
31-Oct-23
30-Nov-23
31-Dec-23
31-Jan-24
28-Feb-24
31-Mar-24
3-May-22
3-Jun-22
3-Jul-22
3-Aug-22
3-Sep-22
3-Oct-22
3-Nov-22
3-Dec-22
3-Jan-23
3-Feb-23
3-Mar-23
3-Apr-23
3-May23
3-Jun-23
3-Jul-23
3-Aug-23
3-Sep-23
3-Oct-23
3-Nov-23
3-Dec-23
3-Jan-24

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
-

0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56

-

0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56

-

0.56

-

0.56

-

0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63

-

0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
0.56
-

-

0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63
0.63

-

-

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of security
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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Particular

Credit Saison

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.10x of the
outstanding amount.

Microvest
Capital
Management,
LLC

First and exclusive charges
over the portfolio of the
Company up to the extent of
1.00x of the outstanding
amount.

Northern Arc
Capital Ltd.

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.20x of the
outstanding amount.

10.60
%

11.25%

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured
-

-

29-Oct-24

37.52

-

-

-

27-Nov-23

9.83

-

-

-

25-Dec-23

9.98

-

-

-

25-Jan-24

10.04

-

-

-

26-Feb-24

10.15

-

-

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.00x of the
outstanding amount .

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured
15-May-22
2.08
15-Aug-22
2.08
15-Nov-22
2.08
15-Feb-23
2.08
15-May-23
2.08
11.00% 15-Aug-23
2.08
15-Nov-23
2.08
15-Feb-24
2.08
15-May-24
2.08
15-Aug-24
2.08
15-Nov-24
2.08
15-Feb-25
2.08
27-Apr-22
0.76
27-May-22
0.76
27-Jun-22
0.76
27-Jul-22
0.76
27-Aug-22
0.76
27-Sep-22
0.76
27-Oct-22
0.76
27-Nov-22
0.76
27-Dec-22
0.76
27-Jan-23
0.76
27-Feb-23
0.76
27-Mar-23
0.76
27-Apr-23
0.76
27-May-23
0.76
27-Jun-23
0.76
10.75%
27-Jul-23
0.76
27-Aug-23
0.76
27-Sep-23
0.76
27-Oct-23
0.76
27-Nov-23
0.76
27-Dec-23
0.76
27-Jan-24
0.76
27-Feb-24
0.76
27-Mar-24
0.76
27-Apr-24
0.76
27-May-24
0.76
27-Jun-24
0.76
27-Jul-24
0.76
27-Aug-24
0.76
27-Sep-24
0.76
27-Oct-24
0.76
27-Nov-24
0.76
27-Dec-24
0.76
-

Rate of
Interest

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Maanaveeya
Development &
Finance Private
Limited

Nature of security
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

Nature of security

TATA Capital
Financial
Services Limited

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.10x of the
outstanding amount.

RBL TL-2

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.20x of the
outstanding amount.

RBL TL-3

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.20x of the
outstanding amount.

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured
-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIDBI

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.10x of the
outstanding amount.

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured
5-Apr-22
0.50
5-May-22
0.50
5-Jun-22
0.50
5-Jul-22
0.50
5-Aug-22
0.50
5-Sep-22
0.50
5-Oct-22
0.50
5-Nov-22
0.50
5-Dec-22
0.50
5-Jan-23
0.50
5-Feb-23
0.50
10.00%
5-Mar-23
0.50
5-Apr-23
0.50
5-May-23
0.50
5-Jun-23
0.50
5-Jul-23
0.50
5-Aug-23
0.50
5-Sep-23
0.50
5-Oct-23
0.50
5-Nov-23
0.50
5-Dec-23
0.50
5-Jan-24
0.50
5-Feb-24
0.50
5-Mar-24
0.50
10-Apr-22
2.20
10-May-22
2.20
10-Jun-22
2.20
10-Jul-22
2.20
10.75%
10-Aug-22
2.20
10-Sep-22
2.20
10-Oct-22
2.20
10-Nov-22
2.20
10-Dec-22
2.40
30-Apr-22
0.67
31-May-22
0.67
30-Jun-22
0.67
31-Jul-22
0.67
9.40%
31-Aug-22
0.67
30-Sep-22
0.67
31-Oct-22
0.67
30-Nov-22
0.67
30-Dec-22
0.67
27-Apr-22
0.67
27-May-22
0.67
27-Jun-22
0.67
27-Jul-22
0.67
27-Aug-22
0.67
9.35%
27-Sep-22
0.67
27-Oct-22
0.67
27-Nov-22
0.67
27-Dec-22
0.67
27-Jan-23
0.67
27-Feb-23
0.67
27-Mar-23
0.67
-

Rate of
Interest

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

Particular

Company up to the extent of
1.10x of
amount.

the

outstanding

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

First and exclusive charges
over the portfolio of the

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured
-

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

First and exclusive charges
Piramal Capital over the portfolio of the
& Housing
Company up to the extent of
Finance Ltd.
1.10x of the outstanding
amount.

MAS TL-3

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured
5-Aug-22
1.43
5-Sep-22
1.43
5-Oct-22
1.43
5-Nov-22
1.43
5-Dec-22
1.43
5-Jan-23
1.43
5-Feb-23
1.43
5-Mar-23
1.43
5-Apr-23
1.43
5-May-23
1.43
11.00%
5-Jun-23
1.43
5-Jul-23
1.43
5-Aug1.43
23
5-Sep-23
1.43
5-Oct-23
1.43
5-Nov-23
1.43
5-Dec-23
1.43
5-Jan-24
1.43
5-Feb-24
1.43
5-Mar-24
1.43
30-Mar-24
1.43
25-Apr-22
0.21
25-May-22
0.21
10-Jun-22
0.21
25-Jul-22
0.21
25-Aug-22
0.21
23-Sep-22
0.21
25-Oct-22
0.21
25-Nov-22
0.21
23-Dec-22
0.21
25-Jan-23
0.21
24-Feb0.21
23
24-Mar0.21
10.75% 23
25-Apr0.21
23
25-May0.21
23
23-Jun-23
0.21
25-Jul-23
0.21
25-Aug-23
0.21
25-Sep-23
0.21
25-Oct-23
0.21
24-Nov-23
0.21
25-Dec-23
0.21
25-Jan-24
0.21
23-Feb-24
0.21
25-Mar-24
0.21
-

Rate of
Interest

Nature of security

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

14(i)Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other long-term
borrowing

104

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

Particular

DCB Bank

Total

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.10x of the
outstanding amount.

First and exclusive charges
over the portfolio of the
Company up to the extent of
1.10x of the outstanding
amount.

30-Apr-22

5.00

-

-

-

28-Jun-22

10.00

-

-

-

487.99

-

281.74

-

9.50%

*The amounts mentioned above represents only principal outstanding on all types of borrowings

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

As at March 31, 2021
Secured
Unsecured
-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HDFC Bank Ltd

First and exclusive charges over
the portfolio of the Company
up to the extent of 1.10x of the
outstanding amount.

Date of As at March 31, 2022
Repayment Secured Unsecured
25-Apr-22
0.21
25-May-22
0.21
10-Jun-22
0.21
25-Jul-22
0.21
25-Aug-22
0.21
23-Sep-22
0.21
25-Oct-22
0.21
25-Nov-22
0.21
23-Dec-22
0.21
25-Jan-23
0.21
24-Feb-23
0.21
10.75%
24-Mar-23
0.21
25-Apr-23
0.21
25-May-23
0.21
23-Jun-23
0.21
25-Jul-23
0.21
25-Aug-23
0.21
25-Sep-23
0.21
25-Oct-23
0.21
24-Nov-23
0.21
25-Dec-23
0.21
25-Jan-24
0.21
23-Feb-24
0.21
25-Mar-24
0.21
30-Apr-22
0.83
31-May-22
0.83
30-Jun-22
0.83
31-Jul-22
0.83
31-Aug-22
0.83
30-Sep-22
0.83
31-Oct-22
0.83
30-Nov-22
0.83
31-Dec-22
0.83
31-Jan-23
0.83
28-Feb-23
0.83
8.55%
31-Mar-23
0.83
30-Apr-23
0.83
31-May-23
0.83
30-Jun-23
0.83
31-Jul-23
0.83
31-Aug-23
0.83
30-Sep-23
0.83
31-Oct-23
0.83
30-Nov-23
0.83
31-Dec-23
0.83
31-Jan-24
0.83
29-Feb-24
0.83
28-Mar-24
0.83
-

Rate of
Interest

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

MAS TL-4

Nature of security
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

Lease liabilities

16 Other nancial liabilities

17 Provisions

Other provisions
Provision for dividend on CCPS

18 Other non-nancial liabilities
Statutory dues payable
EMI and interest received in advance from customers(includingPre EMI)

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March 31,2021

1.64
8.02
22.89
0.23
32.78
As at
March 31,2022

0.72
4.95
0.37
6.04
As at
March 31,2021

9.24
3.89
10.00

7.45
5.31
10.17

0.01
23.14

0.01
22.94

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provision for employee benets
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for bonus

March 31,2021
22.70
22.70

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

At amortised cost
Employee benet payable
Expenses payable
DSRA payable
Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment

March 31,2022
23.35
23.35

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

15 Lease liabilities

3

As at
As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
4.52
4.10
1.83
8.40
6.35
12.50
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

Authorized
55,00,000(March 31, 2021: 55,00,000Shares) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights

Asat
March31,2021
5.50

29.10

29.10

34.60

34.60

4.83

4.83

Less: amount recoverable from ESOP Trust (face value of 5,60,294 shares of Rs. 10 each by held
trust) (March 31, 2021: 5,60,294)

(0.56)

(0.56)

26,182,448 Shares (March 31, 2021: 2,61,82,448 Shares) 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each

26.18

26.18

30.45

30.45

2,91,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 2,91,00,000 Shares) Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative
Preference shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid -up
48,30,500(March 31, 2021: 48,30,500Shares) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights

Details of shares held by promoters**
As at March 31, 2022

S. No.

Promoter name

Nil

Nil

%of total
shares
Nil

No. of
shares
Nil

% of total
shares
Nil

As at March 31, 2021

S. No.

Promoter name

Nil

Nil

19.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Particulars
As at March 31, 2021
Equity shares with voting rights
No. of shares
Amount
0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS)
No. of shares
Amount
As at March 31, 2022
Equity shares with voting rights
No. of shares
Amount
0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS)
No. of shares
Amount

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Opening Balance

Fresh issue

Closing Balance

48,30,500

-

48,30,500

4.83

-

4.83

2,27,72,648
22.77

34,09,800

2,61,82,448

3.41

26.18

48,30,500

-

48,30,500

4.83

-

4.83

-

2,61,82,448

-

26.18

2,61,82,448
26.18

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No. of
shares
Nil

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

5.50
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As at
March31,2022

19 Equity share capital
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

19.2 Terms, rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of Equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of
their shareholding.

19.5
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 1,335,756 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up at premium of
Rs. 58.13 per share. These shares have been allotted between SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa Asia Investment Company in equal proportion. The Preference Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of
the Company in accordance with the Schedule 7 of the Series A1 Shareholders Agreement dated 31st July
2015 executed by the Company with SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa - Asia Investment
Company.
(Series A1)
19.6
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 719,252 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up at premium of Rs.
58.13 per share. These shares have been allotted between SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa Asia Investment Company in equal proportion. The Preference Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of
the Company in accordance with the Schedule 7 of the Series A1 Shareholders Agreement dated 31st July
2015 executed by the Company with SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa - Asia Investment
Company.(Series A1)

108
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19.4
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 880,718 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up at premium of Rs.
58.13 per share. These shares have been allotted between SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa Asia Investment Company in equal proportion. The Preference Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of
the Company in accordance with the Schedule 7 of the Series A1 Shareholders Agreement dated 31st July
2015 executed by the Company with SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa - Asia Investment
Company. (Series A)

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

19.3
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 2,068,764 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up at premium of
Rs. 19.00 per share. These shares have been allotted between SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa Asia Investment Company in equal proportion. The Preference Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of
the Company in accordance with the Schedule 7 of the Series A Shareholders Agreement dated January 29,
2015 executed by the Company with SAIF Partners India V Limited and Action Africa - Asia Investment
Company.
(Series A)

CORPORATE OVERVIEW
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

19.8
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 5,736,709 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each and 100 equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up at premium of Rs. 246.24 per share. These shares have been allotted between SAIF Partners
India V Limited, LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP and CapitalG LP . The Preference Shares shall be
convertible into equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the Schedule 7 of the Series C Shareholders
Agreement dated May 24, 2018 executed by the Company with SAIF Partners India V Limited, LGT Capital Invest
Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP and CapitalG LP. (Series C)

19.10
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 34,09,800 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up at premium of Rs.
605.87 per share. These shares have been allotted between LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP,
CapitalG International LLC, Falcon Edge India I LP, A91 Emerging Fund I LLP and MAJ Invest Financial Inclusion
Fund II K/S. The Preference Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the
Schedule 7 of the Series E Shareholders Agreement dated June 08, 2020 executed by the Company with SAIF
Partners India V Limited,A91 Emerging Fund I LLP, LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP, CapitalG LP,
CapitalG International LLC, Falcon Edge India I LP and MAJ Invest Financial Inclusion Fund II K/S. (SeriesE)
19.11
The holders of the Series A, Series A1 CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series C CCPS, Series D CCPS and Series E CCPS may
convert the CCPS in whole or part into equity shares at any time before 19 (Nineteen) years from the date
of issuance of the same.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.9
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 54,75,089 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each and 100 equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up at premium of Rs. 416.70 per share. These shares have been allotted between LGT Capital
Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP, CapitalG LP, Falcon Edge India I LP and MAJ Invest Financial Inclusion Fund II
K/S. The Preference Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the
Schedule 7 of the Series D Shareholders Agreement dated 14th February, 2019 executed by the Company with
SAIF Partners India V Limited, Action Africa - Asia Investment Company, LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell
E/VP, CapitalG LP, Falcon Edge India I LP and MAJ Invest Financial Inclusion Fund II K/S. (Series D)

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

19.7
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 6,556,360 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each and 100 equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up at premium of Rs. 96.76 per share. These shares have been allotted between SAIF Partners
India V Limited and Action Africa - Asia Investment Company and LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP.
The Preference Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the Schedule 7
of the Series B Shareholders Agreement dated 13th October, 2016 executed by the Company with SAIF Partners
India V Limited and Action Africa - Asia Investment Company and LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP.
(Series B)

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

19 Equity share capital
(Continued)

3

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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19.12 Details of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
Particulars

%

9,79,750
8,49,625
8,49,625
6,31,000
5,60,294
2,61,965

19.77%
17.59%
17.59%
13.06%
11.60%
5.42%

9,54,750
8,49,625
8,49,625
6,31,000
5,60,294
2,61,965

19.77%
17.59%
17.59%
13.06%
11.60%
5.42%

61,59,852
53,90,925
39,37,237
22,04,985
41,31,987
32,00,565

23.53%
20.59%
15.04%
8.42%
15.78%
12.22%

61,59,852
53,90,925
39,37,237
22,04,985
41,31,987
32,00,565

23.53%
20.59%
15.04%
8.42%
15.78%
12.22%

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

6,67,921

6,07,323

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative
Preference shares
SAIF Partners India V Limited
LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP
CapitalG LP
MAJ Invest Financial Inclusion Fund II K/S
Falcon Edge India I LP
A91 Emerging Fund I LLP

%

As at
March 31, 2021
Number of shares
held

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Equity shares with vo ng rights
Sanjay Sharma
Shankh Corpora on LLP
Shvet Corpora on LLP
Vikram Jetley
Aye Finance Employee Welfare Trust
Namrata Sharma

As at
March 31, 2022
Number of shares
held

19.13 Number of shares reserved for share options
Particulars
Equity shares of Rs. 10 fully paid up
Number of shares reserved for ESOPs

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

19 Equity share capital
(Continued)

19.14 Shares allotted as fully paid-up without payment being received in cash / by way of bonus shares
The Company have not issued bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash during the ve year period immediately
preceding the reporting date.
19.15 Shares bought back
Company have not bought back any of its securities during the ve year period immediately preceding the reporting date.
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

March31,2021

659.34
659.34

452.78
206.56
659.34

ESOP reserve account
Opening balance
Add:Deferred stock compensation expense (net)
Less: Utilisation of deferred stock compensation expense
Closing balance

7.45
4.05
11.50

4.22
3.53
(0.30)
7.45

Statutory reserve
Balance as per the last nancial statements
Add:Amount transferred from surplus of protand loss
Closing balance

15.13
15.13

11.75
3.38
15.13

34.81
(45.72)

20.92
16.89

Other comprehensive income
Opening balance
Add: Comprehensive income for the year
Closing balance
Total other equity

-

(3.00)

(10.91)

34.81

(0.48)
0.98
0.50

(0.38)
(0.10)
(0.48)
716.25

675.56

Nature and purpose of reserves:
Statutory reserves
The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. This is a restricted
reserve and no appropriation can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by
Reserve Bank of India.
Securities Premium reserves
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for
limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Surplus/(Decit)in statement of prot and loss
Openingbalance
Add:Prot forthe year
Less: Transfer to statutory Reserve[@ 20% of prot after tax as required bySection45-IC of
Reserve Bankof India Act,1934]
Closing balance

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

March 31,2022
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20 Other equity
Securities premium
Opening balance
Add:Premium on shares issued during the period
Closing balance

3
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)
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Employee stock outstanding account
In accordance with resolution approved by the shareholders, the Company has reserved shares options, for issuance
to the eligible employees through ESOP scheme. The Company has approved stock option scheme on September 11,
2018 as amended from time to time. The Administrator (i.e. Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') of the
Company's board of directors) has the power to grant the options in pursuance to the ESOP scheme, each option
consist of one equity share.
Such option vest at a denite date, save for specic incidents, prescribed in the schemes as framed/ approved by the
Company. Such options are exercisable for a period following vesting at the discretion of the NRC, subject to the
conditions prescribed in the ESOP scheme as amended from time to time.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Surplus / (decit) in statement of prot and loss
Retained earnings or accumulated surplus represents total of all prots retained since Company’s inception. Retained
earnings are credited with current year prots, reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay-outs, transfers to General
reserve or any such other appropriations to specic reserves.
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of the net dened benet liabilities comprise actuarial gain or loss.
21 Interest income

22 Fees and commission income
Servicing fee
Delay payment charges,registration charges, cheque dishonour charges etc.

23 Net gain on fair value changes
Investments
Loss on currency uctuation
Gain on sale of mutual funds
Realised
Unrealised

24 Other income
Miscellaneous income

For the year ended
March 31,2021

402.90
12.49
415.39

467.15
15.36
482.51

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On nancial assetsmeasured at amortised cost
Interest on loans to customers
Interest on deposits with banks

For the year ended
March31,2022

For the year ended For the year ended
March31,2022
March 31,2021
0.01
0.08
8.03
8.07
8.04
8.15

For the year ended For the year ended
March31,2022
March 31,2021
0.52
7.97
8.49

0.01
4.60
4.61

7.78
0.71
8.49

2.99
1.62
4.61

For the year ended For the year ended
March31,2022
March 31,2021
11.57
4.15
11.57
4.15
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Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

Interest on:
Debt securities
Borrowings(other than debt securities)
Lease liabilities
Delayed payment of statutory dues
Other nance cost

Loss on fair value of cross currency swap

27 Impairment on nancial instruments
Measured at amortised cost
Impairment on nancial instruments at amortised cost
Amounts written off (net of recovery)
Loss on settlement

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Expense on employee stock option (ESOP) scheme [Refer Note38]
Staff welfare expenses
Gratuity expenses

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

115.01
111.08
1.81
0.01
7.24
235.15

For the year ended
March 31,2022
2.10
2.10

For the year ended
March 31,2021
5.08
5.08

For the year ended
March 31,2022

For the year ended
March 31,2021

6.22
113.21
1.67
121.10
For the year ended
March 31,2022
145.34
12.19
4.05
10.64
3.54
175.76

18.20
36.86
55.06
For the year ended
March 31,2021
117.82
9.32
3.53
7.75
3.02
141.44
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28 Employee benets expense

106.89
42.63
2.77
0.01
6.25
158.55

For the year ended
March 31,2021

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

26 Net loss on fair value changes

For the year ended
March31, 2022
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25 Finance cost
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0.46
0.25
0.04
0.13
0.87

0.28
0.10
0.02
0.06
0.46
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(i)Payment to auditors
Statutory audit
Limited review
Tax audit
Other certications

For the year ended
March 31,2021
0.13
3.02
0.75
3.54
0.33
0.46
0.51
3.18
12.11
0.93
0.45
3.21
1.28
0.22
30.12
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Rates and taxes
Communication costs
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional charges
Directors fees
Payment to auditors [Refer Note(i) below]
Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
Membership and subscription fees
Travel and conveyance
Tourand travelling
Electricity expenses
Ofce expenses
Bank charges
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment's
Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended
March31, 2022
0.75
4.15
1.55
6.16
0.22
0.87
1.04
4.79
13.02
2.85
0.77
3.90
1.00
0.02
2.33
43.42
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29 Other expenses

3

30 Disclosure pertaining to corporate social responsibility expenses

Particulars
Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
Amount spent during the year ending on March31,2022
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

For the year ended
March 2022
0.65
1.04

For the year ended
March 2021
0.51
0.51

(a) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures
(refer note no 35).
(b) The Company has undertaken CSR Activities as per schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Basic EPS amounts is calculated by dividing the prot for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the
weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except
where the result would be anti-dilutive.
Particulars

For the year ended
March 2022

16.79
16.79
3,00,32,047
4,08,170
3,04,40,217
5.58
5.51
10.00

For the year ended
March 2021
0.73

(ii)During the previous year, the Company has received a demand for income tax under Income Tax Act, 1961 for
rupees 2.44 crores for the assessment year 2017-18. The order is disputed by the Company and the Company had
led an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax Appeals and has deposited rupees 0.48 crores as demand
against protest. Based on the opinion received from the Company's consultant, the Company believes that the

likelihood of materialising the liability may arise.
33 Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.
The CODM considers the entire business of the Company on a holistic basis to make operating decisions reviews the
operating results of the Company as a whole. Further the Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e.
granting loans, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 “Operating segments”, and is
considered to be the only reportable business segment.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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32 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
For the year ended
Particulars
March 2022
(i) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
0.10
not provided for
Commitments related to loans sanctioned but not disbursed
7.95

For the year ended
March 2021
DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(Loss)/ Prot attributable to equity holders
(45.72)
Less: Preference dividend
Net (Loss)/Prot attributable to equity holders
(45.72)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year-for Basic EPS 3,10,12,948
Effect of dilutive potential equity share equivalent
4,47,091
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year-for Dilutive EPS 3,14,60,039
Basic earnings per share (Rs.)
(14.74)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)
(14.74)
Nominal value per share (Rs.)
10.00

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

31 Earnings per share
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34 Employee benets
34.1Dened contribution plans
The Company makes Provident Fund to dened contribution plan for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specied percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benets. The Company
recognised rupees 12.19 crores (March 31, 2021: rupees 9.32 crores) for Provident Fund contributions in the
statement of prot and loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specied in the
rules of the schemes.
34.2Other long-term benets

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The company has a dened benet leave encashment plan for its employees. Under this plan, they are entitled to
encashment of earned leaves subject to certain limits and other conditions specied for the same. The liabilities
towards leave encashment have been provided on the basis of actuarial valuation. The Company recognised rupees
3.21 crores (March 31, 2021: rupees 2.48 crores) for compensated absences in the statement of prot and loss.
34.3 Dened benet plans

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's gratuity scheme provide for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed
year of service or part thereof in excess of six months in terms of provisions of Gratuity Act, 1972. Vesting occurs upon
completion of ve years of service.The present value of dened benet obligation and the related current service
cost were measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date.The following table summarises the components of net benet expense recognised in the
statement of prot and loss and the amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

(i)Amount recognised in the statement of prot and loss and other comprehensive income:
Particulars
Current service cost
Interest expense
Amount recognised in the statement of prot and loss
Remeasurement of dened benet liability:
Actuarial (gain)/ loss from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss from changes in nancial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/ loss from experience adjustments
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

As at
March 31,2022
3.04
0.50
3.54

As at
March31,2021
2.72
0.30
3.02

0.51
(0.67)
(1.15)
(1.31)

(0.21)
0.34
0.13

2.23

3.15

(ii)Reconciliation of fair value plan assets and dened benet obligation
Particulars
Dened benet obligation
Net dened asset /(liability) recognised in the balance sheet

As at
March 31,2022
9.24
9.24

As at
March31,2021
7.45
7.45
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(iii) Actual contributions and benet payments during the year
Particulars
Actual benet payments

As at
March 31,2022
(0.44)

Asat
March31,2021
(0.19)

As at
March 31,2022
7.45
3.04
0.50

Asat
March31,2021
4.49
2.72
0.30

(0.67)
(1.15)
0.51
(0.44)
9.24

0.34
(0.21)
(0.19)
7.45

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

34.Employee benets
(Continued)
34.3 Dened benet plans

(iv) Changes in the present value of the dened benet obligation are as follows:

(v) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year
Fair value of plan assets atend of theyear

-

-

34.4The principal assumptions used in determining obligations for the Company's plan are shown below:

Particulars
Discount rate(in %)
Future salary increase (in %)
Retirement age
Demographic assumptions
Attrition
Upton 30 years
31-44years
Above 44years
Mortality

As at
March 31,2022
7.26%
10.00%
60.00

34.20%
4.70%
0.98%
IALM(2012-14)

Asat
March31,2021
6.76%
10.00%
60.00

26.10%
7.53%
0.27%
IALM(2012 -14)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet
date for the estimated term of obligations. The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the
ination, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Dened benet obligation at beginning of the year
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest expense
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses
Actuarial (gain)/ loss from changes in nancial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/ loss from experience adjustments
Actuarial (gain) / loss from changes in demographic assumptions
Benets paid
Dened benet obligation at end of the year

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particulars
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Sensitivity analysis
Signicant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the dened obligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Present value of obligation at the end of the period
Effect of +50 basis points in rate of discounting
Effectof -50 basis points in rate of discounting
Present value of obligation at the end of the period
Effect of +50 basis points in rate of salary increase
Effect of -50 basis points in rate of salary increase

As at
March 31,2022
9.24
(0.73)
0.82

Asat
March31,2021
7.45
(0.56)
0.63

9.24
0.75
(0.68)

7.45
0.57
(0.52)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the dened benet
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated. Further more, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the
dened benet obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the dened benet obligation liability recognised in the
balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Experience adjustments
2021-22
2020-21
2019-20
2018-19
2017-18
2016-17

Present value of
dened benet
obligation
9.24
7.45
4.49
1.99
0.80
0.37

Fair value of
plan assets
-

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particulars
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34.4 The principal assumptions used in determining obligations for the Company's plan are shown below:
(Continued)

Estimated gain/
Estimated gain/
(loss) adjustments (loss) adjustments
on plan liabilities
on plan assets
(1.15)
0.34
(0.11)
0.00
(0.00)
0.02
-

118

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

Interest risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in
an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benet and will thus result in an increase in the value of the
liability (as shown in nancial statements).

Salary Escalation risk: The present value of the dened benet plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan
participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a
bearing on the plan's liability.
Demographic risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability.
The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Regulatory risk: Gratuity benet is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
(as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-outs (e.g.
Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000).

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Liquidity risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term / long term gratuity pay-outs. This
may arise due to non availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid
assets not being sold in time.
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34.5 Risk exposure:
Through its dened benet plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most signicant of which are
detailed below:
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35 Related party disclosures Disclosures in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party
Disclosures, as identied and certied by the management, are set out as below:
35.1Details of related parties:

Independent directors

Mr. Navin Kumar Maini
Ms. Kanika Tandon Bhal
Mr. Vinay Baijal
Aye Finance Employee Welfare Trust
Strategic Resource till May 31, 2020
Elevation Capital V Limited (formerly known as SAIF Partners India V Ltd.)
Falcon Edge India I LP
A91 Emerging Fund I LLP
LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC with Cell E/VP
CapitalG LP
CapitalG International LLC
Foundation for Advancement of Micro Enterprises (Section 8 Company)
Ms. Namrata Sharma

Entities over which KMP's have signicant
inuence
Entities exercising signicant inuence over
the Company

Subsidiary Company
Relatives of KMP

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Names of related parties
Mr. Sanjay Sharma -Managing Director
Mr. Samir Mehta - Deputy CEO, w.e.f. August 03,2020
Mr. Mayank Shyam Thatte- Chief Financial Ofcer, w.e.f. June 25, 2021
Mr. Vikram Jetley–Whole time Director, till April19, 2020
Mr. Vikram Jetley – Non-executive Director, from April 20,2020
till January 01,2022
Mr. Ashish Sharma-Chief Financial Ofcer, till April16,2021

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Description of relationship
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

35.2 Details of related party transactions during the year ended March31,2022 and outstanding balance as
at March 31,2022:
As at
Asat
Particulars
March31,2022 March31,2021
(i) Managerial remuneration
Short-term employee benets
6.63
6.73
Post employment benets
Other long-term benets
Termination benets
Share based payments
(a)Excluding provision for gratuity and compensated absences as the same are
actuarially determined for the Company as a whole and thus not separately
ascertainable for the Director
(b) The above detail doesn't include employees stock options plan cost charged in prot
and loss account

(iii) Shares issued during the year

Entities exercising signicant inuence over the Company
A91Emerging Fund I LLP
LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC
CapitalG International LLC
Falcon Edge India I LP

-

0.49
0.91
1.16
0.49
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Particulars

-

29.51
55.34
70.09
29.51

-

0.0006
0.0001
0.0003
0.0005
0.0004
0.0004

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

1.00
1.00

0.41
0.41

(iv) Security premium received
Entities exercising signicant inuence over the Company
A91Emerging Fund I LLP
LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC
CapitalG International LLC
Falcon Edge India I LP
(v) Dividend on 0.01%on CCPS
Entities exercising signicant inuence over the Company
SAIF Partners India V Limited
CapitalG International LLC
A91 Emerging Fund I LLP
LGT Capital Invest Mauritius PCC
CapitalG LP
Falcon Edge India I LP
(vi) Corporate social responsibility
Particulars
Foundation for Advancement of Micro Enterprises (FAME)
(vii)Balance outstanding at the end of the year
(a) Long term loans and advances
Particulars
Aye Finance Employee Welfare Trust

As at

As at

March 31, 2022
0.13
0.13

March 31, 2021
0.13
0.13

As at
March 31, 2022
0.25
0.25

As at
March 31, 2021
0.25
0.25

As at
March 31, 2022
0.98
0.26
1.24

As at
March 31, 2021
0.98
0.26
1.24

(b) Investment in subsidiarycompany
Particulars
Foundation for Advancement of Micro Enterprises (FAME)

(c) Equity shares outstanding
Particulars
Mr. Sanjay Sharma
Ms. Namrata Sharma

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at
March 31, 2021
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As at
March 31, 2022
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35.2Details of related party transac ons during the year ended March 31, 2022 and outstanding balance as at March 31, 2021:
(Con nued)
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(viii)Loans and advances in nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as dened under the Companies
Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or
period of repayment

Amount of loan or advance in nature of loan
outstanding
Nil

Type of borrower

Percentage to the total loans and
advances in the nature of loans
Nil

Nil
(ix)All the related party transactions that were entered during the nancial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's
length basis. There were no materially signicant transactions made by the company with the related parties either individually or taken
together with the previous transactions which may have a potential conict with the interest of the company at large. All the related party
transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and subsequently before the Board of Directors for approval and review on quarterly
basis.
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36 Capital work-in-progress
Particulars
Capital work-in-progress

As at
March 31, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

0.06
0.06

0.01
0.01

As at March 31, 2022
CWIP
Less than 1 year

Total
More than 3 years

0.06

-

-

-

0.06

-

-

-

-

0.06
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Projects in progress
Mobile app
Projects temporarily suspended
Nil

Amount of CWIP for a period of
1 - 2 year
2 - 3 year

As at March 31, 2021
CWIP
Less than 1 year
Projects in progress
Mobile app
Projects temporarily suspended
Nil

Amount of CWIP for a period of
1 - 2 year
2 - 3 year

Total
More than 3 years

-

0.01

-

-

0.01

-

0.01

-

-

0.01

37 Ratio analysisand it's elements**
Ratio
(a) Capital to risk -weighted assets ratio (CRAR)
(b) Tier I CRAR
(c) Tier II CRAR
(d) Liquidity coverage ratio
** Based on the requirement

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

%Variance

36.03%
36.03%
0.00%
Not applicable

41.18%
41.18%
0.00%
Not applicable

(12.50)%
(12.50)%
0.00%
Not applicable

Reason for
Variance
(if above 25%)
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable

of the Schedule III
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The Company at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 29, 2016 had approved an Employee
Stock Option Plan 2016 ('the Plan') and had authorised the Company to issue stock options under the above plan.
The Company has provided loan to Aye Finance Employee Welfare Trust for purchase of 5,60,294 Equity shares
(ESOP Shares) from the existing shareholders. In October 2020 the ESOP plan 2016 was discontinued and balance
155,751 shares of ESOP pool were transferred to a new ESOP plan. In nancial year 2020, the Company
approved a new employee stock option plan 2020 ('the ESOP 2020 Plan') and authorised the Company to issue
stock options under the above plan. The Company has provided loans to Aye Finance Employee Welfare Trust for
purchase of 632,918 Equity shares from the existing shareholder.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Advance of Rs. 1.75 crores paid to the Aye Finance Welfare Trust for subscribing to the shares of the Company has
been adjusted for Rs 0.56 Crores in Note 20 being the face value of shares issued to the trust and Rs 1.06 crores
with Securities Premium account in Note 21 being the premium at which the shares were issued.
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The vesting period is 4 years (with 25% each year) commencing from the date of grant of options. It is the intention
of the Company that the options shall exercise on the day after the listing of the shares pursuant to the liquidity
event as dened in the ESOP scheme. During the year, the Company has granted 226,481 options on Jan 02,
2021. Fair valuation has been carried at the grant date using the Black- Scholes model. The shares of the Company
are not listed on any stock exchange. Accordingly, the expected median volatility for listed peer group has been
considered.
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38 Employee share based payments

3

Particulars
Grant date
Exercise price (Rs. per option)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Options granted
Options vested and exercisable
Options unvested
Options lapsed
Option outstanding

02-Jan-17
2016
29.00
1,09,076
1,09,076

02-Jan-17
29.00
1,09,076
1,09,076

02-Jun -17
2016
29.00
5,307
5,307
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Particulars
Grant date
ESOP plan
Exercise price (Rs. per option)
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year
Options granted
Options vested and exercisable
Options unvested
Options lapsed
Options outstanding

02-Jun -17
29.00
5,307
5,307

02-Jan-18
2016
29.00
26,655
2,800
23,855

02-Jul-20
2016
29.00
6,823
6,823

02-Jul-19
29.00
2,92,275
44,514
2,47,761

As at March 31, 2022
02-Jul-18
02-Jul-19
2016
2016
29.00
29.00
3,851
2,47,761
44,126
3,851
2,03,635
As at March 31, 2021
02-Jan-18
02-Jul-18
29.00
29.00
32,483
3,851
5,828
26,655
3,851
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38 Employee stock options details as on the balance sheet date are as follows:

02-Jan-22
2020
615.87
1,18,954
1,18,954

02-Jan-21
615.87
2,26,481
18,631
2,07,850

02-Jan-21
2020
615.87
2,07,850
11,430
1,96,420

02-Jul-20
29.00
6,823
6,823
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Risk free
interest rate
4.89%
4.89%
4.89%
4.89%
4.89%
4.89%
5.04%
5.66%(3-years)
6.09%(4-years)
3 to 4 years

4 Years
4 Years
4 Years
4 Years
4 Years
4 Years
4 Years

Expected life
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

48.96%

Dividend yield

Expected
volatility
41.97%
41.97%
41.97%
41.97%
41.97%
41.97%
42.44%

Conversion
Ratio
1:1
1:1
1:1
1:1
1:1
1:1
1:1
1:1

Fair value of the underlying share
in the market at the time of the option grant (Rs.)
72.00
72.00
111.43
256.24
447.37
615.87
615.87
615.87
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**The share of the company are not listed on any stock exchange accordingly, the expected median volatility for listed peer group has been considered.
FV of shares of the Company is the fair value of the shares of the Company as on the grant date.

02-Jan-22

02-Jan-17
02-Jun -17
02-Jan-18
02-Jul-18
02-Jul-19
02-Jul-20
02-Jan-21

Grant date

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2021
Grant date
02-Jan-22
02-Jul-20
02-Jan-21
Number of options granted
1,18,954
6,823
2,26,481
Weighted average fair value (Rs.)
251.00
592.60
245.03
Method used for accounting for share based payment plan
The Company has used the fair value method to account for the compensation cost of stock options to employees. The fair value of options used are estimated on the date of grant using the Black – Scholes
Model. The key assumptions used in Black – Scholes Model for calculating fair value as on the date of respective grants are:

Weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year is as follows:

Employee share based payments
(Continued…)
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39 Income taxes
This note provides an analysis of the company’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how the tax
expense is affected by non -assessable and non -deductible items. It also explains signicant estimates made in relation to the company’s tax
positions.
As at

As at
March 31, 2021

(5.63)
(5.63)

10.15
(1.50)
8.65

Deferred tax
Credit recognised in statement of prot and loss
Total deferred tax expense / (benet)

(16.06)
(16.06)

(2.26)
(2.26)

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of prot and loss
Deferred tax relating to other comprehensive income

(21.69)
0.33

6.39
(0.03)

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on prots for the year
Tax for earlier years
Total current tax (benet) / expense

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

March 31, 2022

Particulars
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(a) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting prot multiplied by India's tax rate:
The tax charge shown in the statement of prot and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all prots had been charged at India
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting prot multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the years
ended March 31, 2022and March 31, 2021is, as follows:
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

25.17%
(16.97)

25.17%
5.86

0.91
(5.63)

0.94
(4.15)
7.50
(2.26)
(1.50)

(21.36)
(21.69)
0.33

6.36
6.39
(0.03)

Prot from continuing operations before income tax expense
Applicable tax rate
Computed tax (gain) / expense
Tax effect of :
Expenses disallowed permanent nature
Impact of deduction to NBFC u/s 36
Expense disallowed of temporary differences
Deferred tax credit on temporary differences
Tax for earlier years
Total tax expense / (income) recognised in total comprehensive income
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of prot and loss
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
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(a) Deferred tax assets / liabilities

Components of deferred tax assets /
(liabilities)

Measurement of nancial assets at
amortised cost
Measurement of nancial liabilities at
amortised cost
Difference in book balance of property,
plant and equipment as per companies
act and Income tax act
Provision for gratuity and compensated
absences
Others

28.05

(1.80)

(2.14)

(1.33)

Other
comprehensive
income

Others

As at
March 31, 2022

-

-

26.25

-

-

(3.47)

-

-

0.70

0.70

-

2.96

1.17

(0.33)

-

3.80

2.03
31.60

16.97
1.05
16.06

(0.33)

-

16.97
3.08
47.33

As at
March 31, 2020

Statement of
prot and loss

29.83

(1.78)

(2.54)

Other
comprehensive
income

Others

As at
March 31, 2021

-

-

28.05

0.40

-

-

(2.14)

0.52

0.18

-

-

0.70

1.37

1.56

0.03

-

2.96

0.13
29.31

1.90
2.26

0.03

-

2.03
31.60

40 The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.
41 There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educational and Protection Fund by the Company.
42 The Company does not have any year end unhedged foreign currency exposures.
43 Standards issued but not yet effective
There are neither new standards nor amendments to existing standards which are effective for the annual period beginning from
April 1,2022.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Components of deferred tax assets /
(liabilities)

Statement of
prot and loss

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Measurement of nancial assets at
amortised cost
Measurement of nancial liabilities at
amortised cost
Difference in book balance of property,
plant and equipment as per the
Companies Act and the Income Tax Act
Provision for gratuity and compensated
absences
Income tax losses
Others

As at
March 31, 2021
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44 Disclosures relating to securitisation
44.1 The information on securitisation of the Company as an originator in respect of securitisation transaction done during the year is
given
Sr.
No.
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Particulars
Total number of transactions entered during the year
Total number of loan assets
Total book value of loan assets
Saleconsideration received

As at
March 31, 2022
3.00
17,341.00
120.71
107.49

Asat
March 31, 2021
-

As at
March 31, 2022
3.00
102.34

Asat
March 31, 2021
8.00
134.33

-

-

9.44
11.67

40.23
45.29

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

107.49

-

-

-

9.44
9.44
0.90%
Nil
Nil
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Sr.
Particulars
No.
(1) No. of SPV's sponsored by NBFC for securitisation transactions
(2) Total amount of securitised assets as per books of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC
(3) Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of
balance sheet
Off-balance sheet exposures
(a) First loss
(b) Others
On-balance sheet exposures
(a) First loss
(b) Others (MRR including securitisation investments)
(4) Amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than MRR
Off-balance sheet exposures
Exposure to own securitization
(a) First loss
(b) Loss
Exposure to third party securitisation
(a) First loss
(b) Loss
On-balance sheet exposures
Exposure to own securitization
(a) First loss
(b) Loss
Exposure to third party securitisation
(a) First loss
(b) Loss
(5) Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account of
securitisation
(6) Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of, liquidity support,
post -securitisation asset servicing, etc.
(7) Performance of facility provided
Credit enhancement facility
Fixed deposit
(a) Amount paid
(b) Repayment received
(c) Outstanding amount
(8) Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past
(9) Amount and number of additional /top up loan given on same underlying asset
(10) Investor complaints
(a) Directly /Indirectly received and;
(b) Complaints outstanding

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

44.2 Disclosure pursuant to RBI notication- RBI/DOR/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22 datedSeptember24,2021:Details of
securitisation transactions:

Nil
Nil
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Restructured accounts as on April 1 of the FY
(opening gures)*

Upgradations to restructured standard
category during the FY

No of borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision thereon

Standard

-

-

-

SubStandard

-

-

Doubtful
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Standard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(37.00)
(52.37)
(12.60)
49.00
85.94
17.40
416.00
431.14
167.57

(86.35)

(161.67)

(341.00)

32.00
0.23
0.05
392.00
425.80
174.61
321.00
133.22
74.46

* Excluding the gures of Standard Restructured Advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable).
* Write offs amount during the year have zero outstanding balance as on March 31, 2022

Restructured standard advances which cease
No of borrowers
to attract higher provisioning and / or
additional risk weight at the end of the FY and
(4)
Amount Outstanding
hence need not be shown as restructured
standard advances at the beginning of the
Provision thereon
next FY
No of borrowers
Down gradations of restructured accounts
(5)
Amount Outstanding
during the FY
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Write-offs of restructured accounts during the
(6)
Amount Outstanding
FY*
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Restructured accounts as on March 31 of the
(7)
Amount Outstanding
FY (closing gures*)
Provision thereon

(3)

(2) Fresh restructuring during the year

(1)

Details

Asset Classication
Loss

Others

(Rupees in lakhs)

Standard

Loss

-

37.00
52.37
12.60
91.00
100.18
75.67
20.00
22.14
14.82

-

-

-

-

- - - - - - - - - -

213.00
2.81
1.01
(321.00)
(133.22)
(74.46)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sr.
No.
Doubtful

Under CDR
Mechanism
SubStandard

Type of Restructuring

Loss

Under SME Debt
Restructuring
Mechanism
SubStandard
Doubtful

45.1 For the year March 31, 2022

Total

45 Disclosure on restructuring pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notication DNBS.CO.PD. No. 367/03.10.01/2013-14 dated January23, 2014

Total
140.00
186.12
93.07
436.00
453.28
182.39

(86.35)

(161.67)

(341.00)

245.00
3.04
1.06
392.00
425.80
174.61
-

(37.00)
(52.37)
(12.60)
49.00
85.94
17.40
416.00
431.14
167.57

(86.35)

(161.67)

(341.00)

32.00
0.23
0.05
392.00
425.80
174.61
321.00
133.22
74.46

Total

Loss
-

37.00
52.37
12.60
91.00
100.18
75.67
20.00
22.14
14.82

-

-

-

-

- - - - - - - - - -

Doubtful
-

213.00
2.81
1.01
(321.00)
(133.22)
(74.46)

SubStandard

Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

Standard
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140.00
186.12
93.07
436.00
453.28
182.39

(86.35)

(161.67)

(341.00)

245.00
3.04
1.06
392.00
425.80
174.61
-

Total

Restructured accounts as on April 1 of the FY
(opening gures)*

Upgradations to restructured standard
category during the FY

No of borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision thereon

Standard

-

-

-

SubStandard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(41.00)
(0.37)
(0.27)
(7.00)
32.00
0.23
0.05

(0.01)

(0.14)

(35.00)

112.00
1.04
1.01
3.00
0.01
-

Standard

* Excluding the gures of standard restructured advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable).
* Write offs amount during the year have zero outstanding balance as on March 31, 2021

Restructured standard advances which cease
No of borrowers
to attract higher provisioning and / or
additional risk weight at the end of the FY and
(4)
Amount Outstanding
hence need not be shown as restructured
standard advances at the beginning of the
Provision thereon
next FY
No of borrowers
Down gradations of restructured accounts
(5)
Amount Outstanding
during the FY
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Write-offs of restructured accounts during the
(6)
Amount Outstanding
FY*
Provision thereon
No of borrowers
Restructured accounts as on March 31 of the
(7)
Amount Outstanding
FY (closing gures*)
Provision thereon

(3)

(2) Fresh restructuring during the year

(1)

Details

Asset Classication

Doubtful
Loss
Total
Standard

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Others

-

41.00
0.37
0.27
(90.00)
213.00
2.81
1.01

-

(0.02) -

(0.25) -

-

-

-

-

-

Doubtful
Loss

(25.00) -

202.00
2.55
2.45
88.00
1.53
0.19
(3.00)
(0.01)
-

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Sr.
No.

SubStandard

Under CDR Mechanism

Doubtful

Type of Restructuring

Loss
Total

Under SME Debt
Restructuring
Mechanism

SubStandard

45.2 For the year March 31, 2021

Total
(97.00)
245.00
3.04
1.06

(0.03)

(0.39)

(60.00)

314.00
3.59
3.46
88.00
1.53
0.19
-

(41.00)
(0.37)
(0.27)
(7.00)
32.00
0.23
0.05

(0.01)

(0.14)

(35.00)

112.00
1.04
1.01
3.00
0.01
-

Total

-

(0.02) -

-

-

(0.25) -

-

-

(25.00) -

41.00
0.37
0.27
(90.00)
213.00
2.81
1.01

-

-

202.00
2.55
2.45
88.00
1.53
0.19
(3.00)
(0.01)
-

Total
(97.00)
245.00
3.04
1.06

(0.03)

(0.39)

(60.00)

314.00
3.59
3.46
88.00
1.53
0.19
-

(Rupees in lakhs)

Doubtful
Loss

45 Disclosure on restructuring pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notication DNBS.CO.PD. No. 367/03.10.01/2013-14 dated January23, 2014

Standard
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3
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The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

Particulars
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance other than
cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than
debt securities)
Lease liability
Derivative
nancial
instruments

Total

152.84

-

152.84

179.45

-

179.45

212.08

12.14

224.22

165.82

2.18

168.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

905.99
155.11
4.66

781.72
2.43

760.31
16.68

740.46
198.17
-

1,500.77
198.17
16.51

-

8.83
47.33

1,687.71
155.11
7.09
8.83
47.33

-

0.37
31.61

0.38
31.60

-

4.78

4.78

-

5.31

5.31

6.34
1,437.02

20.58
0.06
1.37
879.24

20.58
0.06
1.37
6.34
2,316.26

4.86
1,127.11

20.37
0.01
1.56
1,000.04

20.37
0.01
1.56
4.86
2,126.99

466.90

455.33

922.23

274.78

670.66

945.44

289.62

308.89

598.51

182.94

185.94

368.88

7.70

15.65

23.35

6.45

16.25

22.70

3.89

3.89

-

1.79

1.79

Other nancial liabilities

32.78

-

32.78

6.04

-

6.04

Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net)
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities

10.98

12.16

23.14

15.49

7.45

22.94

-

-

-

-

-

-

6.35

-

6.35

12.50

-

12.50

814.33

30.45
675.56
1,501.93

30.45
675.56
2,316.26

498.20

30.45
716.25
1,628.79

30.45
716.25
2,126.99

Other
non -nancial
liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Other equity
Total liabilities and equity

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Non-nancial assets
Current tax assets (Net)
Deferred tax assets (Net)
Property,
plant
and
equipment
Right of use assets
Capital work -in -progress
Other intangible assets
Other non -nancial assets
Total assets

Total

As at March 31, 2021
Within
After
12 months
12 months

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Derivative nancial
instruments
Loans
Investments
Other nancial assets

As at March 31, 2022
Within
After
12 months
12 months
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47 Capital
The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is
meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The
adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.
The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported
period. Equity share capital and
other equity are considered for the purpose of Company's capital management.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Capital management
The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company
complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous
years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Regulatory capital
Particulars
Tier I capital
Tier II capital
Total capital
Risk weighted assets
CRAR (%)*
Tier I capital (%)
Tier II capital (%)

Carrying amount
As at
Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
642.62
667.32
642.62
667.32
1,783.42
1,620.58
36.03%
41.18%
36.03%
41.18%
-

* The above ratio has been computed in accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI on March 13, 2020Tier
1 capital consists of shareholders' equity and retained earnings. Tier II capital consists of general provision
and loss reserve against standard assets . Tier 1 and Tier II has been reported on the basis of Ind AS nancial
information.
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In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to certain nancial risks namely credit risk, interest risk, price
risk, currency risk & liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to achieve better predictability of nancial
markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its nancial performance.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

48.1 Credit risk management framework
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers fail to discharge their contractual
obligations. The Company has a comprehensive framework for monitoring credit quality of its loans and
advances primarily based on days past due monitoring at year end. Repayment by individual customers and
portfolio is tracked regularly and required steps for recovery are taken through follow ups and legal
recourse.
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities
in the same geographical region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. In order
to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specic guidelines to
focus on spreading its lending portfolio across various products / states / customer base with a cap on
maximum limit of exposure for an individual / Group.
The below amounts does not include the impact of EIR on applicable fees and interest accrued on customer
loans.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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The Company's risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Company's board of directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The board of directors has established the risk management committee
and asset liability committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management
policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on it activities.
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48 Financial risk management framework
The Company's principal nancial liabilities comprise borrowings from banks and debentures. The main purpose
of these nancial liabilities is to nance the Company's operations and to support its operations. The Company's
nancial assets include loan and advances, investments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

3
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Quasi Mortgage loans
As at
As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Mortgage loans
48.1.1Credit quality of nancial loan
Particulars
As at
As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gross carrying value of loans
Stage 1
7.35
10.00
Stage 2
1.19
2.55
Stage 3
0.40
0.55
Gross carrying value as at
8.94
13.10
reporting date

3

Hypothecation loans
As at
Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

107.57
16.58
10.84

170.07
37.82
12.73

1,478.64
62.35
43.54

1,169.15
127.87
38.70

134.99

220.62

1,584.53

1,335.72

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Company reviews the credit quality of its loans based on the ageing of the loan at the year end and hence the
Company has calculated its ECL allowances on a collective basis.
48.1.2 Inputs considered in calculation of ECL

In assessing the impairment of nancial loans under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the assets have been segmented into three stages.
The three stages reect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a nancial instrument. The differences in accounting between
stages, relate to the recognition of expected credit losses and the measurement of interest income.
The Company categorises loan assets into stages primarily based on the Days Past Due status.
Stage1 : 0 to 30 days past due
Stage 2 : 31 to 90 days past due
Stage 3 : More than 90 days past due

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.1.3 Denition of default
The Company considers a nancial asset to be in “default” and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations
when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.
48.1.4 Exposure of default
“Exposure at Default” (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the assets subject to impairment calculation.
48.1.5 Estimations and assumptions used in the ECL model
(a) Loss given default (LGD) is common for all three Stages and is based on loss in past portfolio. Actual cashows on the
past portfolio are considered at portfolio basis for arriving loss rate.
(b) Probability of Default (PD) is applied on Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 portfolio . This is calculated as an average
of periodic movement of default rates.
48.1.6 Measurement of ECL
ECL is measured as follows
(a) Financial assets that are not credit impaired at the reporting date: for Stage 1 & 2, gross exposure is multiplied by PD
and LGD percentage to arrive at the ECL.
(b) Financial assets that are credit impaired at the reporting date: the difference between the gross exposure at
reporting date and computed carrying amount considering EAD net of LGD.
48.1.7 Signicant increase in credit risk
The Company considers its exposure in credit risk to have increased signicantly, when the borrower crosses 30DPD.
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(c) The expected credit loss allowance for Hypothecation loan is determined as follows:
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Performing Under per - Impaired loans Particulars
loans
forming loans
lifetime ECL
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
credit impaired
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2022
1,478.64
62.35
43.54
ECL rate
0.53%
13.47%
62.77%
ECL amount
7.87
8.40
27.33
Carrying amount (net of provision)
1,470.77
53.95
16.21
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2021
1,169.15
127.87
38.70
ECL rate
0.51%
24.03%
79.97%
ECL amount
6.00
30.73
30.95
Carrying amount (net of provision)
1,163.15
97.14
7.75

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

8.94
0.47
8.47
13.10
1.07
12.03

Total

134.99
10.43
124.56
220.62
20.78
199.84

Total

1,584.53
43.60
1,540.93
1,335.72
67.68
1,268.04
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(b) The expected credit loss allowance for Quasi Mortgage loan is determined as follows:
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Performing Under per - Impaired loans Particulars
loans
forming loans
lifetime ECL
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
credit impaired
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2022
107.57
16.58
10.84
ECL rate
1.62%
14.41%
58.12%
ECL amount
1.74
2.39
6.30
Carrying amount (net of provision)
105.83
14.19
4.54
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2021
170.07
37.82
12.73
ECL rate
0.84%
29.24%
65.21%
ECL amount
1.42
11.06
8.30
Carrying amount (net of provision)
168.65
26.76
4.43

Total

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(a) The expected credit loss allowance for Mortgage loan is determined as follows:
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Performing Under per - Impaired loans Particulars
loans
forming loans
lifetime ECL
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
credit impaired
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2022
7.35
1.19
0.40
ECL rate
1.36%
11.76%
57.50%
ECL amount
0.10
0.14
0.23
Carrying amount (net of provision)
7.25
1.05
0.17
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2021
10.00
2.55
0.55
ECL rate
0.46%
27.23%
59.20%
ECL amount
0.05
0.69
0.33
Carrying amount (net of provision)
9.95
1.86
0.22

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

48.1.8 Impairment loss
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48.1.9 Level of assessment - aggregation criteria
The company recognises the expected credit losses (ECL) on a collective basis that takes into account comprehensive credit risk
information. Considering the economic and risk characteristics the company calculates ECL on a collective basis for all stages - Stage 1,
Stage 2 and Stage 3 assets

48.1.10 An analysis of changes in the gross carryingamount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to Mortgage Loans is as follows:
(a) Gross exposure reconciliation:

Particulars

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2020
Transfer to stage 1
Transfer to stage 2
Transfer to stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021

(3.12)
(0.06)
10.00

(0.05)
2.55

0.01
(0.57)
0.55

16.89
(3.16)
(0.63)
13.10

0.28
(0.96)
(0.32)

(0.28)
0.96
(0.08)

0.40

-

(1.65)
7.35

(0.67)
(1.29)
1.19

(0.25)
(0.30)
0.40

:
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Changes due to loans recognised in the opening balances that have
Transfer to stage 1
Transfer to stage 2
Transfer to stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Total

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Performing Under per - Impaired loans loans
forming loans
lifetime ECL
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
credit impaired
16.08
0.13
0.68
0.07
(0.07)
(2.48)
2.52
(0.04)
(0.49)
(0.05)
0.54

(2.57)
(1.59)
8.94

(b) Reconciliation of ECL balances
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Performing Under per - Impaired loans loans
forming loans
lifetime ECL
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
credit impaired
0.23
0.11
0.56
(0.66)
0.68
(0.02)
(0.29)
(0.03)
0.32

Particulars

ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2020
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated /derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2021
Changes due to loans recognised in the opening balances that have
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated /derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2022

0.77
0.05

(0.07)
0.69

(0.05)
(0.48)
0.33

(0.07)
(0.18)

0.07
(0.04)

0.22

0.30
0.10

(0.08)
(0.50)
0.14

(0.32)
0.23

Total

0.90
0.65
(0.48)
1.07

:
0.22
(0.82)
0.47
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48.1.11An analysisof changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to Quasi Mortgage Loans is as follows:

(b) Reconciliation of ECL balances
Particulars
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2020
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2021
Changes due to loans recognised in the opening balances that have :
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2022

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Stage 2
3.94
(0.24)
36.95
(2.74)

Stage 3
10.82
(0.06)
(0.32)
9.62

Total
291.87
-

(63.23)
(0.60)
170.07

(0.09)
37.82

(0.13)
(7.20)
12.73

(63.45)
(7.80)
220.62

3.78
(10.52)
(4.38)

(3.75)
10.53
(6.36)

(0.03)
(0.01)
10.74

(51.08)
(0.30)
107.57

(8.85)
(12.81)
16.58

(1.84)
(10.75)
10.84

(61.77)
(23.86)
134.99

Stage 1
5.53
(10.74)
(4.49)

Stage 2
3.66
10.79
(1.78)

Stage 3
10.11
(0.05)
6.27

Total
19.30
-

11.13
(0.01)
1.42

(1.61)
11.06

(1.27)
(6.76)
8.30

8.25
(6.77)
20.78

0.06
(0.82)
(2.36)

(0.06)
0.82
(3.91)

6.27

3.51
(0.07)
1.74

1.25
(6.77)
2.39

(0.49)
(7.78)
6.30

4.27
(14.62)
10.43

-
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Changes due to loans recognised in the opening balances that have :
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Stage 1
277.11
0.30
(36.63)
(6.88)

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(a) Gross exposure reconciliation:
Particulars
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2020
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021
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48.1 Credit risk management framework
(Continued)
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48.1 Credit risk management framework
(Continued)

48.1.12Ananalysisof changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to Hypothecation Loans is as follows:

(b) Reconciliation of ECL balances
Particulars
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2020
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2021
Changes due to loans recognised in the opening balances that have :
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2022

Stage 2
8.02
(0.12)
126.40
(6.89)

Stage 3
28.17
(0.13)
(0.35)
34.35

Total
1,472.69
-

(107.89)
(6.19)
1,169.16

0.50
(0.04)
127.87

(0.79)
(22.55)
38.70

(108.18)
(28.78)
1,335.73

9.11
(42.68)
(19.63)

(9.10)
42.68
(23.25)

(0.01)
42.88

364.94
(2.26)
1,478.64

(25.29)
(50.56)
62.35

(1.03)
(37.00)
43.54

338.62
(89.82)
1,584.53

Stage 1
17.08
(30.28)
(21.97)

Stage 2
7.45
30.36
(5.51)

Stage 3
26.58
(0.08)
27.48

Total
51.11
-

41.24
(0.07)
6.00

(1.53)
(0.04)
30.73

(1.24)
(21.79)
30.95

38.47
(21.90)
67.68

0.05
(4.17)
(11.61)

(0.05)
4.17
(15.33)

26.94

17.90
(0.30)
7.87

9.21
(20.33)
8.40

(0.18)
(30.38)
27.33

26.93
(51.01)
43.60

-
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Changes due to loans recognised in the opening balances that have :
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Stage 1
1,436.50
0.25
(126.05)
(27.46)

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(a) Gross exposure reconciliation:
Particulars
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2020
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Loans derecognised during the year
Loans originated / derecognised during the year
Write offs during the year
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits
The Company maintains its bank balances in reputed banks and nancial institutions. The credit risk is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.
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Maturities of nancial liabilities

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Liquidity risk management in the Company is managed as per the guidelines of Board-approved AssetLiability Management ('ALM') Policy which is monitored by the Asset Liability Committee. The ALM Policy
provides the governance framework for the identication, measurement, monitoring and reporting of
liquidity risk arising out of Company's lending and borrowing activities. The Company maintains exibility in
funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors the Company's
liquidity positions (also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash ows. The Company also takes into account liquidity of the market in which the entity
operates.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

48.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difculty in meeting the obligations associated with its
nancial liabilities (other than derivatives) that are settled by delivering cash or another nancial asset. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufcient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due.

The table below analyses non-derivative nancial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than
debt securities)
Trade payables
Other nancial liabilities
Derivate
Financial
Instrument
Total nancial liabilities

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

As at March 31, 2021

Within
12 months

After
12 months

Total

Within
12 months

After
12 months

Total

7.70
466.90

15.65
455.33

23.35
922.23

6.45
274.78

16.25
670.66

22.70
945.44

289.62

308.89

598.51

182.94

185.94

368.88

32.78

-

32.78

6.04

-

6.04

3.89

1.79

-

1.79

1,576.87

472.00

3.89
800.89

779.87

872.85

1,344.85
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As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
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48.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include foreign currency receivables.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

48.3.1 Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a nancial instrument will uctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Foreign currency risk for the Company arises majorly on account of foreign currency
borrowings. When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being as hedge, the Company negotiates the
terms of those derivatives to match with the terms of the hedge exposure. The Company's policy is to fully
hedge its foreign currency borrowings at the time of drawdown and remain so till repayment.
The Company holds derivative nancial instruments such as cross currency interest rate swap to mitigate risk of
changes in exchange rate in foreign currency and oating interest rate. The counterparty for these contracts is
generally a bank. These derivative nancial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in market place.
The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period are as
follows
:

Currency

Financial liabilities in Rs. crores
Financial liabilities in Rs. crores

USD
EURO

As at
March 31, 2022
77.01
129.33

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021
37.16
130.36

48.3.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of change in
market interest rates. The Company does not have any exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
as the company does not have any borrowings/loans on uctuating interest rates except following:(a) Liabilities
Particulars
Debt securities
Variable rate
Fixed rate
Borrowings (other than debt)
Variable rate
Fixed rate
Sensitivity analysis
Increase by 80 basis points
Decrease by 80 basis points

As at

Asat

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

106.00
923.00

1,028.42

157.00
333.00

52.59
244.69

1.98
(1.98)

0.42
0.42
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(c) Price risk exposure
The Company’s Investment in Mutual Funds is exposed to pricing risk. Other nancial instruments held by the company does not possess
any risk associated with trading.

Investments
Sensitivity analysis
increase by 4%
decrease by 4%

5.03
(5.03)

7.89
(7.89)

49 Leases
Total

Balance at March 31, 2020
Additions
Deletion
Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at March 31, 2021
Additions
Deletions
Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at March 31, 2022

11.53
14.48
(0.02)
(5.62)
20.37
5.91
(0.25)
(5.45)
20.58

Leases
11.14
14.05
(0.02)
(5.39)
19.78
5.05
(4.90)
19.93

Security
Deposits
0.39
0.43
(0.23)
0.59
0.86
(0.25)
(0.55)
0.65

49.2 Carrying value of lease liabilities:
Particulars
Balance at March 31, 2020
Additions
Finance cost
Lease payments
Balance at March 31, 2021
Additions
Finance cost
Lease payments
Balance at March 31, 2022

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Total
12.11
14.06
1.81
(5.28)
22.70
5.26
2.77
(7.38)
23.35

Leases Security deposits
12.11
14.06
1.81
(5.28)
22.70
5.26
2.77
(7.38)
23.35

-

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

As at
As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
154.86
197.14

Particulars
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(b) Assets
The Company’s xed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are xed rate deposits and therefore not subject to interest rate risk,
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash ows will uctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
Loans extended by the Company are all xed rate loans
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49.3 Maturity analysisof lease liabilities
Contractual undiscounted cash ows
Less than one year
One to ve years
More than ve years
Undiscounted lease liabilities at March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022
8.22
20.44
0.34
29.00

Asat
March 31, 2021
7.79
19.18
3.13
30.10

As at
March 31, 2022
2.77
4.90
7.67

As at
March 31, 2021
1.81
5.38
7.19

As at
March 31, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

49.4 Amounts recognised in prot or loss

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation on ROU assets
Total

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particulars

49.5 Cash outow of leases
Particulars

7.62
7.62

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash outow of leases
Lease payments

5.28
5.28

49.6 Break up value of the current and non-current lease liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars
Current lease liabilities
Non -current lease liabilities
Total

As at
As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7.70
6.45
15.65
16.25
23.35
22.70
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Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price), regardless of whether that price is
directly / indirectly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived,
nancial instruments are classied based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques.
Fair value hierarchy of asset and liabilities measured at fair value
Particulars

119.29
6.46
125.75

Particulars
Level 1
190.85
6.29
197.14

-

32.05
35.94

3.89
-

As at March 31, 2021
Level 2
Level 3
1.79
1.79

-

119.29
6.46
32.05
161.69

Total
1.79

-

190.85
6.29
198.93

Fair Value hierarchy of Asset and Liabilities not measured at fair value
The management assessed that carrying value of nancial asset and nancial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value
and hence their carrying values are deemed to be fair values.
Valuation methodologies of nancial instruments not measured at fair value
Loans
Most of the loans are repriced frequently, with interest rate of loans reecting current market pricing. Hence carrying value of loans is
deemed to be equivalent of fair value.
Borrowings
Debt securities and borrowings are xed rate borrowings and fair value of these xed rate borrowings is determined by discounting
expected future contractual cash ows using current market interest rates charged for similar new loans and carrying value approximates
the fair value for xed rate borrowing at nancial statement level. The Company’s borrowings which are at oating rate approximates the
fair value.
Short term and other nancial assets and liabilities

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, investments, other nancial assets, trade payables and other
nancial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largelydue to the short -term maturities of these instruments.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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At fair value through prot and Loss
Derivative liability - forward currency swaps
Investments
Mutual funds
Mutual Funds held as security in respect of borrowings

3.89

Total

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Level 1
At fair value through prot and Loss
Derivative liability - forward currency swaps
Investments
Mutual funds
Mutual Funds held as security in respect of borrowings
Security receipts

As at March 31, 2022
Level 2
Level 3

CORPORATE OVERVIEW
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51 Disclosures pursuant to Reserve bank of India notication DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020
pertaining to Asset Classication as per RBI Norms
51.1For the year March 31, 2022
Asset classication as per
RBI Norms

Asset
classication as
per Ind AS 109

(1)

(2)

Gross carrying
amount as per
Ind AS

Loss allowances
(provisions) as
required under
Ind AS 109

Net carrying
amount

Difference
Provisions
between Ind AS
required as per
109 provisions
IRACP norms
and IRACP norms

(3)

(4)

(5) = (3) - (4)

(6)

(7) = (4)-(6)

1,593.56
80.12
1,673.68

9.71
10.93
20.64

1,583.85
69.19
1,653.04

11.10
2.02
13.12

(1.39)
8.91
7.52

Non-performing assets (NPA)
Sub - standard
Subtotal

Stage 3

54.73
54.73

33.83
33.83

20.90
20.90

9.01
9.01

24.82
24.82

Stage 3
Stage 3
Stage 3

0.05
0.05

0.03
0.03

0.02
0.02

0.05
0.05

(0.02)
(0.02)

Stage 3

54.78

33.86

20.92

9.06

24.80

Stage 1

-

-

-

-

-

Stage 2

-

-

-

-

-

Stage 3

-

-

-

-

-

11.10
2.02
9.06
22.18

(1.39)
8.91
24.80
32.32

Doubtful - up to 1 year
1 to 3 years
More than 3 years
Subtotal
Loss assets
Total
Other items
such as
guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which
are in the scope of Ind AS
109 but not covered under

All assets
Grand total

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

1,593.56
80.12
54.78
1,728.46

9.71
10.93
33.86
54.50

1,583.85
69.19
20.92
1,673.96

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Stage 1
Stage 2

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Performing assets
Standard
Standard
Total

(a) The above table discloses the provisions amounts as per IRACP norms, while the Company has made a provision of non -performing
assets as per the Company’s policy which is in excess of the IRACP norms.
(b) The above amounts does not include the impact of EIR on applicable fees and interest accrued on customer loans.
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51.2 For the year March 31, 2021

Asset classication as per
RBI Norms

Asset
classication as
per Ind AS 109

(1)

Gross carrying
amount as per
Ind AS

Loss allowances
(provisions) as
required under
Ind AS 109

Net carrying
amount

(3)

(4)

(5) = (3)-(4)

(6)

(7) = (4)-(6)

(2)

Difference
Provisions
between Ind AS
required as per
109 provisions
IRACP norms
and IRACP norms

1,349.23
168.24
1,517.47

7.47
42.48
49.95

1,341.76
125.76
1,467.52

6.70
12.40
19.10

0.77
30.08
30.85

Non-performing assets (NPA)
Sub - standard
Subtotal

Stage 3

46.39
46.39

35.47
35.47

10.92
10.92

38.34
38.34

(2.87)
(2.87)

Stage 3
Stage 3
Stage 3

5.59
5.59

4.11
4.11

1.48
1.48

5.59
5.59

(1.48)
(1.48)

Stage 3

51.98

39.58

12.40

43.93

(4.35)

Stage 1

-

-

-

-

-

Stage 2

-

-

-

-

-

Stage 3

-

-

-

-

-

6.70
12.40
43.93
63.03

0.77
30.08
(4.35)
26.50

Doubtful - up to 1 year
1 to 3 years
More than 3 years
Subtotal
Loss assets
Total
Other items
such as
guarantees,
loan
commitments, etc. which
are in the scope of Ind AS
109 but not covered under

All assets
Grand total

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total

1,349.23
168.24
51.98
1,569.45

7.47
42.48
39.58
89.53

1,341.76
125.76
12.40
1,479.92

(a) The above table discloses the provisions amounts as per IRACP norms, while the Company has made a provision of non -performing
assets as per the Company’s policy which is in excess of the IRACP norms.
(b) The above amounts does not include the impact of EIR on applicablefees and interest accrued on customer loans.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Stage 1
Stage 2
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Performing assets
Standard
Standard
Total
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51 Disclosures pursuant to Reserve bank of India notication DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020
pertaining to Asset Classication as per RBI Norms

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

52 RBI circular RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 September 01, 2016.

52.1 Asset Liability Management - Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

As at March 31, 2022
15 days
1 to 7 8 to 14
to 30/31
days
days
days

Particulars

109.21
170.12
0.59

24.94
2.83

5.00
26.14

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.67

-

2.32

38.48

Over
6 months
up to
1 year
462.32
45.95
384.36
-

Over
1 year
up to
3 years
715.23
12.14
572.39
163.93

Over
3 year
up to
5 years
65.14
27.93

Over 5
years

1.35
-

-

Total
1,742.21
460.13
1,314.36

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Deposits
Advances*
Investments^
Borrowing**
Foreign currency
assets
Foreign currency
liabilities

Over
Over
Over
1 month 2 months 3 months
up to
up to
up to
2 months 3 months 6 months
77.05
77.07
234.83
56.73
14.15
131.10
136.93
61.54
101.66

-

206.38

As at March 31, 2021

Deposits
Advances*
Investments^
Borrowing**
Foreign currency
assets
Foreign currency
liabilities

Over
Over
Over
1 month 2 months 3 months
up to
up to
up to
2 months 3 months 6 months
75.96
74.21
218.64
73.91
23.01
84.72
17.46
24.61
118.28

Over
6 months
up to
1 year
410.28
21.74
233.05

70.74
212.56
22.92

3.90

65.00
4.54

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Over
1 year
up to
3 years
663.10
2.10
650.39

165.90

Over
3 year
up to
5 years
69.41
73.25

Over 5
years

Total

7.95
2.94
0.02

1,590.29
485.98
1,148.42

-

-

-

-

-

165.90

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 days
1 to 7 8 to 14
to 30/31
days
days
days

Notes
* EIR on advances has been considered in the 1-3 years bucket.
* The advances are gross of impairment loss allowance.
** EIR on borrowing has been considered in the last bucket of the respective borrowing.
^ Investments include the amount of deposits with banks
(a) Advances and borrowings are inclusive of the securitisation transactions which have not been de-recognised in the books of accounts in
accordance with Ind AS 109.
(b) Above ALM does not consider cash balance existing as on balance sheet date.
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52 RBI circular RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 September 01, 2016, updated as on
February 17, 2020.
(Continued)

52.2 Summary of signicant accounting policies
Refer to note 2 of Financial Statements for summary of signicant accounting policies.
52.3 Capital
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
36.03%
41.18%
36.03%
41.18%
-

52.4 Investments
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

155.11
-

198.17
-

-

-

155.11
-

198.17
-

-

-

52.5 Derivatives

52.5.1 Forward rate agreement / interest rate swap
Particulars
The notional principal of swap agreements
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to full their obligations under the
agreements
Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps
Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps*
The fair value of the swap book
* Counter - party for all swaps entered into by the Company are Scheduled Commercial Banks.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
202.80
162.72
-

-

(3.93)

(1.79)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
Value of investments
Gross value of investments
In India
Outside India
Provisions for depreciation
In India
Outside India
Net value of investments
In India
Outside India
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Opening balance
Add : Provisions made during the year
Less Write-off / write -back of excess provisions during the year
Closing balance

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particulars
(i)
CRAR (%)
(ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%)
(ii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%)
(iii) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital
(iv) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments
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52.5.2Exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivatives
Particulars
Notional principal
a)
b)
c)

Amount
amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument -wise)
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

52 RBI circular RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 September 01, 2016, updated as on February 17,
2020.
(Continued)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2022(instrument -wise)
Nil
Nil
Nil
amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective" (instrument -

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a)
Nil
b)
Nil
c)
Nil
Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective" (instrument -wise)
a)
Nil
b)
Nil
c)
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

a)
b)
c)
Notional principal
wise)

52.5.3 Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives
Qualitative disclosures
The Company undertakes the derivatives transaction to prudently hedge the risk in context of a particular
borrowing or to diversify sources of borrowing and to maintain xed and oating borrowing mix. The
Company does not indulge into any derivative trading transactions. The Company reviews, the proposed
transaction and outline any considerations associated with the transaction, including identication of the
benets and potential risks (worst case scenarios); an independent analysis of potential savings from the
proposed transaction. The Company evaluates all the risks inherent in the transaction viz., counter party risk,
Market Risk, Operational Risk, basisCredit risk is controlled by restricting the counterparties that the Company
deals with, to those who either have banking relationship with the Company or are internationally renowned or
can provide sufcient information. Market/Price risk arising from the uctuations of interest rates and foreign
exchange rates or from other factors shall be closely monitored and controlled. Normally transaction entered
for hedging, will run over the life of the underlying instrument, irrespective of prot or loss. Liquidity risk is
controlled by restricting counterparties to those who have adequate facility, sufcient information, and sizable
trading capacity and capability to enter into transactions in any markets around the world.
The respective functions of trading, conrmation and settlement should be performed by different personnel.
The front ofce and back- ofce role is well dened and segregated. All the derivatives transactions are
quarterly monitored and reviewed. All the derivative transactions have to be reported to the board of
directors on every quar ter ly board meetings including their nancial positions.
Quantitative disclosures
Particulars
Derivative (notional principal amount) – for hedging
Marked to market positions
Credit exposure
Unhedged exposures
* Cross currency interest rate swap

As at March 31, 2022
Currency
Interest Rate
Derivatives*
Derivatives
202.80
(3.93)
202.80
-

As at March 31, 2021
Currency
Interest Rate
Derivatives*
Derivatives
162.72
(1.79)
162.72
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52.6 Disclosures relating to Securitisation
Refer Note No. 42 of the nancial statements.
52.7 Exposures
March 31, 2021
231.08

141.36

231.08

2.58

2.65

2.58

2.65

NIL
NIL
NIL
143.94

NIL
NIL
NIL
233.73

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

52.8 Details of nancing of parent company products
The Company doesn’t have parent Company, hence this clause is not applicable.
52.9 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
The Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) during the March 31, 2022 andMarch 31,
2021

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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52.7.2Exposure to capital market
Particulars
(i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate
(ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to
individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;
(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares
or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e.
where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures /
units of equity oriented mutual funds' does not fully cover the advances;
(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of
stockbrokers and market makers;
(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;
(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity ows /issues;
(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (VCFs) (both registered and unregistered)
Exposure to capital market

March 31, 2022
141.36

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Category
Residential mortgages
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the
borrower or that is rented
Commercial real estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (ofce buildings, retail space, multi purpose commercial premises, multi -family residential buildings, multi -tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acqu
isition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure would also include non -fund based limits
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures
Residential
Commercial real estates
Total exposure to real estate sector

CORPORATE OVERVIEW
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52.10 Unsecured advances
The Company has given Rs. 1598.27crores (previous year: Rs. 1356.58crores) of unsecured loans.
52.11 Miscellaneous
52.11.1 Registration obtained from other nancial sector regulators
The Company does not hold any other registration other than NBFC registration from RBI.
Registration/ License
Certicate of Registration

IssuingAuthority
Reserve Bank OfIndia (RBI)

Registration / License number
B-14.03323
DIRECTOR’S REPORT

52.11.2 Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators –
No penalties were imposed by the regulator during the year ended March 31, 2022and March 31, 2021
52.11.3 Related party transactions
Refer note 35 of Financial Statements for related party transaction disclosure.

52.11.4Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
and migration of ratings during the year
Rating purpose

FY 2021-22

Aye Finance Private Limited by India Ratings &
Research
NCD Rs. 980 crores (previous year Rs. 1040crores)
[IND] ABank loans Rs. 210 crores (previous year Rs. 210.00
[IND] Acrores)
Commercial paper Rs. 50 crores
[IND] A2+
Principal protected market -linked debenture (PP-MLD)
IND PP-MLD A - emr
Rs. 50 crores
Aye Finance Private Limited by ICRA
NCD Rs. 446.00crores (previous year Rs. 446.00crores)
[ICRA] BBB+
Fund based term loan of Rs. 55.60 crores* (previous
[ICRA] BBB +
year Rs. 55.60 crores)
Market Linked Non -convertible Debentures (MLD) Rs.
PP-MLD
[ICRA]AA(CE)
50 crores (previous year Rs. 50 crores)
* Rating withdrawn

Rating
Outlook

Rating
Assigned

Rating
Outlook

Stable

[IND] A-

Stable

Stable

[IND] A-

Stable

Assigned

N.A.

N.A.

Assigned

N.A.

N.A.

Stable

[ICRA] BBB+

Stable

Stable

[ICRA] BBB +

Stable

Stable

N.A.

N.A.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rating
Assigned

FY 2020-21

52.12 Additional disclosures
52.12.1Provisions and contingencies
Break up of 'provisions and contingencies' shown under the head expenditure in the statement of
prot and loss account
Provisions for impairment on investment
Provision for Stage 3
Provision made towards income tax net of deferred tax
Other provision and contingencies
Provision for Stage 1 and Stage 2

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

2.94
35.52
(21.69)
6.34
(29.31)

39.58
49.95

52.12.2 Draw down from reserves
The Company has not made any drawdown from the reserve during the year.
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52.13.1Concentration of advances
Particulars
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC

March 31, 2022
1.67
0.10%

March 31, 2021
3.73
0.24%

March 31, 2022
33.84

March 31, 2021
4.42

1.91%

0.21%

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

52.13 Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs
The Company has not taken any deposits from any party. The below amounts does not include the impact of EIR on applicable fees and
interest accrued on customer loans.

52.13.2Concentration of exposures

* the above does not include the investment in debts mutual funds and total assets has been considered for the purpose of calculation.
52.13.3 Concentration of NPAs
Particulars
Total Exposure to top four credit impaired accounts

March 31, 2022
0.33

March 31, 2021
0.38

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

Agriculture and allied activities
MSME
Corporate borrowers
Services
Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans
Other personal loans

52.13.5Movement of NPAs
Particulars
(1) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
(2) Movement of NPAs (Gross)*
(i)
Opening balance
(ii)
Additions during the year
(iii)
Reductions during the year
(iv)
Closing balance
(3) Movement of Net NPAs*
(i)
Opening balance
(ii)
Additions during the year
(iii)
Reductions during the year
(iv)
Closing balance
(4) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets) *
(i)
Opening balance
(ii)
Additions during the year
(iii)
Reductions during the year
(iv)
Closing balance

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Percentage of NPAs
to total advances in that sector
3.29%
3.27%
-

March 31, 2022
1.37%

March 31, 2021
0.80%

51.98
57.13
(51.83)
57.28

39.67
44.51
(32.20)
51.98

12.40
23.36
(12.33)
23.42

2.41
10.44
(0.45)
12.40

39.58
33.78
(39.50)
33.86

37.26
34.07
(31.75)
39.58

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52.13.4Sector -wise NPAs
Sector

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particulars
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the
NBFC on borrowers / customers *
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52.14 Overseas assets
The Company does not own any assets outside the country.
52.15 Off – balance sheet SPVs sponsored
The Company does not have any off balance sheet SPV sponsored either domestic or overseas.
52.16Disclosure of customer complaints
pending at the beginning of the year
received during the year
redressed during the year
pending at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
1
205
206
-

March 31, 2021
108
107
1

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particulars
(i)
No. of complaints
(ii) No. of complaints
(iii) No. of complaints
(iv) No. of complaints

52.17Expenditure on corporate social responsibility
Refer note 30 of Financial Statements for disclosure pertaining to corporate social responsibility expenses.
52.18 Disclosure on frauds pursuant to RBI Master Direction
The frauds detected and reported for the year amounted to Rs. 0.15 crores (March 31, 2021Rs. 0.07 crores).
52.19 COVID 19 Disclosures in terms of RBI notication no. DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 pertaining to Asset
Classication and Provisioning in terms of COVID 19 Regulatory Package

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) guidelines relating to 'COVID-19 — Regulatory Package' dated March 27, 2020 and
subsequent guideline on EMI moratorium dated April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020 (“RBI regulatory package”), the company has offered
moratorium on the payment of inst alments falling due between March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020 (“moratorium period”) to all eligible
borrowers. In accordance with RBI guidelines, the moratorium period, wherever granted, is excluded from no. of days past dues for the
purpose of asset classication. The company holds provision as at March 31, 2021/March31, 2020 against the potential impact of COVID
19 based on the information availableup to a point in time.
Disclosures as required by RBI circular dated April 17, 2020 ‘COVID-19 Regulatory Package — Asset classication and provisioning are
given below:
Particulars
Advance outstanding in SMA/Overdue’' categories where the moratorium/deferment was extended, in terms of
paragraph 2 and 3 of the circular (as on February 29, 2020)*
Respective amounts where assets classication benet was extended*
Provision made in terms of paragraph 5 of the circular (As per paragraph 4 applicable to NBFC’s covered under IND
AS)*
Provision adjusted against slippages in terms pf paragraph6 of the circular*
Residual provision as of in terms of paragraph6 of the circular*
* Advance outstanding of accounts under SMA /overdue category is as of March 31, 2021.

March 31, 2021
26.40
11.93
8.10
7.75
0.34
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52.20 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of advances
The Company has restructured the accounts as per RBI circular circulars DBR.No.BP.BC.100/21.04.048/2017-18 dated February 07, 2018,
DBR.No.BP.BC.108/21.04.048/2017-18 dated June 6, 2018, DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 1, 2019, circular
DOR.No.BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20dated February11, 2020and DOR.No.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21dated August 06, 2020.
March 31, 2022
5,466
59.87

March 31, 2021
10,508
142.19

52.21 Details of interest on interest during the moratorium period
In accordance with the RBI notication dated April 7 2021, the Company is required to refund/adjust ‘interest on interest’ t o borrowers. As
required by RBI notication, the methodology for calculation of such interest on interest has recently been circul ated by the Indian Banks'
Association. The Company has recorded the liability towards estimated interest relief of current year: Nil (previous year: Rs. 0.04
crores) and reduced the same from the interest income.

52.23
The Company owns 99.999%of Foundation for Advancement of Micro Enterprises (FAME), incorporated under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013, to carry on social responsibility activities. The nancial statements of FAME are not considered for consolidation
since the denition of control is not met as the Company's objective is not to obtain economic benets from the activities of FAME.
52.24 Transactions with non-executive directors
Name of non-executive director
Mr. Navin Kumar Maini
Ms. Kanika Tandon Bhal
Mr. Vinay Baijal
Mr. Vikram Jetley
Total

Transaction type
Payment of sitting fees
Payment of sitting fees
Payment of sitting fees
Remuneration

52.25 Postponement of revenue recognition
There is no signicant uncertainty which requires postponement of revenue recognition.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

March 31, 2022
0.09
0.07
0.06
1.02
1.24

March 31, 2021
0.13
0.10
0.10
1.72
2.05
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52.22Details of the Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘CODE’) relating to employee benets
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benets during employment and post-employment benets received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will
come into effect has not been notied and the nal rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Particulars
No. of accounts restructured
Amount (Rs. in crores)*
* Balances are as at March 31, 2022
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52.26 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as dened under the MSMED Act, 2006
Payment against the supplies from the undertakings covered under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006are
generally made in accordance with the agreed credit terms.
On the basis of information and record available with the management, there are no outstanding balances of such suppliers and interest
due on such accounts as on March 31, 2022
The Company has neither paid any interest nor such amount is payable to buyer covered under the MSMED Act, 2006.
52.27 Details of non-performing nancial assets purchased/sold
The Company has neither purchased or sold any non performing nancial asset during 2021-22 and 2020-21.

52.29 Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction -Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India ("RBI") vide their Notication No. RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 Master Direction DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated
September 24, 2021(the "Notication")

52.29.1 Details of non -performing assets (NPAs) transferred are given below:
Disclosure pursuant to RBI notication - RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

52.28 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
The Company has not imported any goods therefore value of import on CIF basis is Nil. (As on March 31, 2021– Nil).

(a) Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default during the year ended March 31, 2022: Nil
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Details of loans re-purchased in compliance with paragraph 48 of Master Direction - RBI (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021
during the year ended March 31, 2022:Nil
(c) Details of stressed loans transferred during the year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars
No. of accounts
Aggregateprincipal outstanding of loans transferred (Rs. in crores)
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred (in months)
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) (Rs. in crores)
Aggregateconsideration (Rs. in crores)
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier year

To Asset Reconstruction Companies
NPA*
SMA
23,835
243.29
12 months
34.78
37.71
-

Including written off loans amounting to Rs. 171.95crores
(d) TheCompany has not acquired any stressed loanduring the nancial
52.29.2 The Company has not acquired any special mention account or stressed loan or loan not in default.
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52.29.3Disclosures as required for liquidity risk

(ii) Top 20 large deposits
Particulars
Total amount of top 20 deposits
Percentage of amount of top 20 deposits to total deposits

March 31, 2022
N.A.
N.A.

(iii) Top 10 borrowings
Particulars
Total amount of top 10 borrowings
Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,131.85
1,098.13
74.43%
82.83%

March 31, 2021
N.A.
N.A.

(iv) Funding concentration based on signicant instrument/product
March 31, 2022
Name of the instrument/product
Non -convertible debentures (Secured)
Non -convertible debentures (Unsecured)
Term loans
Borrowing under securitization arrangement
External commercial borrowings
Working capital / Line of credit / Overdraft facility
(v) Stock ratios
Particulars
Commercial papers as a % of total public funds
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities
Commercial papers as a % of total assets
Non -convertible debentures as a % of total public funds
Non -convertible debentures as a % of total liabilities
Non -convertible debentures as a % of total assets
Other short -term liabilities as a %of total public funds
Other short -term liabilities as a %of total liabilities
Other short -term liabilities as a %of total assets

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

Amount
791.51
130.72
268.28
108.89
206.35
14.99

%of
Total Liabilities
49.15%
8.12%
16.66%
6.76%
12.81%
0.93%

March 31, 2021
Amount
889.95
55.49
118.47
82.96
167.45
11.37

%of
Total Liabilities
64.04%
3.99%
8.58%
6.01%
12.13%
0.82%

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
53.55%
38.98%
50.57%
37.19%
35.16%
24.19%

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
20.00
7.00
1,437.61
992.63
N.A.
N.A.
89.28%
71.43%

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(i) Funding concentration based on signicant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
Particulars
Number of signicant counter parties
Amount
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits
Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities
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(v)Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Aye Finance Private Limited has constituted Asset Liability Supervisory Committee ('ALCO') to oversee
liquidity risk management in compliance with Board approved policy. It comprises of senior management
of the Company and headed by Managing Director or/and Executive Director. ALCO meetings are held
once in a quarter or more frequently as required from time to time.
Aye Finance Private Limited has also constituted RMC for the effective supervision and management of
various aspects including liquidity risks faced by the Company. This committee shall provide necessary
directives to ALCO, as and when necessary. The ALCO and RMC
updates the Board at regular intervals.
52.30 Transferred nancial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
The following tables provide a summary of nancial assets that have been transferred in such a way that
part or all of the transferred nancial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the
associated liabilities.
The Company has transferred certain pools of xed rate loan receivables backed by underlying assets
by entering into securitisation transactions with the Special Purpose Vehicle Trusts (SPV Trust) sponsored by
nancial institution for consideration received in cash at the inception of the transaction.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company, being Originator of these loan receivables, also acts as Servicer with a responsibility of
collection of receivables from its borrowers and depositing the same in Collection and Pay-out Account
maintained by the SPV Trust for making scheduled pay-outs to the investors in Pass Through Certicates (PTCs)
issued by the SPV Trust. These securitisation transactions also requires the Company to provide for rst loss
credit enhancement in various forms, such as corporate guarantee, cash collateral etc. as credit support in the
event of shortfall in collections from underlying loan contracts. By virtue of existence of credit enhancement,
the Company is exposed to credit risk, being the expected losses that will be incurred on the transferred loan
receivables to the extent of the credit enhancement provided. In view of the above, the Company has retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the nancial asset and thereby does not meet the
derecognition criteria as set out in Ind-AS 109. Consideration received in this transaction is presented as
‘Borrowing under securitisation under Note 14'.

Particulars
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost
Carrying amount of associated liabilities (Debt securities -measured at
amortised cost)

March 31, 2022
102.34

March 31, 2021
134.32

107.49

82.98
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#Includes restructuring implemented pursuant to OTR 2.0 for personal loans,
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52.31 Detail of resolution plan implemented under the resolution framework for Covid - 19 related stress as per RBI circular dated August 06,
2020 (resolution framework - 1.0) and May 05, 2021 (resolution framework - 2.0) as March 31, 2022 as given below: Exposure to
Exposure to
accounts classied
accounts
Of (A) amount
as Standard Of (A), aggregate
classied as
Of (A) amount written
paid by the
consequent to debt that slipped in
Standard
off during the half borrowers during
Type of Borrowers
implementation of to NPA during the
consequent to
year ended March 31,
the half year
resolution plan half year ended
implementation
2022 ended March 31,
Position as at
March 31, 2022
of resolution plan
2022
September 30, 2021
- Position as at
March 31, 2022*
(A) *
Personal Loans #
42.86
5.91
1.32
1.13
34.50
Corporate Persons
MSMEs
Others
Total
42.86
5.91
1.32
1.13
34.50
* Consist of unbilled and overdue principal

53 Changes in liabilities arising from nancing activities *

April 1, 2021
1,028.42

Cash ows
(23.21)

Exchange difference
-

Other
(82.98)

March 31, 2022
922.23

305.56

204.32

2.14

(21.16)

489.62

(8.28)
1,325.70

25.93
207.04

2.14

91.24
(12.90)

108.89
1,520.74

Particulars
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt
securities)
Borrowings under securitisation

April 1, 2020
1,179.43

Cash ows
(151.01)

Exchange difference
-

Other
-

March 31, 2021
1,028.42

52.28

248.20

5.08

-

305.56

220.79
1,452.50

(229.07)
(131.88)

5.08

-

(8.28)
1,325.70

* Amounts are inclusive of accrued interest.

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd
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Particulars
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt
securities)
Borrowings under securitisation
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54 A national lockdown was declared by Government of India with effect from March 24, 2020 as a result of
the outbreak of Coronavirus, a virus causing potentially deadly respiratory tract infections (the “pandemic”),
which was further extended in phases up to May 31, 2020. Subsequently, the lockdown has been lifted by the
Government for certain activities in a phased manner outside specic containment zones but
localised/regional restrictions continued to be implemented in areas with a signicant number of COVID-19
cases.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in April-May 2021 led to the re-imposition of
localised/regional lockdown measures in various parts of the country. The second wave started to subside
from June 2021 onwards and the lockdowns were gradually lifted, resulting in a signicant improvement in
economic activity.
India experienced another outbreak due to a new variant in December 2021 and as a precautionary
measure, certain state governments have imposed localised/regional restrictions.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The extent to which the COVID19 pandemic, will continue to impact the Company's nancial results, will
depend on ongoing as well as future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things,
any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread
or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by us. At March 31, 2022, the Company
believes that the impairment allowance of loans has been recorded considering the reasonable and
supportable information available up to the date of approval of these nancial results. Based on current
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover carrying amount of the nancial
assets. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and
resultant impact, if any, on the impairment allowance of loans.
55 Pursuant to Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 we
would like to state that all listed secured non-convertible debentures of the Company are secured by way of
rst exclusive charge on hypothecated book debts of the Company up to the extent minimum of 100% of the
amount outstanding.
56 There are no signicant subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date of
approval of these nancial statements.
57 The gures for the previous periods have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to
current period presentation.
Net Prot or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no any prior period items and changes in accounting policies.

158

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aye Finance Private Limited (CIN: U65921DL1993PTC283660)
Notes forming part of the nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated)

3

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

(viii)
(ix)

(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)

In terms of our report attached
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership No.: 094533
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Aye Finance Pvt.Ltd

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aye Finance Private Limited
Corporate Identication No.: U65921DL1993PTC283660

NavinKumar Maini
Director
DIN: 00419921
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 26, 2022

Mayank Shyam Thatte
Chief Financial Ofcer
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Tripti Pandey
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 32760
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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(x)

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

(vii)

The Company do not have any investment property.
The Company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding
any benami property.
Title deed of the Immovable Properties are held in name of the Company, further the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant
and Equipment and intangible assets.
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period for borrowings.
The Company, being a Non -Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a systematically
important NBFC, the provisions of section 2(87) read with Companies (restriction on number of layers) Rules 2017are not
The quarterly statement of current assets submitted to banks / nancial institutions which are provided as security against the
borrowings are in agreement with the books of account.
The Company has not entered any transactions with companies that were struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013
or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual Currency during the nancial year.
The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (ultimate beneciaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneciaries
The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (ultimate beneciaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneciaries
The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
During the year, no scheme of arrangements in relation to the Company has been approved by the competent authority in terms of
Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, aforesaid disclosure are not applicable to the Company.
The Company have not advanced or loaned to promoter, director, KMP & related party.
The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or nancial institution or other lenders.
Pursuant to RBI circular dated November 12, 2021, “Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classication and Provisioning
pertaining to Advances – clarications”, the Company has taken necessary steps and complied with the provisions of the circular for
regulatory reporting, as applicable. The nancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, are prepared in accordance with
the applicableInd -As guidelines and the RBI Circular dated March 13, 2020– “Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards”.
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements of Aye
Finance Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
nancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls
based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal nancial controls with reference to
these nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, as specied under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal nancial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal nancial controls with reference to nancial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal nancial controls with
reference to these nancial statements and such internal nancial controls with reference to these
nancial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

______________________________
per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number: 094533
UDIN: 22094533AJRDNG6369
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal nancial controls with reference to these nancial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal nancial control with reference to nancial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A company's internal nancial controls with reference to nancial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation of
nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal nancial controls with reference to nancial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of nancial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the nancial statements.
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RELATED PARTYDISCLOSURESUNDER REGULATION53 OF SEBI (LISTINGOBLIGATIONANDDISCOSURE
REQUIREMENTS)REGULATIONS2015
Nature of Transactions

Disclosures of amounts at the
year end and the maximum
amount of loans/ advances/
Investments outstanding during
the year (in INR)

1

Holding Company

Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to subsidiaries by name and amount.

Nil

Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to associates by name and amount.

Nil

Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to rms/companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount.

Nil

Investments by the loanee in the shares of
parent company and subsidiary company,
when the company has made a loan or
advance in the nature of loan.

Nil

Loans and advances in the nature of loans
from Holding Company by name and
amount.

Nil

Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to associates by name and amount.

Nil

Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to rms/companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount.

Nil

2

SubsidiaryCompany

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Name of the Related
Party

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

S
No.

Disclosure of transaction between the Company and any person or entity belonging to the
promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10%or more shareholding in the Company have been made as
per Ind AS24 in Note 35of Notes to Account forming part of Financial Statements.
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